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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Aloha and

good morning.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hello.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Welcome to the Planning

20

Committee meeting this morning. We have a quorum present,

21

so the Chair would like to call to order our Planning

22

Committee meeting. At this time, I'd like to request that

23

if you have any cell phones with ringers, if you would put

24

them on the silent mode throughout the proceedings, I'd

25

appreciate that.
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I'll begin by introducing our Committee Members
that are present this morning. Beginning at my far left,
I'd like to introduce Member Mike Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. Welcome back.
Next to him is Member Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. And then we
have in front of me Member Bill Kauakea Medeiros.
10
11
12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good morning,
Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. And then next
to him, we have Member Wayne Nishiki.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: At this time, excused is our

(Inaudible.)

18

Vice-Chair, Member Jo Anne Johnson. And also excused

19

Member Michael Victorino. I'd like to also introduce the

20

Department of Corporation Counsel that's with us this

21

morning is Mr. Michael Hopper.

22

Good morning, Mike.

23

And then seated next to him for this item this

24
25

morning is Kathleen Aoki, who is a Deputy Planning Director.
MS. AOKI: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. And then to
my left are our staff. I'd like to introduce David Raatz is
our Legislative Analyst. And then next to him is our
Committee Secretary, Clarita Balala.
So the Chair will begin with the public testimony
in a few minutes. Before we begin, I'd like to make sure
that if you would like to sign up to testify this morning,
please do so with the staff that's out in the foyer there.
Testimony will be limited to three minutes. Testifiers are
10

requested to state your name for the record and to indicate

11

who you are representing. If I may, I'd like to introduce

12

the items that are before this Committee this morning. It

13

is a special meeting. And I want to thank the Committee

14

Members for and the Administration for taking the time to be

15

here.

16

We have three items on the agenda. The first is

17

Item PC-20. And this is the "Maximum Wall Height in

18

Agricultural District." The second item will be PC-19,

19

which is "Small Wind Energy Systems." And then the third

20

item will be the PC-2, which is the "General Plan Update."

21

I'd like to begin with PC-20 and just let you know

22

that it relates to the interpretation and enforcement of

23

maximum wall height in the Agricultural Zoning District

24

Ordinance of Chapter 19.30A of the Maui County Code.

25

According to constituent complaints, this law has not been
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enforced uniformly. I have scheduled this item to allow the
public to testify and for responses by the Administration.
We have no legislation before us today. So depending on
what we hear from the members of the public and the
Administration, the Chair and perhaps the Members of the
Committee may consider drafting legislation to be considered
at a future meeting.
While we cannot pass legislation today, we can
gather information and discuss relevant policy issues. So
10

prior to the deliberations, I will accept testimony on

11

PC-20. And if there is anyone here who cannot wait for the

12

other items to be called and you would like to testify

13

early, then please indicate so by at -- when I call these

14

items up.

15

Okay. So at this time, then, the Chair would like

16

to begin with public testimony. And again, each of you will

17

have three minutes of time to testify. So we are beginning

18

with Item PC-20. The first person that's signed up to

19

testify is Jim Whitehead, and he will be followed by

20

Elizabeth Whitehead.

21

...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

22
23

MR. WHITEHEAD: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Council
Members.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BA1SA: Good morning.

25

MR. WHITEHEAD: My name is Jim Whitehead, and I'm
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here representing myself. This wall issue has become a
major problem up at Launiupoko. Part of the reason, I
think, is somebody got mad, somebody didn't get their way,
and they started filing complaints. The problem is this law
has never been enforced for the ten years it was in effect
until they started coming up to Launiupoko. All violations
that have been written have only been in Launiupoko.
The reason for the law, from what I've heard at the
BVA meeting, which I was turned down, if the view plane was
10

the reason, my wall is five feet. They want me to take 12

11

inches off. But all my landscaping behind the wall averages

12

six to seven-feet high. Many of the neighborhood lots up

13

there that don't have a wall have the landscaping also the

14

same. So I think the law is ambiguous. If it's a view

15

plane, it should be the first 25 feet of everything. But I

16

think the law was written for public highways and state

17

highways for specific reasons. I don't think they were ever

18

intended, because Launiupoko didn't exist really until after

19

this law was written. A lot of the subdivisions, like

20

Kahana, has a number of violations out there. That was

21

basically built in the 2002 to 2003 time span.

22

The other problem is is the County has been issuing

23

permits since then in violation of their own law. I have a

24

neighbor on the corner of Wailau Street, got his permit in

25

2007. The wall is over four-feet high. It's a retaining
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wall. And he zoning inspector looked me in the eye and
told me they don't count, they don't count. Yet it's not
for health or safety that the wall was built, there was no
exemption issued from the Director of Public Works which the
law specifically states has to happen. There's probably 50
of them over on West Maui alone that I went around and took
pictures of. They all got permits.
My neighbor down the street just applied for the
same type of wall as the one on the corner of Wailau and Kai
10

Hele Ku, and it was rejected. He was rejected because it

11

says it needs an exemption from the Director of Public

12

Works. The same wall they said didn't need it, now down the

13

street says they do need it and they turned him down. He

14

just bought the lot. So the law is really ambiguous. It

15

needs to be rewritten. It has to apply to really what the

16

intent was. And I honestly believe it was never intended

17

for these small subdivisions like this with two-acre lots.

18

I've met with the Director of Public Works. And he

19

told me flat outs [sic] to my face that he's never issued an

20

exemption ever. It was confirmed by his staff. So if the

21

law was in effect ten years and all these walls got built

22

with permits, why wasn't it done? If the law is so

23

important, why wasn't it done?

24
25

I only ask you this, Committee, consider this
strongly. It affects a lot of people. Some people have
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spent tens of thousands of dollars. And the Planning
Department will sit here and tell you we've had people
comply. What they don't tell you is the zoning inspectors
intimidated those people, threatened those people with
thousand-dollar-a-day fines, tell them they've got 30
minutes -- 30 days, I'm sorry, to tear down a wall that took
three or four weeks to build. That's why they tore it down.
They were scared. The County of Maui is supposed to serve
the people, not crucify them, not pick on them, not threaten
10
11

them.
I mean, we all live and work here. Ninety percent

12

of Launiupoko are people that live on Maui and work on Maui.

13

Even though certain people are on the Council, previous

14

Administration said we're just a bunch of rich people from

15

the mainland with our vacation homes; we're just rich people

16

who don't care; it's gentlemen's estates.

17

The last thing I'd like to say. I've been called a

18

lot of things in my life, but never once a gentleman. But I

19

have worked and lived here for over 35 years. And it's my

20

home. It's for my family. It's for my grandchildren. And

21

we need to take and make the law work. This law doesn't

22

work and it's not working the right way and we need to

23

rewrite it. Thank you.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

25

Members, any questions for the testifier? Member
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Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much,
Chair.
And thank you, Mr. Whitehead, for being here this
morning. This is a very important matter. And since I've
been on the Council, I've been hearing about it. So I'm
very happy we're here today to, at least, listen and learn
about the facts of the situation. When did you build your
home?
10
11
12
13
14

MR. WHITEHEAD: I built my -- the cottage back in
2001, is when I put the wall up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So in 2001, you did the wall,
along with the cottage?
MR. WHITEHEAD: That's correct. And when I built

15

it, funny thing is the chief zoning inspector for the County

16

of Maui drove by many days checking farm plans and would

17

wave at me and said hi, but never told me I was doing

18

anything wrong. Being a contractor for 30 years, I followed

19

my code, Section 16, Building Code. Zoning was something

20

that was done before I ever got there. Those were issues

21

that were taken care of. So I'm ignorant of the zoning law.

22

Not anymore, but I -- I was at the time.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So to your best knowledge,

24

when you built your wall and you built it five-feet high,

25

you were under the impression it was in compliance with
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building code?
MR. WHITEHEAD: Yes. And I spoke to a building
inspector that said as long as it's under six feet, you
don't need a permit. So I made it under six feet with the
columns.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just another question, and
then we'll -- I'll let you go. But if you were to take that
wall down, what would it cost you?
MR. WHITEHEAD: I've had estimates of over $20,000
10

to take it down. Because it's split rock, blue rock wall

11

that didn't show concrete, so it took a long time to build.

12

It all had to be hand-stacked and separated and so on. To

13

make it look good, it's going to take a lot of time and a

14

lot of money.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So taking off a foot would
cost you at least 20,000?

17
18

MR. WHITEHEAD: Yes. I had a couple people come by
and give me a ballpark quote on it.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank --

20

MR. WHITEHEAD: Being on Social Security and using

21

my savings to supplement my Social Security, it's a lot of

22

money to take out of my savings.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very, very much,
Jim.
MR. WHITEHEAD: Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member, questions?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Good morning, Mr. Whitehead.
MR. WHITEHEAD: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I just wanted to a -- one of
the comments you made in your testimony related to the Board
of Variances, you went before the Board and they turned you
down. What was that again -- what was -- what were the
10
11

reasons that they cited?
MR. WHITEHEAD: That it didn't fall under the

12

guidelines of what qualifies to pass it. I don't have the

13

paper in front of me. But I can tell you that Corp. Counsel

14

intervened and the Deputy Director of Planning Works was --

15

Planning Department was down there to make sure that they

16

follow the rule and the law is the law, turn him down

17

because we're going out to enforce as soon as this case is

18

over. The statement was made, we're going to go out and

19

enforce this.

20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So the Board, under the
advice of the Corporation Counsel, intervened -MR. WHITEHEAD: Turned me down, yes. I think they

23

wanted to vote to approve it, but Corp. Counsel they just

24

basically told them they couldn't.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very --
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MR. WHITEHEAD: I tried to get them to defer it
because of this, and they said no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. We'll ask that -present that question to the Department, as well as Corp.
Counsel on that issue.
MR. WHITEHEAD: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And what year was that that
you went before the Board, when was that?
MR. WHITEHEAD: The first time I went was last year
10

and --

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A few weeks ago.

12

MR. WHITEHEAD: I can't remember. I think it was

13

September, and then it was delayed until the end of

14

November. And then we went again January 14th.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

16

Thank you, Chair.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

18

questions? Seeing none -- oh, Member Nishiki. Go ahead.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jim, I was listening to

20

your testimony with my ears to your statements. You said

21

that the reason why the Board of Variances turned down your

22

request was because of the view plane. Is that the reason

23

that they gave you? Is yes or no?

24

MR. WHITEHEAD: There's three --

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You can explain it.
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MR. WHITEHEAD: Okay. I don't have the paperwork

in front of me, but there's three reasons they can approve
you. And according to Corp. Counsel, I didn't qualify for
any of those three reasons. When I said view plane, that
was because I asked why was the law ever made. And I was
told right in the meeting for view plane. That's what it
was designed for.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you know a difference
between just a plain wall and a retaining wall?
10

MR. WHITEHEAD: Yes, I do.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So you mentioned

12

that in your testimony?

13

MR. WHITEHEAD: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So these people that

15

have retaining walls need to get a permit?

16

MR. WHITEHEAD: That's correct.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And -- and so they

18

did comply and get a permit?

19

MR. WHITEHEAD: They complied.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

21

MR. WHITEHEAD: But the law says that it's got to

22

be an exemption issued on an ag lot, it has to be an

23

exemption issued from the Director of Public Works for a

24

health or safety reason only.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Exactly. Exactly. And in
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that case, the wall can be built with a permit?
MR. WHITEHEAD: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. When you went in to
build your wall, did you get a permit?
MR. WHITEHEAD: No, because none was required. As
I stated in my testimony, I spoke to Public Works, the
Building Department, they told me as long as it was under
six feet, it didn't require a permit.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They told you that as long
10
11
12

as it was under six feet, it did not require a permit?
MR. WHITEHEAD: That -- yes, and it qualified as a
fence because it wasn't retaining.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

15

questions? Seeing none, thank you.

16

The next testifier is Elizabeth Whitehead.

17

MS. WHITEHEAD: Good morning, Council -- Council,

18

Chair -- Council [sic] Chair and Council Members. My name

19

is Elizabeth Whitehead. And my husband, Jim Whitehead, and

20

I have been living in Launiupoko since 2001. We built our

21

five-foot high wall after three back-to-back storms in the

22

winter of 2001 to keep the water from running through our

23

property. At the time we were putting the wall up, which

24

took about three weeks to build, the zoning inspectors drove

25

by frequently because the area was just being developed.
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Either -- either it was negligence on their part or they did
not know that this law existed.
My husband and I went for our third variance
hearing on January 14th regarding the four-foot height
limitation on our wall. We were denied, even after we told
them that it was in the Planning Committee to review this
law. I asked for their compassion. The wall had been up
for nine years. There was no urgency to take one foot off
immediately. We were denied. The Planning Department
10

brought their Corp. Counsel to make sure they crucified and

11

nailed us to the cross. And that they did, stating the law

12

is the law. They wanted to win because now they could

13

enforce the thousand-dollar-a-day fines to those who have

14

not yet complied.

15

There has been a lot of discrimination in

16

Launiupoko where the Planning Department gave permits to

17

homeowners to build rock walls in violation of their own

18

law. Funny how only Launiupoko got some 50-plus violations

19

and Kapalua, Kahana, Kula, Haiku, et cetera, got none. So

20

what happens now? If this law is reclarified and not

21

intended for agricultural subdivisions likes ours, is it too

22

late for us since we were denied? I ask if you find that

23

this law is ambiguous and change it, will you make it

24

retroactive back to 1999, when the law was put into effect?

25

That way, all of us with violations will be saved and our
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beautiful walls can stay up. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay MS. WHITEHEAD: All done?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Seeing none, thank you.
MS. WHITEHEAD: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is Andy
Herrera. But I want to ask you, you're signed up for PC-2.
Would you like to wait until that item comes up or -- okay.
10
11
12

Then I would like to call on Mary Jane Brown, to be
followed by Michael Gronemeyer or Grogmeyer [sic].
MS. BROWN: Good morning, Chair and Council

13

Members. I am representing myself and my husband and our

14

daughter, who is co-owner of our property with us. And I'm

15

here to testify on the maximum wall height as it affects the

16

electrical pedestals that were required in Launiupoko area.

17

We built our home. We were one of the first ones to build

18

also in 2001; found out in the middle of building it that

19

this pedestal would be required for our lot, or we would not

20

be able to get electricity.

21

Attached, I have letters from MECO, including

22

diagrams with dimensions of how our electrical pedestals

23

were to be built. MECO would not allow electric meter

24

installation any other way. So therefore, electrical

25

service would not be provided to the homes without a
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pedestal. Our builder followed the diagrams that are
included with my testimony to build our pedestal at an extra
expense to us, because it took two or three years to get our
permit and we were not aware of this, you know, when we got
our house permits.
Since we originally owned four acres, which we have
since subdivided and sold, we have four dwellings on the
electrical pedestal; two cottages and two homes. Pedestal
photos are also attached -- MECO wanted a centralized meter
10

reading point. The placement was determined by MECO as the

11

distance from the road right-of-way to the residence

12

exceeded the distance MECO would allow for service.

13

West Maui Land then required us to face them with

14

stone for a uniform appearance. Attached also are some of

15

our building and electrical permits from 2001 and '02.

16

Neither our builder nor the inspectors were aware of any

17

code violations as they were considered electrical

18

pedestals, not walls. Maui Electric did all of the

19

inspecting of that construction. It had to be approved by

20

them.

21

We are asking for a resolution by the Committee to

22

halt enforcement until the issue can be resolved by the

23

Committee. We would hope to be grandfathered in any

24

revision of the law. We believe the law was misinterpreted

25

in regard to the electrical pedestals. We would hope the
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interpretation could be clarified by the Committee and
grandfathered to include us. The interpretation regarding
the pedestals has already called us -- caused us financial
difficulty and emotional stress. We appreciate your
listening to us.
I'm a retired teacher. My daughter's been a
teacher in Maui for 20 years. My husband is retired. We
sold everything we had to build this home at the time. So
we really appreciate you listening to us and hope you can
10

help with a resolution to clarify or revise the code. Thank

11

you for your time.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

13

Members, questions? Okay. Member Medeiros,

14

followed by Member Nishiki.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

16

Miss -- Mrs. Brown, thank you for being here and

17

for your testimony. I wanted to ask you, when you purchased

18

your property, the lot, were the utilities already

19

installed?

20

MS. BROWN: No. We purchased our lot when there

21

was nothing up there. We were one of the first people to

22

purchase the lot.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. When you looked at

24

the lot that you selected and your discussions with the

25

sales office, did they point out to you any certain utility
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requirements that may be part of your lot?
MS. BROWN: Well, no. Because we purchased our
lot -- oh, it was way in the beginning. There were no roads
up there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. BROWN: So it was like in 1998 or '99, that we
were having those discussions. And the letter from MECO and
their discussions with West Maui Land took place, I think,
slightly after that. So that in 2000, I think they finally
10

came to an agreement --

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

12

MS. BROWN: -- of how to do this. And the certain

13

lots were specified, ours being one of them, because we have

14

a four-acre lot. And this was the only solution they could

15

come up with to get electricity to the homes on those lots.

16

And we were not allowed to have -- even the cottage, which

17

is closer to the road, they wouldn't put the meter on the

18

house. They insisted that we had to have -- and it's -- it

19

was like a cinder block pedestal. There's a picture in

20

there of it. And ours is probably wider. Because instead

21

of building two, there's one for four homes.

22

And I think if you look up the description of a

23

wall someplace, it's not going to -- I mean, that's not a

24

wall. It's an electrical pedestal. And nobody ever said it

25

was a wall until last year. I mean, you know, nobody, all
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the inspectors. In fact, we were held up getting our
electric -- our electricity to our home in the beginning
because Maui Electric had to approve that pedestal. Like I
say, we were one the first ones -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. BROWN: -- to have to have a pedestal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And -- and the pedestal is
on your property? Is it within your metes and bounds of
your property?
10
11

MS. BROWN: MECO defined where the pedestal had to
be.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. My question is --

13

MS. BROWN: So it's actually in the easement of

14
15
16

Maui Electric, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So why are you being held
responsible for that if it's in the easement area?

17

MS. BROWN: I wouldn't know.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Did you ask the people

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

that came to enforce that?
MS. BROWN: You'll have to ask the Zoning
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, thank you for
that information. And -MS. BROWN: It's right, you know, between the
street and -- yeah, it's definitely in the easement area.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's between the street
and your property line, okay. So it's not on your property?
MS. BROWN: Well, that is our property. We had to
give easements from our property for utilities to Maui
Electric and other -- you know, other people. Maybe I'm not
understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So did you give
easement property to Maui Electric in order for them to
install that?
10

MS. BROWN: I think that was all part of our --

11

when we purchased the land, that easement strip shows on

12

the -- I could be mis -- you know, I could be confused here

13

too about it.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Well,

15

we'll -- we'll ask the appropriate departments when they --

16

MS. BROWN: But I think one of the problems too is

17

since they're calling it a wall, the wall had to be within

18

25 feet of the road. And, of course, it's not because Maui

19

Electric wanted it right there. So I suppose if anyone put

20

a gate up, which we didn't, they could get to it without

21

having to get into a -- a gate, or something. I --

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct, that's the

23

reason -- yeah, that's the reason for the easements. Thank

24

you for your testimony and for the information.

25

MS. BROWN: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Your violation
was because of the height of your pedestal?
MS. BROWN: Yes. But if you look at the diagram I
included, they specified it to be six to seven feet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maui Electric's instruction
to you was the height needed to be six or seven feet?
MS. BROWN: Exactly.
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Otherwise, if it
wasn't, then you would not get electric service?

12

MS. BROWN: That's true.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, this pedestal that was

14
15

built, are they all the same in shape or -MS. BROWN: They're all the same in shape. I

16

believe some are -- are not as wide as others. In other

17

words, we could have had two pedestals, I suppose, since we

18

subdivided. But instead, we have one a little bit longer

19

than some people's. But they're not complaining about the

20

length, they're complaining about the --

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The height.

22

MS. BROWN: -- height of the pedestal. If you look

23

at the back of the pedestal, it's full of meters and things

24

all the way from the top, three-fourths of the way down. So

25

to try and take it down, that stuff would be sticking up in
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the air. You know, I don't know how we would even resolve

2

that. We're going -- trying to get through the Board of

3

Variances, eight months later and several hundred dollars.

4

We haven't had a meeting scheduled yet. But --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. And as far as,

6

you know, this letter that was sent to you by Maui Electric

7

in regards to the pedestal height is probably similar to all

8

residents wishing to have electrical service in that area?

9

MS. BROWN: Exactly. I think they sent out 26 or

10

seven letters. And I think -- I'm not positive, but I think

11

the letter from MECO, it -- the lot numbers are here that

12

had to comply with this right in the first paragraph.

13

think they're probably the lots that were four acres and not

14

two.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That is the only violation?
You don't have an illegal wall?

17

MS. BROWN: We do not have an illegal wall. We

18

only have that. And -- and I think it would cost a good

19

amount of money to get it lowered.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

22

MS. BROWN: You're welcome.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions,

24
25

Members? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast
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question. Is the pedestal recessed into the wall area?
the electrical pedestal recessed into the wall area?
MS. BROWN: The -- the wall is facing the road.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. BROWN: The electrical pedestal, which you're
calling a wall -- the electrical pedestal is facing the
road. And behind it is where they mount -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So it's against the
wall?
10

MS. BROWN: It's against the wall, yes. They

11

wanted it built out of cinder block so that they could put

12

the pedestals against the cinder block. And then West Maui

13

Land required we face it with stone so everybody's would

14

look the same.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So I'm thinking that
your wall is your property line?

17
18

MS. BROWN: No. Actually, it's not even on our
property anymore. It's on the other lot.

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions? Member

21
22
23

Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
Just a follow-up question.

24

So who constructed the wall or the pedestal?

25

MS. BROWN: I believe our builder, Steve Shear.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
25

2/9/10 PC

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you were responsible

for the cost of building that?
MS. BROWN: Yes, and it cost (Inaudible).
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But it was built to the
plans and specifications of Maui Electric Company?
MS. BROWN: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member
10

Baisa.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Thank you.

12

And thank you very much for being here. It's

13

important that we get the facts here. I'm very anxious to

14

know, since you were cited and all this became a -- you

15

know, an issue, have you spoken with Maui Electric to inform

16

them of what's going on?

17

MS. BROWN: Some of the people involved have spoken

18

to Maui Electric. West Maui Land has spoken to Maui -- Maui

19

Electric. But I myself did not speak to Maui Electric.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you know what their

21

position has been? Or I'll wait for somebody who's talked

22

to them.

23

MS. BROWN: Maybe somebody else who --

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

25

MS. BROWN: -- has spoken to them can provide you
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what you need.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I'll try again
and ask that question again. Thank you very much.
MS. BROWN: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair has one question
for you. You stated that there was a meeting between MECO
and West Maui Land Company and that they made -- they met
and came to an agreement on the design for this -- or
requirement for the pedestal. Is that -- is that correct?
10

MS. BROWN: There was -- there were meetings

11

involving both of them. And MECO specified to them that

12

this would be the way it would work and that they would not

13

allow it any other way.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's an agreement between

15

West Maui Land. And West Maui Land is who? Who is West

16

Maui Land?

17

MS. BROWN: They're the developers of our --

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The developers of --

19

MS. BROWN: -- our whole subdivision.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Of the subdivision. Okay.

21

Thank you. I just wanted that clarification.
MS. BROWN: And that was back in 1999, I think, or

22
23
24
25

'98.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. All right. Thank you
very much.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
27

2/9/10 PC
The next testifier is Michael -- I think this is
Gronemeyer, to be followed by Irene McPhee.
MR. GRONEMEYER: Aloha, Chair and Members of the
Planning Committee. My name is Michael Gronemeyer. I am
here representing myself. Thank you for this opportunity.
I'm a full-time resident of Lahaina, living in my
home on Lot 6B on Awaiku Street. I've enclosed in my
handout a map that shows where the properties are and some
pictures. My home is a flag lot with a driveway that's over
10

400-feet long before it reaches the main part of the lot.

11

The driveway starts at about 32-feet wide and narrows to

12

12-feet wide before reaching the main part of the lot. The

13

pedecal -- pedestal construction and the first meter

14

installation on this pedestal were completed by the previous

15

owner of the full lot, with final sign-off on May 18th,

16

2000. That was before the lot was subdivided. The final

17

subdivision approval for the lot was signed off four months

18

later by the Director of Public Works on September 22nd,

19

2000. This created Lot 6B, but I was not yet the owner.

20

The documentation that I just mentioned is included

21

in the attachment and was provided to me at the time I was

22

purchasing. Based on that documentation, I felt it was

23

clear in January of 2001, when I purchased, that the County

24

had approved these electrical pedestals. At the time, I was

25

not happy because that was where my driveway was going. But
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since it was all approved by the Department of Public Works
and Maui Electric, I accepted it.
On March 3rd, 2009, I received my first violation
notice. Since that time, I've tried diligently to make
modifications to comply, without success. I've contacted
four different electricians and have been unable to find an
electrician who can reach agreement with the County and with
MECO on a solution for this pedestal.
In addition, MECO said that they did not want a
10

meter installed over 600 feet from the street. I'm now in

11

the process of requesting a variance. While this wall looks

12

good, this wall is primarily for the benefit of MECO and for

13

public safety and provides no value to me as a wall. The

14

utility pedestal is approximately 150-inches wide. It's

15

approximately 70 inches above grade on the street side and

16

approximately 90 inches above slab on the makai side.

17

At the present time, there are three meters on the

18

wall. You can see in the photo. I have a photo of both

19

sides. One of those meters is mine. And the other two

20

belong to two other lots. And the picture below that, the

21

wall that's on my property is the one on the right, not both

22

walls. The one on the left is on Lot Number 5. I've met

23

many times with my neighbors, and there seems to be

24

unanimous agreement that the electrical pedestals look fine

25

and provide a safe and efficient mechanism for the meters.
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I would like assistance from the Council in three

areas. Some -- number one, some way to exempt walls on
agricultural land in the setback area which are specified by
public utilities like MECO or the government. Exempt them
from the four-foot height requirement. Number two,
reconsider the four-foot height requirement in agricultural
setback and perhaps use the same height limit as for rural
districts. And number three, to suspend enforcement actions
until the Council can reconsider. Thank you for your time.
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

11

Members, any questions? Member Medeiros.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

13

Thank you for your testimony and for being here

14

this morning. What is your understanding of the pedestal

15

wall? Is it in your property, or is it on a utility

16

easement?

17

MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, yes and yes. It's on my

18

property and there's an easement. You can see on the

19

diagram attached that was signed off by the Department of

20

Public Works, that the easement is on my property.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can -- can you point that

22

out to me on what page of your testimony you're talking

23

about.

24
25

MR. GRONEMEYER: It looks like a plot map. It's
the second page from the last --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, okay. I'm there.
MR. GRONEMEYER: And there's a little inset above
that shows where the easements are, and there's also the
signature from the Department of Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the pedestal wall
traverses both a utility easement and your property. And -and your understanding -- or your knowledge of this pedestal
wall, it was required by Maui Electric, built by your
contractor or whoever you -- who built the wall?
10
11

MR. GRONEMEYER: The previous owner of Lot 6 built
the wall before I purchased. When I -- when I --

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

13

MR. GRONEMEYER: -- looked at the lot, I was shown

14

this plot map with the signature from the Department of

15

Public Works. So I purchased Lot 6B, which is the lower

16

portion of Lot 6.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the wall was
already there --

19

MR. GRONEMEYER: The wall was already there.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- I see, when you

21
22
23
24
25

purchased it.
MR. GRONEMEYER: And there was a meter on it for
the other house on Lot 6A.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: House already. Okay.
Thank you for your testimony and the information.
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Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank, you Chairman.
Good morning, Mr. Gronemeyer. Just related to your

written testimony. You know, you mentioned that you've
tried diligently -- as I'm reading off your testimony -- to
make modification to comply, without success; and you've
contacted four electricians and have, thus far, been unable
to find an electrician that can work with the County and
10

MECO on a resolution to this. And as you heard from our

11

Chair today, we're in the information gathering stage.

12

Could you provide us the -- I guess the names or

13

some kind of letters from these electricians that you had

14

approached just to, I guess, help the Committee, you know,

15

ultimately find some type of resolution.

16

MR. GRONEMEYER: I don't -- I don't have the names

17

with me, but I would be happy to provide them. Basically,

18

they all told me verbally, after working for several weeks,

19

that they could not reach something that they felt was

20

doable and safe. And they declined to even provide me a

21

bid. So -- and I've talked to a number of other owners.

22

The ones who have done something generally have only had one

23

meter or -- or the meters have been for the same owner. And

24

the electrician was complaining that with all these meters

25

on this one wall, it would be very, very difficulty, if not
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impossible to reduce it and still have the four meters.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So none of them even
provided or were willing to even go as far as to provide you
with a bid as well?
MR. GRONEMEYER: Right, they wouldn't give me a
bid. I did talk to another owner who had received a letter
in writing stating that they wouldn't do it. But four
different electricians have refused. So at that -- at that
point, I was forced to fill out an application for variance,
10

and I'm going through that process.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank
you.

13

Thank you, Chairman.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

15

questions? Member Pontanilla.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

In your letter here, it states that, in addition,

18

Maui Electric does not want a meter installed over 600 feet

19

from the street. Can you explain the rationale in -- on

20

that particular statement?

21

MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, all I know is when I met

22

with -- well, when I first got this letter, the violation

23

notice, I contacted Maui Electric and asked them for the

24

specifications because I was going to try to comply. And

25

they sent me the exhibit in the handout here that shows that
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it's a minimum, seven-foot wall. So after discussing this
with the inspector, he said go back to Maui Electric and
maybe they can do something.
So I had Maui Electric come out to my property.
And when they locked at everything, they said we don't want
to put the meter at the house, but we might be able to work
with you on some way to lower the wall. Subsequently, the
electrician spent several weeks trying to work with them and
could never come up with a solution. I don't know all the
10

electrical details, but that's what happened.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. In my mind, you

12

know, they probably would have asked, like a primary line up

13

to -- close to your house. And then from there, do the

14

metering and provide you your services. So thank you.

15

Okay. Thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you -- thank you very

18

much, Mr. Gronemeyer. And you kind of answered my question

19

about Maui Electric. Thank you very much. So after you

20

talked to them, then this is what happened. But I'm still

21

curious. The people that have modified their walls or their

22

pedestals, whatever they have, they were able to work it out

23

with Maui Electric so they have service, even with a lower

24

wall?

25

MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, the two that I talked to --
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every time I hear that someone has done it, I try to find
out how they did it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. GRONEMEYER: The ones that I talked to only had
either one meter. Or if there were two meters, they were
for the same owner, like a cottage and a main house.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MR. GRONEMEYER: The -- apparently, the problem is
the number of meters, reducing them down, there just isn't
10

enough room for the safe connection of all those meters in

11

that small space. That -- that's what they told me. In

12

fact, the one electrician that declined to bid for me was

13

able to do it for someone that just had one meter. But I

14

think it's a lot simpler if it's just one meter. And I

15

think if you look at the picture, you can kind of see why.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. We can kind of see
what you're dealing with.

18

MR. GRONEMEYER: Yeah.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

22
23

Just to follow up on my previous question.
So when you were approached by a County inspector

24

that you're in violation of the wall height, did you discuss

25

with the inspector that the specifications for that wall
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were given by Maui Electric Company?
MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, my first reaction was I
don't even have a wall, so how can I -- you must be
mistaken.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Pedestal, then.
MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, but I mean -- and then when
he showed me what he was talking about -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MR. GRONEMEYER: -- I said oh, okay. Well, I
10

wanted and I didn't know because I didn't build it.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

12

MR. GRONEMEYER: So I contacted Maui Electric. And

13

they sent me this page that says it had to be seven-feet

14

call.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

16

MR. GRONEMEYER: So then I contacted the

17

inspector --

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

19

MR. GRONEMEYER: -- and gave him this. And he

20

said, well, it can be seven-feet tall, it just can't be in

21

the setback area. But the way the driveway is, I don't have

22

any choice. It's only 32-feet wide at the top and it

23

narrows down and there's also side setbacks. So I -- I

24

wouldn't be able to just move it back. I'd have to move it

25

back over 400 feet.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. What is your

setback for that lot?
MR. GRONEMEYER: Well, all -- the ag lots are 25
foot on the front and 15 on the sides and rear.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, 25 foot from the
County boundary of the right-of-way.
MR. GRONEMEYER: From the property line.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you
for that information.
10

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

12

The next testifier is Irene McPhee.

13

At this time, the Chair would also like to

14

acknowledge non-voting Member, Joe Pontanilla. Thank you

15

for joining our meeting.

16

MS. McPHEE: Aloha, Mr. Chairman, Members of the

17

Planning Committee. I want to thank you for being here

18

today and for giving us the opportunity to present our case

19

to you. My name is Irene McPhee. I'm representing myself

20

and my husband Barry. We live at Launiupoko in Lahaina.

21

We've been blessed to call Lahaina our home since 1977. We

22

met and got married here, raised our kids here, and started

23

and ran three successful businesses over the years. Our

24

home at Launiupoko is a realization of a lifetime of hard

25

work. The facts that I want to share with you may sound
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familiar. And that's because everyone here and the many
dozens more of our neighbors who are unable to attend this
hearing have the same basic situation.
In 19 -- I'm sorry. In 2009, the Maui County
Planning Department decided that our electric utility
pedestal is a wall and is violation of the Maui County
agricultural law. When we built our home in 2004, the
electric utility pedestal was mandated by MECO as a
prerequisite to receiving electric service, with strict
10

guidelines as to height, width, and placement. Maui County

11

inspectors inspected and approved the placement and height

12

of the utility pedestal before electric service could be

13

turned on.

14

Being faced with the threat of civil and criminal

15

enforcement, we took down our beautiful and expensive

16

rock-faced masonry pedestal from six and a half feet to four

17

feet. Now our wall is in compliance, but our problem is not

18

over. The electric meter and other required service

19

equipment that the pedestal was designed to hold is exposed

20

and unprotected. A possible solution that is within the

21

provision of the law was verbally turned down by the

22

Planning Department.

23

MECO is requiring that an electrician design and

24

submit further approval, a plan on how to relocate the meter

25

and other boxes on the shortened pedestal. We are still
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searching for an electrician that will agree to take on this
project. As you can imagine, all this is taking time,
effort and money, and it's far from over. Yet, did we
willfully set out to violate a Maui County law? No, we did
not. We simply followed directives from the public electric
utility and acted in good faith with the full knowledge and
approval of Maui County inspectors.
We appeal to you to help us solve this problem that
is not of our making, yet has grave economic consequences
10

for us. Attached is recent correspondence between us and

11

the Planning Department regarding our case as additional

12

background on this issue. We again thank you for your time

13

and hope you can work out a quick and fair resolution to

14

this situation. Thank you.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

16

Members, any questions? Member Nishiki.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Irene, good morning. In

18

your fifth bullet, you say that a possible solution that is

19

within the provision of the law was verbally turned down by

20

the Planning Department. What was that solution?

21

MS. McPHEE: A section of the law states that -- if

22

I could read my notes here -- that this -- that the wall

23

height issue does not preclude construction -- constructing

24

a fence on the top of the wall for safety purposes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
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MS. McPHEE: We sent an e-mail, which is part o f
the packet I presented, to the Planning Department. And -but we were told that that was not going to be allowed as a
solution.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You build your wall
four-feet high, and then you build a fence on top of that?
MS. McPHEE: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's normally legal?
MS. McPHEE: It's provided within the law.
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But the Planning

11

Department -- do you have that written communication from

12

them as to why they say that that was not acceptable?

13
14

MS. McPHEE: We did not get a written communication
specifically addressing that --

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'll ask them, then.

16

MS. McPHEE: We did get a letter from the Planning

17

Department, which was signed by Kathleen Aoki, I believe.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aoki.

19

MS. McPHEE: And in it, she addresses that issue,

20

but just refers it to the Department -- Development Services

21

Administration of the Department of Public Works.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's that cover letter,
January 11?

24

MS. McPHEE: That's right.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
40

2/9/10 PC
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members,
any other questions? Okay. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is your lot
part of a resubdivided lot?
MS. McPHEE: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Any other
questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
10

Thank you for your testimony.

11

How many meters are on your pedestal?

12

MS. McPHEE: We have just one meter.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On the pedestal?

14

MS. McPHEE: Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But it has the capacity

16

for more meters already built on it? Because you don't have

17

any photos. So we're looking at the other testifiers, they

18

showed their walls with four meters.

19

MS. McPHEE: Our -- our wall was designed to hold a

20

potential two meters because we currently just have need for

21

one meter.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the other meter
would belong to another property?
MS. McPHEE: At the time that we've started to
develop the property, we thought we -- we might build a main
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dwelling. We started with a cottage. So we put that
provision onto the wall. But as the wall stands now at its
shortened four feet, it's -- it's hard to think how even the
one service meter would fit on that wall. There's
definitely not going to be room for ancther.
And to address a question that was brought up about
MECO. We did meet with MECO and ask them, you know, how can
we resolve this problem because we -- you know, we wanted to
be in compliance and, you know, just how to go about it.
10

And their -- their attitude seemed to be, you know, we -- we

11

are not going to get involved in this. Even though

12

they've -- what was put in place and what was built was

13

according to their specs, now they were backing off and

14

saying we don't know how this is going to be fixed, you hire

15

an electrician, have him figure out how to put all this

16

equipment on this space, and we will review it and tell you

17

if we're going to accept that or not and -- and go from

18

there. We have not yet found an electrician that will do

19

that for us.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Your original wall was
seven feet, and you brought it down to four feet?

22

MS. McPHEE: It was about six and a half feet.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Six and a half feet.

24

MS. McPHEE: Yeah --

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that was at your --
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MS. McPHEE: You know, there's quite a grade
difference from one side of the wall to the other.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And was there any
discussions with MECO about getting an approval from them to
take it from six and a half feet down to four feet? Did
MECO approve that change in the pedestal dim -- dimensions?
MS. McPHEE: You're asking me a question that I
have no way of answering.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right.
10

MS. McPHEE: They originally set the dimensions of

11

the pedestal. When the violation letters came down from the

12

County, MECO pretended like they didn't know anything about

13

it, it wasn't their problem.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Was that wall there
before you purchased your property?

16
17

MS. McPHEE: No. We purchased our -- a bare lot
and developed it ourselves.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the wall was put in --

19

MS. McPHEE: We built and paid for that wall --

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right.

21

MS. McPHEE: -- according to MECO's specs and

22

the -- and the developer's requirements for facing with

23

rock.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right, right. Okay.
Thank you for that information.
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Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Balsa,
followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much for
being here and thank you for the information about Maui
Electric. Another question. You lowered your wall?
MS. McPHEE: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could you share with us more
or less what it cost?
10
11

MS. McPHEE: It cost more in pain and suffering
than monetarily because my husband did it himself.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, you have a handy husband.

13

MS. McPHEE: I have a handy husband and he's always

14

eager to resolve a problem ASAP. So he -- he actually took

15

it down himself over two days. However, it did cost him a

16

crushed toe when a rock came tumbling down.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for that.

18

I have a handy husband too, so I know we save a lot of money

19

and just buy materials. But, you know, if you had had to

20

pay, I'm sure it would have been quite expensive.

21

MS. McPHEE: If I may share this. One of our

22

neighbors who is in the same predicament has had a quote of

23

$21,000 to reduce their wall. But they're in a situation

24

where they have several homes sharing one pedestal, so it's

25

a little bit more complex. But yes, the costs are large.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Good morning, Ms. McPhee. In reference to the
January 11th, 2010 letter from Deputy Planning Director
Aoki, in the last paragraph, she writes to you, "Finally,
please understand that we had received numerous complaints
that initiated this enforcement action, and we are
attempting to seek compliance while minimizing the
10

inconvenience and cost of bringing the properties into

11

compliance."

12

Were you told how many complaints -- I mean, you

13

know, I don't know how to define numerous. That can be

14

three people, that can be ten people. And were these

15

complaints from neighbors or people outside of the

16

subdivision that were filing these complaints?

17

MS. McPHEE: Thank you for bringing up that point.

18

We were told that the violation letters were in response to

19

complaints. But we were also told that we could not know

20

the identity of the person or persons making the complaint.

21

So we have no idea. We've been told emphatically ourselves

22

and as a group that there's numerous complaints about this

23

issue, but we are at a total loss as to where these

24

complaints are coming from since so many of our neighbors

25

and people in our community are affected. You know, we're
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obviously not out there making anonymous complaints that
ultimately affect all of us.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. McPHEE: So this is -- this is a question that,
you know, it is uppermost in our minds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MS. McPHEE: You know.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, we'll bring this up to
the Department. And, I don't know, just for me, I would
10

think that in this country, I think we all have the right to

11

know who our accusers are.

12

MS. McPHEE: Exactly.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So anyway, we'll bring this

14
15
16
17
18
19

up -MS. McPHEE: Thank you so much. I appreciate your
attention to that point.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions?
Member Nishiki and then back to Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Some background

20

information. Are you an original buyer of the subdivision?

21

MS. McPHEE: We're not the original owners of that

22

lot, although we've developed that lot. We had purchased

23

and developed another lot in the same Launiupoko area back

24

in 1999, when those lots were still cane fields and there

25

was no roads. And, you know, we were -- we were one of the
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first people to build up there on a different lot than we're
on now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how big was this lot in
acres?
MS. McPHEE: The original lot that we purchased was
four acres.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Four acres.
MS. McPHEE: We purchased it together in
partnership with my niece and her husband. And we
10

consequently subdivided that lot into two, two-acre lots

11

that we each --

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. That's a question

13

that I guess I was curious to find out. You may not know

14

the answer, but I'll ask it anyway. In the original

15

agreement when you purchased that four-acre lot -- some

16

history -- were you told that you could or could not

17

subdivide?

18
19
20
21

MS. McPHEE: We were told that four-acre lots were
eligible for subdivision down to a minimum of two acres.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You were told that when you
originally bought it?

22

MS. McPHEE: Yes, we were.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And -- and because

24

of this, could then the configuration of how utilities is

25

put in or addressed be a concern? On a given lot, you could
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have maybe two homes, and who knows if you could put a farm
dwelling on there also. But if this were to occur, then the
need to address how man -- how your pedestal was situated
could change from the original plan when maybe the utility
and the subdivider figured out what the plan should be.
MS. McPHEE: We were not aware at that time that
there were only certain lots that required pedestals and
others did not. Our lot was split, not like some others
where the top lot is on the road and then there's a flag lot
10

below it.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

12

MS. McPHEE: Our original four-acre lot was split

13

along the road -- roadway so that both lots had access to

14

the roadway. And yet, we were still required to have the

15

pedestal. And we were not aware that only certain lots were

16

designated by MECO and/or the developer as needing

17

pedestals.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

19

MS. McPHEE: And I'm still curious and -- and don't

20

know why some homes up there don't -- didn't require

21

pedestals. That's not a question I -- I have answers to.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you Chair. And thank

25

you very much again. One last question.
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I

interested in this issue of complaints. Did

you ever receive, you personally, ever receive a letter, a
phone call, a visit from anybody who said, you know, I'm
concerned about your wall or your pedestal?
MS. McPHEE: No, never. On our present property,
the density is so low that there are no homes within any
possibility of seeing our pedestal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Pontanilla.
10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Hold on.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a comment -- in

13

regards to --

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Irene.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh. Oh, not a question

16

for her.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm sorry.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to the

19

subdivision itself, I'm kind of curious as far as the

20

electrical design by Maui Electric to provide service within

21

the subdivision. It seems like, you know, it was designed

22

for a specific number. And then through all this

23

resubdiv -- subdividing, now we're coming into this

24

particular problem to separate properties. So I'm hoping

25

that Maui Electric is here to explain, at least, their
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design. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
The next testifier is John Duey. And you're signed
up for PC-2. Would you need to testify now? Okay. Thank
you.
Then we'll move onto Keahi Ho, followed by Ann
Pistillo. Keahi Ho.
MR. HO: Good morning, Council. Thank you very
much for being here today. My name is Keahi Ho. I live up
10

in Launiupoko. I'm an original owner of Lot 6 -- Lot 4, I

11

believe. We purchased the lot in 1999. And basically the

12

same story as you've heard before. I don't have a wall. I

13

have an electrical pedestal which was designed and required

14

by Maui Electric to be built. It was built by my contractor

15

to their specs. And it now has four meters on it; two for

16

my lot and two for my neighbor's lot below me. I have not

17

received a letter stating that I am out of compliance, but

18

my neighbor below me who is on the same wall as me has

19

received a letter. I suppose I'm waiting for my letter.

20

I'm also an electrician, a former electrician.

21

Since this issue has come up, I've walked around the

22

neighborhood and looked at ways to resolve this issue as an

23

electrician. And each wall is -- I mean, the argument is,

24

in general, the same. But the specifics of fixing each wall

25

is very different. Each wall is its own unique situation,
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and each wall is going to have it's own unique challenges.
And therefore, the prices are going to be varied, but
they're all going to be very expensive. And all the
solutions are hard.
That's what I've come here to say. Any questions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Keahi.
Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And thanks very much for
coming. You have -- on your pedestal, is it just the
10

pedestal or is it a wall?

11

MR. HO:

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's a pedestal. And you said

It's a pedestal.

13

that you had like your neighbor's meter -- I guess you have

14

two meters each. So there's four meters on the pedestal?

15

MR. HO: Yeah. My situation -- I mean, every

16

situation, we can get into a whole day-long story, but my

17

situation, I have -- there's actually two pedestal walls

18

that are on my property. The way it ended up being, there's

19

a triangle easement. So my driveway -- the driveway that

20

goes to the property below me comes up halfway between my

21

property and the one next to me, and then it angles of onto

22

my neighbor's property. And so therefore, his pedestal wall

23

is on my property. And so I have two pedestal walls. On my

24

particular wall, I have four meters; two for me and two for

25

the lot below me. And then on the other wall, there's just
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two meters. But it's set up for the other two meters on the
lot below him.

So there's --

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So -MR. HO: -- technically four meters and two walls.
Eight meters and two walls on my property.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Wow. And when you got the
cite -- did you get the citation for all of them?
MR. HO: No, I haven't received anything yet.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Okay.
10
11

MR. HO: But my -- the neighbor on my wall that's
below me has received one.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Okay.

13

MR. HO: So I'm just here claiming -- you know, we

14

need to look at this as an overall picture, not the details

15

of the situations of each one. Because each one is a

16

nightmare if you're trying to fix each one.

17
18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And so the two meters
are for what on your property?

19

MR. HO: I have a cottage and a house.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And so then that goes

21

to the cottage?

22

MR. HO: Yeah.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And then, you know, either

24
25

family or whoever -MR. HO: Yeah.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- you know, lives there.
MR. HO: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You -- and have -- you've also
implemented your farm plan?
MR. HO: Yes. I have a farm on the top. My mom
has a -- we grow asparagus and lemons and -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HO: -- all kinds of vegetables and bread
fruit and (Inaudible).
10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. That's fine. I just

11

want to make sure that I'm understanding how come there's so

12

many meters.

13
14

MR. HO: Yeah, my farm is actually right around
these meters.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

16

MR. HO: It surrounds these meters.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right. Thank you very

18
19
20

much. I appreciate it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, other
questions? Member Medeiros.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

22

Thank you for your testimony and information. Are

23
24
25

you a licensed journeyman electrician?
MR. HO: No, I -- it requires 10,000 hours, and
have like --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So you're not

licensed right now?
MR. HO: No, I quit to join the Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see. Okay. And are
the power lines, are they all underground?
MR. HO: They're all underground.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you
for that information.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions,
Members? Okay. If not, thank you.

12

Ann Pistillo, to be followed by Pam English.

13

MS. PISTILLO: Aloha, Chair and Members of the

14

Council and Planning Committee. My name is Ann Pistillo.

15

And I'm here representing myself and my husband Dominic, who

16

could not be here today. And I want to address what I

17

believe is a misinterpretation of the law. Our predicament

18

in Launiupoko is a little bit different than everybody

19

else's, so my story's a little bit different.

20

My husband and I own a small farm in Launiupoko

21

called Maui Mist Gardens. We grow exotic plants called

22

adeniums. And it's also know as the Desert Rose, which we

23

bonsai and sell. These plants are extremely valuable, and

24

they're also toxic to humans and pets. And I've attached

25

something that -- that describes that. We had -- we've had
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several thefts of our bonsai and our most rare plant
specimens. But much more important, we found children and
dogs playing in our fields, putting themselves at risk.
For these safety and security reasons and our
obvious liability, we had designed and, in 2008, began
construction of a four-foot perimeter rock wall, with a
two-foot rock and wire security fence on top. And I've
attached drawings of those and a photo of the wall without
the -- without the fence on the top.
10

The County of Maui Planning Department stopped us

11

from completing the project by ordering us to dock -- knock

12

down the rock posts for our security fence. We believe they

13

did this without understanding the purpose and safety

14

necessity of the fence. Without our fence on top of the

15

wall, our product is in jeopardy of further theft. But far

16

more important, the adenium field cannot be kept safe for

17

and from neighborhood children and dogs.

18

We explained cur safety and security needs and that

19

we are working entirely within the Maui County Code with

20

respect to definitions of walls and fences to Department

21

officials both verbally and in several letters. We were

22

then told that we needed prior Planning Department approval

23

to construct our fence. And we made that written request in

24

November. However, to date, we have received no official

25

response. Our fence remains unfinished, and the nursery has
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now been unprotected for over a year.
Our belief is the following: The State of Hawaii
needs and is -- and its constitution provides for protection
of agriculture and strictly limits the restrictions that may
be placed on agriculture. Launiupoko is a difficult and a
challenging area in which to farm. Third point is Maui
County Code clearly provides for four-foot walls and fences
on top of walls for safety purposes. Our wall is in
compliance with these limits and our uncompleted fence is
10

designed to be in compliance with the Code. County Code

11

does not require approval of compliant fences.

12

We are being unfairly and unlawfully restricted

13

from completing our necessary rock and wire fence by the

14

County Planning Department. The fence meets the definition

15

of a fence as an open barrier of post and wire with chain

16

link or similar material that closes, marks, or borders a

17

field or yard or lot and that does not limit visibility.

18

Our farm and neighborhood children and animals are being

19

placed at risk until we are allowed to complete our lawful

20

safety fence. This enforcement action by the County of Maui

21

Planning Department is simply a misinterpretation of Maui

22

County Code.

23

We formally request that this Council clarify the

24

definition of walls and fences in Agricultural Districts,

25

make clear that no prior approval of agricultural fences is
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required, and certainly re -- and certainly cease
restrictive actions on necessary and lawful agricultural
walls and fences. We also request that this Council raise
the wall height limit in Agricultural Districts to six feet
to match the Code in Rural and Residential Districts. We
believe this would solve a multitude of issues, including
being a much more reasonable and useful wall height for farm
and livestock use.
Thank you Council and Committee Members for letting
10

us come before you today and stating our case.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

12

Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay

13

seeing none, thank you.

14

MS. PISTILLO: Thank you.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pam English, to be followed

16
17

by Francis DeLoria.
MS. ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair and Members of the

18

Planning Committee. My name is Pam English. And I'm a

19

resident of Launiupoko and a Board Member of the Mahanalua

20

Nui Homeowners Association. Thank you very much for

21

bringing our dilemma to the Planning Committee. We, as a

22

group of neighbors, have been trying to resolve the issue of

23

our MECO pedestals for over a year now.

24
25

Why did we all build these MECO pedestals? The
first exhibit I've attached to my letter shows the layout of
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the subdivision at Launiupoko. The lots are rectangular and
lengthwise from mauka to makai. I highlighted a couple of
lots to show a typical flag lot, meaning a lot that has a
minimum roadway frontage, a long driveway up to the pole to
reach the main part of the lot. When we built our homes,
MECO required the meter service to be in close proximity to
the road and provided us all with an engineering -engineered detail on the exact specifications we were req -we were required to use. That's why some owners -- some
10

homeowners are not affected by this. They're on lots that

11

are not flag lots, and MECO allowed the meters to be

12

installed on the home as is customary.

13

Why did MECO require us to do this? MECO owns the

14

wiring in the main streets and all the way up to the meter

15

itself. The homeowner owns the wiring past the meter.

16

Because of the way the subdivision was designed with these

17

Lengthwise lots, MECO came up with a creative, standardized

18

solution for electrical installation. If a homeowner chose

19

to build their home far away from the roadway, MECO did not

20

want to be responsible for installation or maintenance of

21

these long extensions of wiring from the roadway.

22

In the case of a flag lot, the homeowner has no

23

choice but to build in the flag area and run the wiring

24

along the pole. The extension of the wiring to these lots

25

was very expensive, not anything a homeowner would choose to
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do, but it was the only way we were able to get electrical
service. MECO then worked with the developer to create a
standardized pedestal detail for all of these lots. I've
attached the engineering drawings that were issued to us.
In this detail, I highlighted the requirement for a minimum
height of seven feet. And on the next page, the minimum
height for the meter itself is called out at five-foot, six.
I think that was at the eye level for the meter readers.
Why within the setback location? I don't know why.
10

But I do know that it was an exact requirement because I

11

tried to move mine for aesthetic reasons and was not allowed

12

to. I went through a terrible time building the thing, had

13

numerous inspections at each step of the way. I didn't want

14

to build it in the first place, but I did want electrical

15

service. There were portions of the installation that had

16

the County electrical inspector had to look at and other

17

portions MECO had to look at. I recall this being one of

18

the most difficult things to get signed off. Now, more than

19

ten years later, my neighbors are being cited for walls in

20

the setback. I have not received a notice yet. I'm not

21

sure why. My pedestal is the same as everybody else's.

22

We've all had to build the exact same thing.

23

We ask your help to resolve this issue by reviewing

24

the ordinance and perhaps making a change to the height

25

requirement. A suggestion might be to match the Ag to the
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Rural requirements at six feet. Secondly, allow our
existing MECO pedestals to remain. Could this be done by
exempting existing pedestals that are used for electrical
service or as required by a public utility? And three,
suspend enforcement actions for noncompliance until this
issue can be resolved.
And again, thank you for your consideration of this
issue. We really appreciate it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, questions
10

for the testifier? Okay. Member Medeiros.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

12

Ms. English, thank you for your testimony. I

13

wanted to find out -- and I did ask one of the previous

14

testifiers this, but she wasn't sure about it. So were --

15

were you approached by County inspectors that you were in

16

violation of the wall height?

17

MS. ENGLISH: No, I have not received a notice --

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you didn't

19

receive anything like that. You just know of what the

20

neighbors are going through right now?

21

MS. ENGLISH: Yes. My involvement as -- I'm a

22

board member, and the neighbors have asked the board to help

23

in what capacity and to try and get together a group, and I

24

was elected the task force head (Inaudible).

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And being that the

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
60

2/9/10 PC
board is trying to resolve this through their investigation
or research on it, was there any communication with Maui
Electric Company on this?
MS. ENGLISH: Yes. And we did -- we asked MECO to
come to one of our meetings, our task force meetings. And
they, as you heard in previous testimony, gave us absolutely
no help. They -- they forgot that they had issued the -- I
mean, they -- they didn't forget. But they didn't
acknowledge that they'd issued us the exact requirements and
10

the drawings, which we showed them. And I red-lined around

11

that, it's a requirement that they -- that they issued it to

12

us. They -- they wanted to stay -- I think someone said it

13

very eloquently, they wanted to stay out of it.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So was the direct

15

question to Maui Electric asked about their specifications

16

and design of the pedestal if it was considered a wall, that

17

it would be in violation of County Code's height?

18

MS. ENGLISH: We had the discussion with them. We

19

told them why we were -- why we were having the difficulty.

20

And they basically told us you need to work that out with

21

the County.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Even though the
design was from MECO?

24

MS. ENGLISH: That's correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your
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information.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Any other
questions, Members? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Ms. English, thank you
for being here. And since you're on the task force that's
trying to resolve this, can you give us an idea of about how
many people are involved, how many homes?
MS. ENGLISH: I think it's approximately 55.
10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's a substantial amount

11

of people. And most of them, I'm assuming, have received

12

notice?

13

MS. ENGLISH: We're not sure.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're trying to -- I mean,

15

you know, it's kind of interesting that some have and some

16

haven't when the violations all seem to be, more or less,

17

the same. So we'll -- we'll have to find out why.

18

MS. ENGLISH: Yeah, we -- we're very unsure about

19

why. I know you talked a little bit about the procedure

20

that the Department goes through is that if they do receive

21

a complaint, they have to follow up with it and it gets

22

entered into their computer. And nobody has told who -- who

23

makes the complaint.

24
25

So the way that the complaints have been coming up
on the KIVA net have been in groups, as if someone was

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
62

2/9/10 PC
driving one street and -- and, you know, writing down the
addresses in a row. Why mine or Mr. Ho's right across the
street from me, I don't know why we didn't get it. But our
neighbors did. And I -- what the Department tells us is
it's a specific complaint against this specific address and
they won't act on -- they won't act on a complaint unless
they're given a name and an address from the complaintee
[sic]. So we just don't know who that is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
10
11
12
13
14

We'll look into that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other
questions? Okay. Thank you.
Now, you have signed up for another item. Do you
want to come back, or are you going to be able to --

15

MS. ENGLISH: Can I come back?

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Sure. Okay. Thank you.

17

The next testifier is Francis DeLoria, to be

18
19

followed by Frank Silva.
MR. DELORIA: Morning. My name is Francis DeLoria.

20

I live in Launiupoko. Sorry, I don't have my glasses. So

21

please bear with me for a second.

22

We have a retaining wall along the east -- I don't

23

have a pedestal issue, by the way. I have a retaining wall,

24

health and safety issue. And we have a retaining wall along

25

the east side of our property that is there for the health
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and safety issues. Our wall varies from two feet at the
front of the property that's on the road side, the access
road, to five and a half feet. It is necessary to hold back
dirt and boulders -- I have pictures here if you'd like to
see that our neighbor brought in -- that create a very
serious health issue. We have boulders rolling down onto
our property. I have a six-year-old, and there are many
children running around our property the whole time.
The -- the wall is in -- within the setback in some
10

areas, not all areas. And therefore, it does not comply

11

with the current four feet allowed in Ag area. Some places

12

it does comply, some places it doesn't. I have a picture

13

here showing that, if anybody would like to see. The wall

14

does not impose any view restrictions. Incidentally, along

15

the road side of the entrance to the driveway, the drive --

16

the wall runs perpendicular to the mountain. It's two-feet

17

high. So that part is not within the setback.

18

We understand the Rural and Residential areas are

19

allowed to be six feet in height and only require a permit

20

if they are higher than that. Yeah, it doesn't --

21

basically, that's it. Any questions? It's a health and

22

safety issue. I have pictures if anybody would like to see

23

them, if you have any questions.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Would you -- Chair?

25

MR. DELORIA: Oh, you do.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are you completed? Are you
done?
Okay. Members, questions? Go ahead, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
Would you be able to leave those pictures with our
staff if you could get them. We'd like to see them.
MR. DELORIA: Yes, I have more. Incidentally, this
picture here -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's attached.
10

MR. DELORIA: -- this is the wall. This is the

11

front. The -- on the right side is the front near the

12

thing. This shows the steep incline behind the wall. The

13

picture is here is a picture of the wall. Behind it is a

14

steep incline. And since then, our neighbor has built a

15

home on top of this hill, bringing in another seven to eight

16

feet of fill and pushing more gigantic boulders down above

17

here. So --

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member 3aisa.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I've been made aware that

21

they're in the packet. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: There are photographs

22
23
24
25

attached.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We received a lot of paper
this morning. Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, then thank you.
Thank you, Mr. DeLcria.
Frank Sylva.
MR. SYLVA: Good morning. My name is Frank Sylva.
And I want to thank you, Chairman and the Council Members
for listening to our complaints and our issues up in
Launiupoko. I am one of many owners up in Launiupoko
experiencing the hardship we're having with the -- in my
10

opinion is heavy-handed approach by the Planning Department

11

how to resolve or -- how to resolve this issue. I don't

12

want to be repetitious. A lot of people have already spoke

13

about MECO and a lot of things.

14

I just want to highlight that when I bought this

15

place in 2000, in 2001, MECO and the developer, Maui Land,

16

required us where to position our pedestal so that we could

17

have electric. I asked them to relocate the pedestal, which

18

was located on, at that time, my property on the south end

19

of the property to the north end, because my driveway was

20

going up on the north end. And we were told no, the

21

position was already picked by MECO and the developer. So I

22

just let it go and went with the program and build a

23

pedestal to the -- to their specifications.

24

When we first received our notice of violation --

25

we have three owners on the property. We got together and

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
66

2/9/10 PC
see how we was going to resolve it. You know, working with
different individuals, you get different ideas and different
approach how to settle this. Two of us chose to exercise
our rights going through a variance and represent ourselves.
One person, through personal reasons, wanted to lower it to
four feet. We asked him to let us exercise our rights and
see what we -- could be done. So that's the issue there.
Three owners; two agree and one didn't. So that caused a
little hardship on pedestals with three owners.
10

And at that time, the three of us also were asked,

11

giving us the task to get an electrical -- licensed

12

electrical to come and see how much it would cost to correct

13

our problem, which the County wanted us to build four feet.

14

Our estimate -- estimation for one electrical license,

15

electrical by the name of Kanekoa. You folks asked for the

16

name. It was Kanekoa. He's licensed. He gave us an

17

estimation of -- only he's worked as an electrical --

18

electrician would cost us little -- it would cost us to hire

19

him at all $5,000. But that wasn't the price of lowering

20

the meter and -- lowering the pedestal down four feet. I

21

would have to hire somebody else.

22

And my wife asked him what was the -- his

23

guesstimation, ballpark figure for us to do that. He

24

guesstimated probably another $5,000. So the cost would be

25

approximately $10,000 for us to lower it. And when we first
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built the meter, which was required by MECO and the
developer, the cost to us was $6,200. The point now is ten
years later, we're here. We have to lower it down two feet.
And the cost is -- costing us more than we built it in 2001.
The electrician explained to us that by lowering
the meter down to four feet with the electrical boxes, we
had to extend for the width or the length because the
pedestal -- the number of boxes we have in there for all the
owners, he couldn't get it on a pedestal, our existing
10

pedestal. He had to extend it out. And that wasn't his

11

cost. We had to hire somebody to do the job for us. So

12

that's my problem. Our problem.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Sylva, can you

13
14
15

conclude.
MR. SYLVA: Okay. Although they state that we're

16

in negligence of not complying with the law, this was built

17

in 2000/2001. But we wasn't cited by the County officials

18

or anybody when we built it in 2000/2001. We feel that if

19

we was told by the County or by the electrical people

20

representing the County, we would have complied. But to

21

come -- to tell us ten years later that now we're not in

22

compliance, I think that's wrong. Like I said, maybe we was

23

in ignorance to the law. But I think there was negligence.

24

They didn't know themselves. So causing all this hardship.

25

If they had corrected the problem in 2001, people who built

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
68

2/9/10 PC
after us, two, three, four -- up to 2008 wouldn't run into
this problem. Nobody corrected us.
So to answer your auestion about numerous
complaints, I asked -- I looked on the site -- pedestal on
the north, south, east and west of me all have pedestals.
So I'm thinking who's complaining? It cannot be my neighbor
above me or to the north, to the south, and below me -- so I
asked a County official what is numerous, who is
complaining? I don't know who is complaining. And the
10

answer was they cannot give us that information, who was the

11

complaining. It's somebody from Launiupoko. Somebody from

12

Kihei or wherever. They couldn't give us that (Inaudible).

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Sylva, okay. Thank you

14
15
16

very much.
Members, any questions? Member Nishiki, followed
by Member Medeiros.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning, Frank.

18

MR. SYLVA: Good morning.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You have not done any

20

changes yet. You said that you were -- there were three of

21

you; two was going to try to work this out, one wanted to

22

just do it?

23

MR. SYLVA: That's correct.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You have not paid any money

25

and made any changes yet?
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MR. SYLVA: Not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. SYLVA: I had applied for a variance. I

have -- I completed my packet. But I was told a few days
ago, about a week ago, to hold on because we're having a
meeting this date to see what -- if it would be resolved or
not. So I have my packet ready, but I haven't submitted it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you expended any money
to go through this process?
10

MR. SYLVA: Yes, sir, I did.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How much?

12

MR. SYLVA: Approximately, from my pocket, $1,000.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

16

Mr. Sylva, good morning.

17

MR. SYLVA: Good morning.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here

19

and thank you for the information. I had asked other

20

testifiers about this. But from your understanding, the

21

pedestal is entirely on your property, or is it on the

22

electrical easement property? Is it on the right-of-way?

23

Do you know that?

24
25

MR. SYLVA: To the best of my knowledge, it's on an
easement on my property.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The easement is
within your property lines?
MR. SYLVA: That -- That's correct. That's my
belief, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the pedestal
that is on the easement -MR. SYLVA: Hold on. Hold on. At that time when
we built it, it was on my property line.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
10

MR. SYLVA: Which I gave my daughter permission to

11

build a home. She sold it. There's a new owner on that

12

property right now. It's on his property now. It's the

13

property that my daughter sold to this person.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So that's where the
pedestal is?

16

MR. SYLVA: That's correct.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And as far as your

18

understanding, you did mention that in 2001, MECO and the

19

developer gave the property owners the requirements of

20

constructing the pedestals?

21

MR. SYLVA: Yes, sir.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

23

MR. SYLVA: They did, and with a specific location

24
25

where. I wanted to have it moved. They told me no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MR. SYLVA: That was the location they wanted us t

build a pedestal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, and we heard
that from another testifier too, that they wanted to move
theirs and it wasn't allowed. So thank you for coming this
morning all the way from Launiupoko to testify.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Sylva. The -10

the -- how many meters are on that one pedestal?

11

MR. SYLVA: I believe it's five. Five meters.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So -- and that covers

13

like two TMKs?

14

MR. SYLVA: Three.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Three TMKs?

16

MR. SYLVA: Three owners.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, but I'm just talking

18

about tax map keys. There's two different lots?

19

MR. SYLVA: I believe two TMKs.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So there's two TMKs, okay. So

21

then two owners -- there would be two dwellings on one lot,

22

and then one dwelling on the other lot?

23

MR. SYLVA: On my lot, there's two dwellings.

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

25

MR. SYLVA: On the other lot, I believe there's
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three dwellings.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. But they're not -they're not, you know, like one of them is like a, you know,
farm storage barn or whatever? They're not all three
residences?
MR. SYLVA: I don't know. It's not my place or my
building, so I'm just speaking for myself.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.
MR. SYLVA: You're welcome.
10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other
questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

12

MR. SYLVA: Thank you, Chair.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is Tom

14
15
16
17
18

Welch. But you're signed up for PC-2.
MR. WELCH: Would it be okay, Mr. Chairman, if I
testified on this now?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You're not able to
stay for that item?

19

MR. WELCH: I've got to get going.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead. This will

21
22

be on PC-2, Members.
MR. WELCH: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of

23

the Committee. Thank you for letting me testify out of

24

order on another issue. This relates to the proposed Maui

25

Island Plan.
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There's a very important technical issue that

relates to the plan that I would like to bring before you.
I will testify again as the hearings go through, but I'd
like to get the subject, please, before you for your
consideration. I've submitted written testimony and an
exhibit, which will be circulated to you that sets forth the
issue. There's a really important technical issue in the
community planning process, General Plan process, in zoning.
That's the issue of inconsistency.
10

This plan, in many areas, automatically changes the

11

Community Plan and General Plan designation, the individual

12

parcels; in many cases, making them inconsistent with the

13

existing zoning. I've testified twice before the Planning

14

Commission and submitted written testimony showing that

15

where a property is located in the SMA, the mere fact of the

16

inconsistency has the effect of prohibiting all construction

17

of every kind and for every purpose or use on that property;

18

single family dwelling, some grading, anything. You can't

19

do it. This is how the County interprets the law under

20

Chapter 205A and the regulations.

21

The inconsistency itself -- it's very existence --

22

strips the land of all economically beneficial and

23

productive use of the land. I've cited U.S. Supreme Court

24

cases on the point. In the recent case involving Doug White

25

in Lahaina, this was the issue. And it cost the County over
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$1 million dollars to resolve it. It was the cen

was

a central issue in the Montana Beach case, which you all
remember, which cost the County over $10 million. And there
are two cases pending in Palauea on this very issue, where
the plaintiffs are claiming damages in excess of
$50 million.
Sections 1 and 2 of the Plan will sweep additional
parcels into this inconsistency status. If you're a land
owner in this category, you have a dilemma. If you want to
10

build a house permitted by zoning, permitted by State Land

11

Use law, and -- but with an inconsistent Community Plan

12

designation, the Planning Department refuses to even process

13

your application for an SMA exemption or approval. The

14

Planning Commission is prohibited from even considering the

15

proposal on its merits for an SMA permit.

16

The result is automatic, it's not administrative,

17

and it's not appealable. The owner is left only with two

18

options: One, to sue the County for inverse condemnation,

19

violating -- you know, claiming violation of the

20

Constitution for stripping your land of the value, which

21

is -- there's a lot of case law supporting that --

22

supporting that kind of case; or two, to ask this Council

23

for a legislative act to change the Community Plan zoned --

24

Community Plan to bring it into consistency with the zoning.

25

That process is expensive and slow and, if turned down,
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there's no appeal because it's a legislative process.
You know, if we're talking about a ten-lot
subdivision, maybe that's the way it should be. But for
somebody who just wants to build a house, it's just not
fair, particularly if the house is permitted by zoning.
So I've proposed a solution, a simple savings
clause, one-sentence savings clause that I've put before you
in my written testimony for consideration, which -- which
will help to avoid unintentional consequences for people who
10

want to build a single-family residence. And basically, it

11

says that -- that in -- in applying this plan, if -- if a --

12

as to a particular parcel, if the -- if the zoning

13

permits -- permits a single-family dwelling and your

14

Community Plan and zoning are inconsistent, the Plan itself

15

will not be considered inconsistent. The Community Plan and

16

General Plan would not be considered inconsistent for the

17

purpose of being able to enter the SMA process.

18

It doesn't give you a free pass. All it does is

19

say forget the inconsistency, it's not inconsistent for SMA

20

purposes, and we will process your application; go before

21

the Planning Commission; establish lack of environmental

22

harm and cumulative impacts --

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Welch --

24

MR. WELCH: -- on all the standards.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- can you conclude?
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MR. WELCH: No, that's

. Thank you. And sorry

to talk loud and fast, but I had to get it all in. It's a
complicated subject for three minutes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, are there any
questions for the testifier? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Mr. Welch, the wording
that you have -- you know, I haven't checked this with
Corporation Counsel, but I -- I will try and deal with it.
I'm a little concerned about just, you know, the
10

construction of your language because it's not clear. If we

11

added in something to the effect that where they would

12

ordinarily be entitled or where they would ordinarily be

13

permitted to go through an SMA process, that's your thrust

14

of this?

15

MR. WELCH: Yes, it's to -- it's to be able to get

16

into the process instead of being cut off, not being able to

17

even ask for the SMA approval or the SMA exemption based on

18

cumulative impact.

19
20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I'll ask
Corporation Counsel when we get to that point.

21

MR. WELCH: And I've -- and I've asked only for

22

single-family residences, not for other kinds of development

23

or subdivisions or anything. And the idea of that is that

24

it saves the const -- saves the County the constitutional

25

problem.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. I had tried to put

1

2

through an ordinance previously that corrected any

3

inadvertent mapping areas -- errors which created

4

inconsistency, like on the Doug White property.

5

MR. WELCH: Yeah.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That was a little bit

7

different, though. That was an actual mapping error that

8

had been inadvertently adopted with the Community Plan.

9

MR. WELCH: That -- that's correct.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

11

MR. WELCH: But the issue -- the underlying issue

12
13

was the reason it was settled.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah. And -- and I

14

will maybe -- you know, I'll find out from Corporation

15

Counsel if we can, you know, deal with that. Thank you.

16

MR. WELCH: Thank you, Council Member.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other

18

questions? Member Molina.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

20

Good morning. Mr. Welch, can you cite in the Maui

21

Island Plan where you see potentially this type of

22

occurrence could happen. I mean, what regions, are you

23

talking about -- West Maui, South Maui?

24
25

MR. WELCH: They're sprinkled here and there.
know one -- one specific case that is in Maliko Gulch, where
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somebody wants to build a house. And they will not be able
to by virtue of the automatic designation of that area. And
I have some other examples too, but I didn't bring them and
can't cite them specifically.
But this problem exists under today's Plan as well,
of course. Those cases in Palauea are a good case in point.
And I would -- I think that in -- in the exercise of the
community planning process in this -- in this process for
the Maui Island Plan that it -- that the issue of
10

inconsistency should be dealt with on a -- on a larger

11

scale. Even though we do have some additional ones that

12

are -- that are brought in, it should address the existing

13

problem as well.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So this is something that

15

not only affects the so-called individuals with the deep

16

pockets, but the everyday person. Someone with a family

17

subdivision --

18

MR. WELCH: Yes. Yeah.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- could have impact if

20

left, I guess, as is as you're stating?

21

MR. WELCH: Correct.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

23

Thank you, Chairman.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Balsa.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Welch,
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for being here. So I think I heard you say -- and I want to
kind of tie you down. Will you be back to help us when we

get to this stage of the Plan review, please, when we get to
implementation to remind us?
MR. WELCH: I will. Thank you for inviting me. I
will be glad to and be willing to and eager to come.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now, thank you very much.
You know, reviewing the General Plan is -- is a lot of work
and a lot of paper and a lot of hearing and hours and hours
10

and hours of trying to concentrate. So something may slip

11

through the cracks if, you know, we're not reminded of it.

12

So thank you very much for coming to offer your advice. And

13

we'll discuss it and make sure we do the right thing. Thank

14

you.

15

MR. WELCH: Thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just remember, Tom Welch is

18

not God.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members --

20

MR. WELCH: I beg to differ -- oh, sorry.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are there any other

22

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

23

MR. WELCH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is David

25

Nutter, to be followed by Richard Lopez.
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Members, just so you know, I have only one other

testifier on this Item Number 20. And if we can complete
that, then we'll move ahead.
Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Nutter.
MR. NUTTER: Yes. My name is David Nutter. I'm a
resident of Launiupoko. I'd like to speak to the -- or in
support of the previous members of the -- our community in
regard to the pedestal question. I've received no notice -notification. However, on -- because it has been brought up
10

as a community, yeah, interest area, I've contacted

11

electricians and had the opportunity to talk to two of them,

12

engineers at MECO. We were discussing a photovoltaic system

13

on my premises, but I captured them in to discuss the

14

problem of the pedestal, which they didn't want to deal with

15

at all.

16

And my electrician has included a copy that's an

17

attachment to Debbie -- Debbie Arakaki's letter to the

18

Council Members regarding the problem -- the problems of

19

modifying our particular pedestal. As I indicated before, I

20

have not received any citation. However, I'm concerned of

21

this -- the complaint factor, which has been brought up.

22

It's almost, from my point of view as a -- a resident of the

23

area, almost is a frivolous proposition and very

24

time-consuming as far as paperwork, procedural matters, and

25

so forth, and actually apologize for utilizing the important

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
81

2/9/10 PC
time of the Committee for the -- for something of this
nature, which I felt should have been solved maybe many
years ago.
Thank you very much for the opportunity to speak to
you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
Members, any questions for the testifier: Seeing
none, thank you.
Next testifier is Richard Lopez, followed by Tyler
10
11

Coons.
MR. LOPEZ: Good morning, County Council Members.

12

Thank you very much for having us here. My name is Richard

13

Lopez. My wife and I purchased our home that's referred to

14

as Launiupoko, but it's really Mahanalua Nui. And we

15

purchased in 2005. I've been a resident of Hawaii for 31

16

years. And this was our dream home. We sold everything we

17

had to purchase our home.

18

We are actually on an agricultural condominium. We

19

share the electrical pedestal with the Browns, whom you

20

heard earlier. Their -- the wall that they refer to is

21

actually an electrical pedestal, and it measures seven feet

22

by 22 feet. It's a large pedestal wall. It contains the

23

electrical, phone systems for four homes. Our driveway --

24

we're on a flag lot. And it's situated in such a manner

25

that the pedestal wall is on our property. And we have all
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four homes, electrical meters on that. We purchased the
property as it was. We feel like victims in this.
I have talked to an electrician, a gentleman named
Lloyd Leverett [sic]. He brought up another point that
hasn't been brought up today so far was that to lower the
meters within the four-foot area would create a hazard in
that if there were a heavy rain and flood, that it would
affect and could knock out the electricity.
We have no other place to put this electric -10

electrical pedestal. Our house sits 500 feet -- actually,

11

more than 500 feet away from the boundary line. We're on a

12

very long flag lot. Our neighbors who have the other

13

agricultural condominium. They own the -- these are the

14

Kevans who could not be here this morning, own the home, the

15

cottage that they purchased from the same developer. And

16

they are over 750 feet away. I had asked Conklin Wright,

17

who had issued our citation letter, where we could put the

18

electrical. And he said on the house. But the -- Maui

19

Electric would not allow that because of the distance.

20

I would like to propose that the residential and

21

agricultural walls or pedestals be the same height, six

22

feet. You know, one of the specifications saying about the

23

walls says that it -- it could -- it is a concerns for view

24

planes. If you drive up in Launiupoko, you don't see any

25

view planes obstructed by any of these walls or pedestals.
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I think it would be more of a concern in a residential area,
yet you are allowed to build a six-foot high wall without a
permit, according to the guidelines.
I think, you know, everything else I would say
would be redundant. So we just ask for your understanding
and hope that we can resolve this matter. It has been very
stressful. We have already put out hundreds of dollars to
try to do this. I've been trying to file a variance
application for eight months -10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Lopez, can you conclude.

11

MR. LOPEZ: Yeah. I've been trying to file this

12

for eight months, and it keeps coming back with additional

13

requirements.

14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other
questions for the testifier?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This may be redundant also,

19

Mr. Lopez, but I need to ask it just so that we can perhaps

20

get a halt or -- or -- or address this in some way

21

legislatively. You have expended money also?

22

MR. LOPEZ: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how --

24

MR. LOPEZ: The application for the variance alone

25

is $550.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. And -- and then the
Planning Department's response to you, because now you're
going through the variance, the communication on how to best
address it is not in the way that they can accept?
MR. LOPEZ: Accept the variance?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Accept a solution. They're
saying basically if you want to do anything, go to the
variance, you're in violation?
MR. LOPEZ: Correct.
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

12

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

13

Tyler's Coons?

14

MR. COONS: Good morning, everyone. I have the

15

unfortunate situation of having both of these situations. I

16

have two lots up there in Launiupoko. The first situation

17

that I have is the pedestal situation, which you've heard a

18

lot of testimony on. As stated previously, we were all

19

instructed by MECO and our relative contractors that this is

20

what needed to be built, so we all went along with the

21

program. I guess, just without being too redundant, I would

22

just ask that we, you know, stop the enforcement on this and

23

without levying any penalties or fines so that we can get

24

this addressed and come to a reasonable solution for

25

everyone on that.
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The second situation is for the -- I have a
retaining wall that's in the setback on a lot that I
recently purchased that is -- it's over the four feet. And
there are other similar walls. In fact, really, really
similar walls in there that have been permitted that are -you know, they're exactly the same as mine. So I don't see
why that I wouldn't be able to get a permit. I was told by
Bert that, you know, don't even bother coming in and trying
o get it for health or safety because we're not even going
10

to give it to you. You can apply for it, you can put

11

something in writing, but I'm not going to approve it, is

12

what he said.

13

So I'm a little confused by that, how one person

14

can get a permit and -- with the same situation, another one

15

can't. That's pretty much all I have to say.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

17

Member Baisa, question?

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much,

19
20

Mr. Chair.
And thank you, Mr. Coons, for being here today. I

21

have a question. You say you've encountered both issues,

22

both the pedestal and the wall?

23

MR. COONS: Yeah.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You've received notice of

25

violation?
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MR. COONS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you share with us, have

you been told what the penalties and fines are for this
violation?
MR. COONS: I haven't been shared exactly what the
penalties would be. Actually, you know, the County
inspectors and -- they've been pretty, you know, pretty much
lax on the enforcement; like we'll work with you, we're
trying to work with you. But how long is that going to go
10

on? And we can't get building permits. We can't really

11

sell these lots. I mean, there's -- you know, it's a tough

12

time right now. I think we all need money. I need to sell

13

some property. I mean, I, you know, I struggle every month

14

just to make the payments on what I do have. And without

15

the resolution of this, how is that going to be afforded?

16

How are we going to be able to do that? So I just hope that

17

we can come to a quick and inexpensive solution to solve

18

these situations.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.

20

MR. COONS: I'm of the same mindset. I can't

21

imagine who would complain about this. I mean, it's just

22

kind of -- it's kind of odd.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. -- Mr. Coons, thank you

24

very much. The reason I ask the question was several

25

testifiers mentioned as a solution, they would like to see
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the penalties and fines stop. And we will check with the
Department what those are. I thought maybe you had gotten a
letter or something or a demand for money.
MR. COONS: Oh, I have letters. I haven't had a
demand for money. It's just a -- it's more like a -scare-tactic letters; we will be fining you and this and
that if these things aren't addressed within the next 30
days and that type of thing like that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. All right. Thank you
10

very much.

11
12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions,
Members?

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member

15
16

Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm just curious who you're

17

listening to. Who was that person that told you don't

18

bother to go in for a permit for a retaining wall?

19

MR. COONS: No, not --

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Was that someone --

21

MR. COONS: No, not to go in for a permit, but

22

don't -- don't come in and -- basically, Section 19.30A-3030

23

[sic] says that the Department of Public Works can issue a

24

permit for such walls that are in the setback that are over

25

four feet if it would be for health or safety purposes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's right.
MR. COONS: Yes, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That is the law.
MR. COONS: Yes, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so they're saying that

under this law, you shouldn't go and apply for one,
Mr. Coons?
MR. COONS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Again, who said that to
10

you?

11
12

MR. COONS: Bert Ratte, the gentleman who would
approve this.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions,

15
16
17

Members?
Okay. The Chair has one question for you,
Mr. Coons.

18

MR. COONS: Yes.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you clarify? You

20

currently have a retaining wall or you are proposing to

21

apply for a permit --

22
23
24
25

MR. COONS: I purchased a lot that had a retaining
wall that was pre-existing.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I see. So you have a
preexisting retaining wall?
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MR. COONS: Correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And this is what you're
trying to get a permit for then?
MR. COONS: Correct, to be an after-the-fact
permit. That is correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Okay. Members, any other questions?
Okay. Thank you.
MR. COONS: Okay. Thank you.
10

...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Coons was the last

12

person signed up for this PC-20 item. Is there anyone else

13

here that would like to testify on this item? Okay. Seeing

14

none, then what the Chair would like to do is take a recess

15

for ten minutes, and we will reconvene at 11:05. And then

16

we will continue deliberations with the Department. Okay.

17

Recess.

...(gavel)...

18

RECESS:

10:51 a.m.

19

RECONVENE:

11:10 a.m.

20
21
22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Okay.

Members, we will reconvene our Planning Committee meeting.
Members, at this time, what the Chair would like to

23

do is call upon the Planning -- Deputy Planning Director to

24

make some opening comments on this item, and then I'll open

25

up for questions and answers. Okay. Following that,
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Members, we have one more item, which is 19, that's going to
precede our other item, PC-2. So depending on how much time
this -- this portion takes, we will either take up Item 19
with the testifiers. And we have just three testifiers on
Item 19. And then we will be taking a break. And I had
staff to try and poll you and see what time we would
reconvene for the PC-2. I'd like to, at least, get to some
point to announce that so that people who are here can
plan -- plan their time and their day in terms of how to
10
11

participate in PC-2.
Okay. So let's begin with the Deputy Director of

12

Planning, Kathleen Aoki.

13

ITEM NO. 20

14
15

MAXIMUM WALL HEIGHT IN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
(C.C. No. 10-12)

MS. AOKI: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Chair

16

and Council Members. Obviously, there's been a lot of

17

testimony this morning. And I'll just make a brief opening

18

statement. And I'll be prepared for, I'm sure, a lot of

19

questions.

20

There's -- there's been a lot of comments about the

21

Department picking on Launiupoko. And I'd like it to be

22

clear that we don't go out and pick on any one subdivision.

23

We're generally complaint driven. I did inform some of the

24

land owners that questioned me about these complaints that

25

in one day, we received 17 complaints. And then it just
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festered thereafter. And yes, we do not let people know who
the complainants are. There's been a lot of issues with
that with retaliation and things of that nature. And we've
been advised by Corp. Counsel that it's generally accepted
practice that we do not divulge complainants' names.
Essentially, the Planning Department -- you know,
this ordinance was passed after a lot cf testimony and
debate between the Council Members back in 1997, '98, '99.
It stemmed from the Rural and Ag bill. And I went through
10

those meeting minutes to kind of see where this wall height

11

issue stemmed from, why did it come up. And one of the --

12

the -- the comments that I keep hearing is that this started

13

as a result of view planes. And I have John Summers here

14

who, as the Administrator of Long Range and also one of

15

the -- the main people involved with that update can -- can

16

offer you some more information on that.

17

But it wasn't just about view planes. It was about

18

trying to keep the characteristic of Rural and Ag outside of

19

the residential area. In other words, there was a lot of

20

testimony about the transition, that we wanted the Rural

21

communities and Ag communities to look that way. So there

22

was a lot of discussion about the six-foot height and the

23

four-foot height. And four foot was what was voted on by

24

the Members. There was concern about just the very nature

25

of these walls creating kind of compound-looking areas or
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gentlemen estates or gated communities. So there was a lot
of discussion back then.
As you know, the Planning Department is required to
enforce these laws. I don't really have a choice to turn my
head and tell the inspectors not to follow up on a
complaint. That's what they're required to do. I would
like to let everybody know that out of -- I have a lot of
statistics here that I can provide for you. Granted, this
was about two weeks old now. But out of 59 citations that
10

have been issued for the Launiupoko area, only one has

11

received a violation warn -- a violation. So only one has

12

been fined. And this person received their first -- the

13

violation back in 2008. So it's before a lot of these

14

warnings went out. So we are trying to work with them and

15

try to get to compliance. Our goal is compliance before

16

fining, because we want compliance.

17

Launiupoko is not the only one that has -- that has

18

received these kind of complaints. I have a folder here

19

with just a few other wall issues that we're dealing with.

20

And they range from Haiku, Kula, Kapalua, Honolua Ridge,

21

Haiku. So as much as they may feel that they're being

22

picked on, they're not. We get these complaints all over.

23

I mean, we serve the County. We get them from all over the

24

County. So we're dealing with those. And I mean, I'm sure

25

I could go on and on and on. So maybe I'll just stop there
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and be open for questions and answer them as they -- they
come about.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you Deputy
Director.
Okay. Members, we'll start with questions. And
I'm going to begin with -- why don't we go right down the
line, and I'll start from my right to the left. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman, thank you. I
don't have any questions at this time.
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

11

Member Nishik_.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Kathleen, I think the --

13

the most glaring concern that I've heard today was the

14

pedestal.

15

MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I guess the

17

interpretation under 19.30A.030, in which you're probably

18

citing this law and calling a pedestal a wall.

19

MS. AOKI: Right.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And your comments on this,

21

just because this is one that I think, if anything, bothers

22

me the most.

23

MS. AOKI: Okay. Sure. I'll -- I'll read for you

24

under Title 19, the definition of a wall. "Wall means a

25

constructed solid barrier of concrete, stone, brick, tile,
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wood, or similar type of material that closes, marks or
borders a field, yard or lot and that limits visibility and
restricts the flow of air and light."
So when we looked at how these pedestals were
built -- and a lot of you have this in your packets -they're built -- they're CMU walls. They're built with
concrete. They have an artificial rock face to them. Not
all of them do. Some of them are just CMU walls. And the
meters are attached to these walls. So they're not
10

independently standing up with the wall just kind of

11

covering them, they're attached. So they're serving as a

12

support for the meters.

13
14
15

So under all those conditions, we determined that
they were walls.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And -- and then the

16

compromise that Irene McPhee spoke about, where the law --

17

the wall was four feet, so that complied. Then they were

18

proposing to build a wooden or whatever -- I don't know what

19

the material was --

20

MS. AOKI: Right.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to me, and -- and that's

22

legal. On -- to address the concern for this pedestal --

23

MS. AOKI: Right.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and then connect.

25

MS. AOKI: There have been instances where --
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and -- and we have to understand that every case, like one
of the testifier said, is different. So take this for what
it's worth. But people that have come in, some of them have
come in and said can we put this fence -- you know, knock
the wall down to four feet and we'll put the fence on top.
Well, the fence, by definition, has to have at least 50
percent visibility through it. Okay. So what happens is
you have all these meters that are sticking up a -- above
this four-foot height, you're going to put a fence, it's not
10

going to meet that 50 percent requirement.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you --

12

MS. AOKI: There's al --

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.

14

MS. AOKI: There's also the concern that we had

15

with the safety factor, whether or not this would be enough

16

support or meet electrical kind of code or specs that you're

17

attaching this pedestal now to this opening -- open kind of

18

fence, depending on what it's made out of it.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If they went wide --

22

because some of these circumstances may have six, or

23

whatever connections, 50 percent, they may meet that. And

24

if they meet that, now that's fine. But now you're --

25

you're worried about what that fence, or whatever that's
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going to be constructed with the material.
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If you have a problem, then
you need to say what your problem is so that people can go
on in trying to address it.
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But if you're still -- and
I'm -- I'm listening to you today.
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You're not -- you've not

11

bought -- or you don't really have a solution on saying,

12

okay, then, you can use this material or whatever material

13

to address this concern. I think what you're saying carte

14

blanche is we're not going to accept any of this -- these

15

solutions, or you're not proposing any solution for them.

16

So how can someone that's looking to work with you --

17

MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- get any indication of

19

what you're -- you're -- you're going to accept? And to me,

20

that's your responsibility.

21

MS. AOKI: I agree. And we have provided

22

solutions. We've talked to them. We've -- there's a couple

23

of solutions. They can either lower it. They can move it

24

out of the setback, which some homeowners up in Launiupoko

25

do have these pedestal walls built outside of the setback.
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So it is possible to build these things outside of the
setback. They exist now. When we -- and, again, I think
what you need to understand is we do -- we do support the
fence concept. And John Summers can attest to that. But
you have to meet the definition of a fence too.
And the definition of a fence means an open barrier
of post and wood, chain, chain link or similar material that
closes, marks, borders a field, yard or lot and that does
not limit by more than 50 percent visibility or the flow of
10

air and light. So if you have a situation like this one,

11

where they're trying to put a fence, you're not going to

12

meet that 50 percent criteria. That's the issue.

13
14

And like I said, a -- each case is -- is -- is
looked at individually.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Differently, yeah.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I -- I -- I understand

18
19

that and -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki. Yeah, I

20

want to move down the line so I've allowed you three

21

questions.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'll ask my last

23

question right now. Just so that -- we've heard the cost

24

that's being incurred because of this specific pedestal.

25

What -- or can it be where the -- until the Council gets a
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grip on this and looks at -- and in working with you, can
you temporarily halt enforcement?
MS. AOKI: I'd like to defer that to Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Corp. Counsel.
MR. HOPPER: Allow me to look up the Code section
for enforcement. One moment, please.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member -MR. HOPPER: Actually, the answer at this point, I
need to find the specific section so I can actually cite it.
10

But the Administrative Enforcement sections of the County

11

Code state that, "In lieu of or in addition to enforcement

12

by criminal prosecution, the Director of Public Works, the

13

Director of Environmental Management, or the Director of

14

Water Supply or the Planning Director" -- I'm sorry. "If

15

the Planning Director determines that any persons who are

16

violating provisions of Title" -- in 19, this would be a

17

provision -- "or any rules adopted thereunder, the Director

18

may have the person served by mail or personal delivery with

19

a notice of violation and order pursuant to this chapter and

20

such Administrative Rules as the Director may adopt."

21

This does give discretion to the Planning

22

Department in issuing a notice of violation in a given case

23

if it would want to, but that would be up to the Department

24

in a particular case. And I would advise generally the

25

Department should be consistent in the way that it decides
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to, you know, issue the violations. But under your Code
right now, it does say the Department may issue a notice of
violation. This does -- would not change the fact that the
projects, if they -- if they have walls over four feet are
in violation of the Code. Those would be illegal walls.
But the Department can decide not to issue a notice of
violation in a given case because the language states may.
Now, if you get into an issue, such as selective
enforcement, generally there's -- there's not much case law
10

to support a claim against the County for something like

11

selective enforcement unless the -- unless the decision to

12

selectively enforce has to do with some sort of protected

13

class, such as race, sex, religious belief -- things like

14

that. And we did have occasion to review this in terms of

15

the transient vacation rental issue that we had, I think, a

16

couple of years ago.

17

So it does appear that the language says may issue

18

a notice of violation so that the Department can decide and

19

exercise discretion in a given case whether or not to issue

20

a violation. Whether or not the Department feels that it

21

has a basis to decide not to issue one or to issue one in a

22

given case is a departmental decision. You know, the

23

Council could change the law, but the Department is the one

24

who would decide in a given case if they believe that there

25

is a violation of the law.
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So the issuance of a violation is discretionary.

2

It requires a notice of warning as well under the

3

Department's Administrative Rules before -- before

4

proceeding with the notice of violation itself. So -- so

5

that's what the law says at this point.

6
7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,
Corporation Counsel.

8

Member Medeiros.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

10

For the Department, I wanted to ask -- and I

11

brought this question up a lot to the different testifiers.

12

If the wall as we're describing it, as some people say that

13

is the pedestal, was a requirement of Maui Electric and the

14

developer, does it fall under the Department of Planning's

15

purview as far as the design specifications of that

16

pedestal, or does it come under Public Works DSA?

17

MS. AOKI: I think you have two different issues

18

you're looking at. You look at the -- you have to look at

19

the actual structure and what they're building. And that

20

would fall under Public Works and the Building Code. And

21

then you have zoning regulations, which is setbacks and

22

where are you going to put whatever it is that you're

23

building.

24
25

So Zoning or the Planning Department was never a
part of this agreement, if you will, between West Maui Land
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and MECO. And it doesn't negate zoning or any kind of

2

County laws. So, you know, anybody can decide what it is

3

that they want to do, but they still have to meet whether

4

it's State regulation or County regulations.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And tell me if the

6

Planning Department had any part of the pedestal being

7

planned for the locations they were planned for and that --

8

because you're talking about violation of the height of the

9

re -- the walls.

10

MS. AOKI: Correct.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And -- and -- and the

12

Planning Department's since these pedestals are considered

13

walls, okay. So what is the requirement by the Planning

14

Department in the design of this subdivision, this

15

development, that these pedestals we're going to put

16

there -- and they're designed for approximately seven-feet

17

high. Who was supposed to have caught that and said, well,

18

this violates our current Code of wall height? Who was

19

responsible for that?

20

MS. AOKI: A lot of times when construction is

21

going on, we don't have the manpower to send out zoning

22

inspectors to see if they're in compliance of zoning. We,

23

like I said earlier, are complaint driven. So you -- you've

24

got an issue where these walls are being built, they're

25

being built even in excess of six feet, and they don't even
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have building permits. So they're illegal walls, to begin

2

with, as far as building code is concerned. Then you've got

3

the issue of the height, you know, that it doesn't comply

4

with the Ag section of being under -- or four feet and

5

under.

6

So what we've -- what we've worked with Public

7

Works is if we get them into compliance of four feet, then

8

there's no building permit issue because you only need a

9

building permit if it's over six feet. So it's kind of a

10

chicken-and-egg thing.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

12

MS. AOKI: But we will -- if they comply, they will

13

lower it and lower it down below six feet, then you don't

14

have a building permit issue.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So because Maui Electric

16

provided the design specifications for these pedestals but

17

did not construct it themselves, the property owners were

18

responsible to construct them. Were the property owners

19

held to send these design specifications through the review

20

process?

21
22
23

MS. AOKI: They should have, yes. But they didn't
if they were over six feet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So -- so what

24

you're saying is as far as the specifications of these

25

walls, that it's really Public Works that would have
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reviewed that?
MS. AOKI: If Public Works was made aware of it.
See, a lot of times -- and we have Milton Arakawa here.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

5

MS. AOKI: But I'll say what I think I know to be

6

true. On the plat maps, you know, they're just lines on a

7

map. So it might show the easement and a dotted line and

8

where things will go, but it's not the actual structures

9

that are being shown on these plat maps. So it shows where

10

electrical and utilities go. They don't know what's being

11

built. We don't know what's being built. And unless -- for

12

example, I have here where an -- an applicant who's building

13

in Ag now actually gave Public Works their -- their plans

14

for a six-foot wall. They want a permit. Public Works will

15

take any money you give them. If you want a permit, even

16

though you don't need a permit, they'll issue you a permit.

17

So this particular applicant wants to build a

18

six-foot wall in Ag, and it got routed up to Planning. We

19

looked at it and we said no, sorry, you can't have a

20

six-foot wall. So it has since been sent back. So if we're

21

notified of what's going on, we can send it back.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I -- I

23

don't want to prolong this anymore because I think the

24

appropriate questions might have to go to Public Works on

25

this. But my concern is when -- when you receive
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construction plans for the project, it has to point out all

2

of that. I don't think it's after the fact kind of planning

3

that you build a subdivision, and then you go and decide

4

where you're going to put these pedestals. Isn't that kind

5

of preplanned with the entire project?

6

MS. AOKI: Well, I don't know if they necessarily

7

have to give in plans for -- they don't have to give in

8

plans for six-foot wall, for one. And, two --

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well -- well, these walls
were more than six foot.

11
12

MS. AOKI: Right. And they didn't -- that's what
I'm saying.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

14

MS. AOKI: There were no permits issued.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, I think --

16

MS. AOKI: And then just to follow up too is

17

that -- just like my zoning inspectors don't know electrical

18

code. The electrical inspectors may not necessarily know

19

zoning code. So --

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros, you want

22
23

to

-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And Mr. Chairman, yeah, I

24

think, I'll leave it when we -- if you do call down

25

representatives from the Department of Public Works --
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2
3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- we can ask them some of

these questions.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And just finally. You

6

know, Maui Electric is here. Their representatives are

7

here. I don't know if they want to come down as resource

8

people. But it would be very interesting to ask them

9

questions about how this thing works, where they provide the

10

design --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Let me answer that.

12

I already took an opportunity to -- to talk to them. And

13

they're not here in -- in this capacity --

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to address any questions.

16

So they're here to testify on another item only.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And this would be

22

just -- rather than focus on all the issues that have to do

23

with citing and all this stuff, I'd rather focus on a

24

solution.

25

So is it possible, do you believe, to work with our
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Council Committee and come up with an ordinance or some kind

2

of means of addressing possible exemption of these pedestal

3

walls where it's for a utility purposes? Is it possible for

4

the Administration to support some type of solution of that

5

type rather than going back and rehashing all of these, you

6

know, who said what citations --

7

MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- and then address the

9

resolution with any fines or anything where -- where

10

particularly, the pedestals, if we could address that? Is

11

it possible for us to work together?

12

MS. AOKI: It's possible for anything, Council

13

Member. I think the thing is, you know, we've -- it was --

14

it was the Council, the County Council that adopted this law

15

back in 1998. We supported it. The Planning Department

16

supported that law when it was adopted. And we're here

17

today not on -- we're here today because we're being called

18

in.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

20

MS. AOKI: So we really don't take any issue

21

with -- with the way the law is written. It has been

22

complied with by many others. Actually, even within

23

Launiupoko. If you drive around Launiupoko, you can see

24

beautiful little three-foot rock walls. And then you see

25

tall walls. And so you can see that there are people that
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have complied and over the past -- past ten years have
complied.

3

If it's the Council's purview, you know, to change

4

the law, you know, we're open to that. But I -- I think,

5

you know, it's -- it's -- it's up to you.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I -- I know this is

7

similar to -- although, it's a different area. Kaanapali

8

Royal has the same, you know, kind of thing with lanais

9

being, you know, additional structures and all that. I just

10

prefer, Mr. Chair, to try to focus on a solution.

11

So to Corporation Counsel, because this is an issue

12

where you have an existing ordinance and it's being

13

interpreted in a specific way, it -- do you see any way that

14

we could amend or create a -- some type of, at least --

15

either grandfathering or some kind of exemption for these

16

pedestals being included in that definition? Is there

17

something -- or is it a different section of the Code that

18

we would have to deal with, like on electrical?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Corporation

19
20

Counsel.

21

MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

22

The question would really be based on what exactly

23

you want to do. There's a lot of different situations. So

24

exempting a pedestal will not solve all of the --

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.
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MR. HOPPER: -- people you've heard. Because some

2

people just have walls. They don't have electrical pedestal

3

walls, they have walls without anything attached to them,

4

and they're over four feet. And some have -- may have walls

5

that are, you know, with the electrical boxes on them that

6

are seven feet, eight feet. So it all depends on what

7

solution you would like.

8
9

If I would generally recommend a solution, it would
be to deal comprehensively with the Ag District, make it

10

something like six feet, or something like that, rather than

11

trying to carve out an exception because that can be

12

difficult. Of course, whatever the Council, you know, would

13

want to do, we could help you to write. And whatever

14

proposal there would be would have to go through the

15

Planning Commissions, and there would have to be discussion

16

on that. Because you have an existing law that says four

17

foot is the limit. And so to change that limit or to exempt

18

something from the definition, you would need to amend that

19

law.

20

So there's probably a variety of ways to deal with

21

a variety of situations. I don't know if there's one

22

comprehensive fix that will, you know, a six-foot wall

23

height, for example, someone who had a seven-foot tall wall

24

would still be out of compliance.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right. Right.
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MR. HOPPER: So it -- there's a variety of

2

different ways. And I would really need to know all of the

3

different situations and really, most importantly, what the

4

Council wants to accomplish. You know, who do they believe

5

should be exempted or who should be the focus of -- of that

6

new law. And, you know, a new law, in my view, would be

7

required based on the -- you know, the Administration's

8

enforcement of the law as it is. So exactly what you would

9

want to do, we would need to sort of know that in order to

10

effectively draft -- draft a particular bill.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And then one additional

12

question of Ms. Aoki. With regard to the other areas of the

13

County where the wall height has been an issue, are there

14

similar situations where these pedestals have been required

15

in other subdivisions or Ag subdivisions as far as Maui

16

Electric goes, or is this only just in this subdivision?

17

MS. AOKI: This is the only one that I'm aware of.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. So I -- and

19

Mr. Chair, I'm open to any positive, creative suggestions.

20

But I basically -- I'd like to address somehow whatever this

21

specific issue is with regard to the pedestals. But I also

22

think that if the walls and the wall height, especially

23

because of some of the pictures we were shown, if it is for

24

retaining wall purposes -- because some -- I can see in some

25

situations where fill has been added --
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

(Inaudible.)

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, to me, that's a

3

safety issue. It's a health and safety issue. So if in

4

those situations, we could address the wall height, that

5

would be my inclination. But I -- I just would rather focus

6

on a solution --

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- rather than rehash history.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

10

Member Baisa.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. We heard during

12

testimony a request that enforcement not be done and that

13

pay -- fines and penalties be waived. You know, having gone

14

through the issue with the B&B people, I'm very much aware

15

that we have a law. And until that law is changed, you

16

pretty much have to, you know, enforce the law. That's your

17

job. And so, like Member Johnson, I'm more concerned about

18

how we can craft a law that can handle this situation.

19

You know, this law apparently, as you stated,

20
21
22
23

Ms. Aoki, was passed in 1997 and -MS. AOKI: Well, '98 -- '97 was the Rural, and '98
was the Ag.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So '97, '98. And here

24

we are, 12 or 13 years later. And like most of the laws

25

that we've passed, we're beginning to see the unintended
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consequences of these laws that we passed and -- you know,

2

with the best of intentions, trying to, you know, minimize

3

harm and, you know, do the right thing and whatever. But

4

it's only after a matter of time has passed that we begin to

5

see that, you know, laws cause problems. And for me, when

6

we see this, we have to act to fix it. And the reason why I

7

ask Mr. Whitehead to talk about this and try to get it

8

looked at was because when you have 59 citations,

9

something's not -- not so hot. And I think it behooves us

10
11

to take a look at it.
So my -- my question to you is when you we're

12

asked, you said, well, it's the Council who makes the laws,

13

you know, we can propose changes or whatever. However, your

14

Department, you know, has the expertise, has the experience.

15

And, you know, it's not unheard of that the Planning

16

Department and Administration propose changes. I, for one,

17

would like to work with you to see if we could come up with

18

an amendment to handle this. Whatever it is. Whether it's

19

specific to Ag, where we raise the wall height or

20

grandfathering of what's already there because, obviously, I

21

think Maui Electric played a role in this. And, albeit,

22

that they were probably just trying to deal with their

23

electrical issues.

24
25

But, you know, a lot of people when you have
something like that requirement put in front of you, you
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assume these folks are -- are knowledgeable, they know, and

2

so you comply. And obviously, there are people who didn't

3

comply and they -- they questioned and, you know, they have

4

a different result. But we have a problem in our community.

5

And I think it behooves all of us to deal with it. So I,

6

for one, would be very open to working with you to solve

7

this. Do you think we can do that?

8

MS. AOKI: We can have a look at it.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I think it would be a

10

good use of our -- this Committee's time, Chair. And I

11

would like to thank you very, very much for making this time

12

available at a very busy time. But it's a very important

13

issue to a lot of people. Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

15

Member Molina.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Well,

17

I think we got no choice but to work together on this. You

18

know, hearing the testimony, you had people that said they

19

built their walls, their pedestals when they first moved

20

there, according to, I guess, directives given to them from

21

Maui Electric, the developer, and all based on the County

22

Code. It seems like there might have been a -- I don't know

23

if lack of a better term, breakdown in communication as to

24

how the law is interpreted. I don't know who the finger

25

will point to, but it's got to point to somebody. Maybe
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it's everybody. You know, the residents. You know, they

2

always say there's no excuse for ignorance of the law. But

3

there was a flaw here. Something happened. And it needs to

4

be fixed.

5

My question is -- and thank you for responding to

6

the complaint concerns that were expressed to us by the

7

testifiers. You mentioned 59 notices of violation and one

8

person fined. Madam Director, do you have the date as to --

9

of these 59 notices of violations, when did these notice of

10

violations begin? Start from when, 2006 or from 2001?

11

12

MS. AOKI: Yeah, I
dates. I just know --

13
14
15
16

I -- I don't have exact

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But these are fairly recent,
though?
MS. AOKI: Well, the one that received the
violation is back from 2008.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

18

MS. AOKI: So -- and then a lot of them have

19

happened over the course of 2009.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

21

MS. AOKI: And just to give you some other

22

statistics. Out of the 59, the parameter wall issue, there

23

were 13 notices of warnings that went out for parameter

24

walls. Of those 13, 11 have been corrected. For pedestal

25

wall issues, 27 warnings were issued, and nine of them have
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been corrected. Some of 'em, as I believe somebody

2

testified to, the wall has actually been lowered and they're

3

still waiting to get the actual meters lowered.

4

There were also 19 warnings given for columns. So

5

if you have a wall and then you have a big column that comes

6

up and another big column or it's holding up a gate -- and

7

that kind of thing -- if it exceeds the four feet, that

8

became an issue. So out of those, six have been fixed. So,

9

you know, obviously, this meeting was about Launiupoko. So

10

I brought statistics for Launiupoko. I didn't bring

11

statistics for any other areas, except that, you know, we

12

are issuing notices of warnings in other areas.

13

But just for Launiupoko alone -- I mean, you have

14

44 percent compliance already. And some of them, they fixed

15

them really quickly. Some of them took a few months.

16

Because they're big walls. I mean, like I say, we try to

17

work with them. And that's why only one violation -- we

18

haven't fined anybody else. We're working with them. We're

19

trying to give them time. There comes a point where, okay,

20

if we don't get compliance, we have no choice but to issue

21

the violation.

22

Like Corp. Counsel stated, we do give two warnings.

23

We try to give two warnings. So we try to work with them.

24

So some of these are a year old.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the reason I brought
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this up, Madam Director, Mr. Chair, is because why the

2

enforcement only now? You know, this subdivision has been

3

in existence since, what, 2000? And that is an interesting

4

question to be brought up, is like why only now when a lot

5

of these walls were built way back when? So the issue of

6

consistency of enforcement comes up. So that's why it needs

7

to be addressed. It needs to be brought out. And if we're

8

going to start doing everything on a complaint-driven basis,

9

that's fine. But let's be fair to all. Do it consistently.

10
11

Do it throughout the community the same way.
Because this packet that was given to

12

Mr. Whitehead, it's showing, you know, walls of questionable

13

heights in Kula 200, Kapalua. So, you know, the question --

14

and, of course, that's not what's on our agenda topic today

15

as far as these subdivisions. But we are talking about an

16

issue of enforcing consistently. So it needs to be brought

17

out. And we got to work together --

18

MS. AOKI: If I could just respond --

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, hang on. Hang on.

20
21

I'll -- I'll -- I'll -- let --- let -- let you have your say.
But ultimately, it's the Council creates the law,

22

Mr. Chairman. Whether the Administration or the Executive

23

Branch likes it or not, it's our job to create the law and

24

the Executive Branch to carry out the law that's created by

25

the Council. So we have that power to amend the law, the
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current Code if we want.
So -- you know, we all talk about transparency in

3

government. And the policy, as you had mentioned earlier,

4

about complaints, accepted practice. So you guys accept

5

anonymous complaints as well. Because, you know, in our

6

country, there's always been this premise of the rights of

7

the accused, you know, to know who is filing the complaint.

8

So the person who is being accused, they don't even have the

9

right to know where -- at least, where the complaint is

10
11

coming from; within the subdivision, outside the area.
Because I kind of question that policy. Because it

12

is a policy. It's not law. It's -- as you had stated,

13

Madam Director, accepted practice. So that's where I'm kind

14

of having a little concern. Because our residents should at

15

least know -- and I understand the issue with retaliation.

16

I don't know if it's maybe this practice as it relates to

17

Launiupoko. And I'll keep it to Launiupoko. I don't know

18

if you're worried that there's people in Launiupoko that are

19

suddenly going to go out and start, you know, getting

20

violent with those who make complaints about them. But

21

anyway, I -- I -- I really have a concern about that kind of

22

accepted practice. So you can -- you just respond to an --

23

an anonymous complaint.

24
25

You know, we -- well, for me, I mean, my office,
somebody comes in with an anonymous complaint, if they don't
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give me their address, I wonder how can I go and investigate

2

the matter? So anyway, I'll yield to you, Madam Director,

3

if you have -- you'd like to respond to -- at least on the

4

issue of the accepted practice regarding the complaints.

5

MS. AOKI: Sure. Just a clarification, we don't

6

accept anonymous complaints. Because as you say, it's very

7

difficult for us to follow up or get back to this person.

8

Because that is what we do. We do get back to the person.

9

So we get anonymous complaints all the time. And, you know,

10

there's a lot I can't do. You don't tell me where or TMK, I

11

mean, it's just very vague. So we do ask for their name.

12

And a lot of times, they're very hesitant. They're

13

extremely hesitant to give us their information. Because

14

they -- and I'm not just speaking for Launiupoko. I'm

15

speaking in general. Because retaliation does occur. So

16

that is something. And -- and -- and I don't think that's

17

something that we're going to change.

18

You know, what was interesting with Launiupoko was

19

when the bulk of them came in, some of the owners that got

20

upset started, you know -- it just became this little war.

21

And we started getting complaints all over the place from

22

all kinds of people. So I'm -- I'm not going to say it was

23

so-and-so against you, and well, you turned him in so he

24

turned you in. That -- you know, I'm not going to go there.

25

And I don't want to go there.
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But the other thing I wanted to address with

2

Mr. Whitehead's comments about walls already existing. You

3

know, back in 1997, when the Members talked about this --

4

this issue, Makena came up. And the walls in Makena that

5

if you drive along the road, there were these 12-foot walls.

6

And I'm sure Member Nishiki might remember the conversation.

7

They were permitted. They had a building permit. So you do

8

have nonconforming existing walls out there right now that

9

may be permitted. They may not be. But they are out there.

10

And so unless I get told to go look at something,

11

I -- I can't. You know, I need to know what it is that

12

they're complaining about. And it may be that they are

13

legitimate. They may be perfectly fine or built prior to

14

the enactment of this ordinance.

15

--

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay. Because, you

16

know, we heard testimony where, you know, inspectors would

17

be out there -- well, according to the residents. And

18

sometimes they'd go past the -- their resi -- the people's

19

residence by -- you know, stop by and check on things. And

20

then only when there's a complaint, then people stop. So I

21

was just curious to see because we had this sudden rush of

22

complaints coming, you know, only within the last year or

23

so. So that's why, it just brings up that question.

24
25

And again, for me, Mr. Chairman -- and I know it's
not our purview to dictate the Department's policy as to how
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to handle complaints. But I just really have a concern

2

where the accused doesn't even have the right to know where

3

the complaints are coming from; within the subdivision,

4

outside of the subdivision. It's like it sort of violates,

5

in my opinion, the -- the issue of transparency in

6

government. I mean, you know, if -- if you and I get -- get

7

accused of a crime, I mean, we have that right to at least

8

know who -- who the heck's accusing us of something, you

9

know. So I just find it quite discomforting to -- to hear

10

11

about that type of practice. But so -- so be it.
And it just, to me, puts this County in a very

12

tough position. Because -- well, I don't want to get into

13

litigation issues. But it -- it could lead to that based on

14

the premise of the rights of the accused having to know

15

who's -- who's filing the complaint. Anyway.

16
17
18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm going to let the
Corporation Counsel respond.
MR. HOPPER: Just to respond because that raises

19

legal issues. There are opinions of the Office of

20

Information Practices stating very clearly that the identity

21

of a complainant of zoning violations specifically does not

22

have to be revealed. That can be kept confidential. The

23

Idea being that if that information is not kept

24

confidential, that that would frustrate the government's

25

purpose of receiving honest zoning violation complaints;
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that people may be hesitant to complain to the Planning

2

Department in the event that -- you know, for fear of

3

retaliation.

4

So while -- while the name may be required by the

5

Planning Department of that person, the -- the Planning

6

Department does not have to real -- reveal that person's

7

name. If the issue of violation and that violation is

8

appealed, the Planning Department still would need to show

9

evidence of the violation occurring to sustain that

10

violation. So they would have the person's complaint, but

11

they would basically need to independently verify that

12

there's a violation going on and establish that in front of

13

the Board of Variances and Appeals in the event that there

14

is a violation. So they -- they would use that complaint as

15

an initial portion in their investigation, but they would

16

still need to gather the evidence of that violation.

17

So to let you know, our office has checked on this

18

issue as to whether or not the -- the information can be

19

kept confidential. And we found opinions by the Office of

20

Information Practices stating very specifically that that

21

information can be kept confidential under the Uniform

22

Information Practices Act. And so we have looked into those

23

issues because we were asked about them because, you know,

24

we are mindful of those concerns and have done research on

25

this issue. And the way that the OIP considers this, that
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information may be kept confidential.

2

And I have the opinion here. And I can actually

3

forward that to you, if necessary. But, you know, I -- I --

4

I just want to get that out there because I understand

5

Council's concern there. So I think that was important

6

to -- to state.

7
8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,
Corporation Counsel.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for the comments,

10

Mr. Hopper. You know, I think you stress that word may, may

11

be kept confidential. By anyway, I got other opinions about

12

OIP on other matters. So -- but anyway -- but thank so

13

much.

14

And thank you for indulging me, Mr. Chair.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, it's five

16

minutes to noon, and we have been going on. But the Chair

17

would like to, at least, let you know that we're going to

18

defer this item, okay. And I think it's clear after today's

19

testimonies and discussions that there needs to be

20

additional time to kind of work on whatever possible

21

solutions that there -- there may be. And at the same time,

22

I think it is also clarified that there is discretion within

23

the Department of Planning to -- in terms of violation

24

notices to be served, you know. And it's within their

25

Department's ability to consider what -- what actions to
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take. I think the request was whether or not the Department

2

would waive these things. And Corporation Counsel did give

3

a response to what their authority is.

4

So with that --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I want to -- before we go

7

on, I want to be able to let you all ask the questions that

8

you feel are necessary before we, at least, recess this

9

meeting. And with five minutes, I don't know how much we're

10

going to be able to allow before the twelve noon hour. So

11

I'm -- I'm going to go back to Member Pontanilla, who had

12

deferred earlier.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. If

14

you could write a letter to Maui Electric. Because I think

15

19 of these complaints came because of pedestals above six

16

feet. And building a fence around those pedestals probably

17

created, you know, some hardships amongst the subdivision.

18

So if you could, what is their requirements in regards to

19

providing electrical services to homes in the Agricultural

20

district?

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And thank you.

22

Because that was the only question I was going to bring

23

forth to the Corporation Counsel.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Thank you.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because it was stated in
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many of the test-monies today that they were all following a

2

requirement of an agreement made between the developer and

3

Maui Electric for these designs and -- and the building of

4

these pedestals. So I, you know, wanted to get some

5

clarification as to where the responsibility with the

6

developer and the utility company, having made these plans

7

and administered them to the homeowners or land owners and

8

requiring them to fulfill.

9
10

So any comments?
MR. HOPPER: Just, Mr. Chair, to say that, you

11

know, the zoning ordinance -- you know, MECO would not have

12

the authority to violate the zoning ordinance in this

13

situation. They would not have the authority to require a

14

wall over four feet if that would violate the zoning. It's

15

similar to CC&Rs, for example. A subdivision might have

16

CC&Rs. But those CC&Rs couldn't specify, you know,

17

something that would violate the zoning ordinance. Even

18

though the CC&Rs would be binding on the owners of the

19

subdivision, the County Code would apply independently of

20

that. And that -- that would be my interpretation of MECO

21

and the developer.

22

As far as their potential responsibility and

23

liability, that -- a lot of that could be between the

24

current owners and those -- those entities, or between the

25

County and those entities potentially. But just to say that
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because -- because it's a utility company requesting the

2

construction, to me that would not give that utility company

3

the authority to override the County zoning ordinance in a

4

given situation. And I think that's -- that's important.

5

Nor could the utility company, in my opinion, give the

6

authority to somebody else to construct a structure or -- or

7

something else that's in violation of either of the zoning

8

ordinance or the building code, for example.

9
10

11
12
13

So, you know, that's my interpretation, at least as
far as it concerns the walls in this case.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that
clarification.
Okay. Members, I know Member Medeiros wanted to

14

ask questions of the Public Works Director. We're at

15

twelve. What is the pleasure of the -- the Council?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I -- I -- I think

19

that people are looking for a resolution. I would hope that

20

you, as Chair, could draft a letter to the Administration,

21

asking them to temporarily halt the enforcement. And I know

22

that there's a long way to resolving this, so I would ask

23

you on our behalf. And I think that Corporation Counsel

24

gave us the legal opinion that the Planning Director has

25

that ability.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Member Nishiki,
for that honor.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's not an honor.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair, you know, would

5

be more than happy to draft a letter to the Department. But

6

I want to clarify that for what we have already been told by

7

the Corporation Counsel what the authority is of the

8

Department. So given that, then I will be more than happy

9

to draft a letter, possibly restating their authority.

10

So, Members, if we can, then, the Chair would ask

11

that we defer this item until the next posting. If there's

12

no objections.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: MV)

14
15

ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Before we adjourn,

16

then the Chair's plan is to reconvene at 1:30.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Recess. Recess.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm sorry. We'll recess.

19

And the Chair's plan is to reconvene at 1:30, where we will

20

continue with the two remaining items. At that point, the

21

Chair would like to take up PC-19. And then I will take all

22

testimonies -- because there are only three -- and then,

23

hopefully, we can get through that item, and then continue

24

with PC-2, which we have several testifiers signed up for.

25

So at this time, we will recess the meeting until
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1:30 this afternoon.

2

RECESS:

3

RECONVENE: 1:36 p.m.

4

...(gavel)...

12:00 p.m.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Okay. Good

5

afternoon. The Chair would like to reconvene our Planning

6

Committee meeting. At this time, what I'm going to do is

7

allow for testimonies to be given on the two remaining

8

items. And that's Item 19, PC-19, and PC-2. And I

9

apologize to those of you who have been here early waiting

10

for PC-2. So the Chair would like to take all the

11

testimonies at one time, and then we will do the

12

deliberations on each item separately. So -- so where do we

13

start?

14

I'm going to take the testimonies for P -- those

15

who have signed up for PC-19 first. And if they're not

16

here, then we'll see what happens. Okay. So for PC-19, I

17

have Leo Caires.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, if I may add.

19

Mr. Caires told me during the break that he wouldn't be able

20

to testify, but he'd be -- he would be submitting something

21

written to Committee.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then the next person would

23

be Kaniloa Kamaunu. And -- oh, Kaniloa Kamaunu. And this

24

is for Item Number PC-19.

25

MR. KAMAUNU: Good afternoon. My name is Kaniloa
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Kamaunu. I'm from Waihee. Commenting on the windmill, I --

2

I -- my comprehension of what's being mentioned in there is

3

that it is for, I guess, individual uses if I'm correct.

4

And I guess my only concern, you know, seeing what the --

5

the problem MECO is having with the ones that they already

6

have and what the comments they've made previously to in not

7

living up to it's -- it's -- what it's supposed to be doing,

8

my concern is are we going to litter the residential area

9

and other areas with individual windmills? You know, I

10

mean, it's kind of, you know, are we moving to Holland? No,

11

but I'm just -- you know, it's just my concern that, you

12

know, is this really a plausible thing? Is this something

13

we --

14

I'm not against green energy, but what I look at

15

what this bill proposing is, you know, could be more of a

16

problem, especially if we're going to not only input, what

17

style we're going to input that is correct for the area.

18

And then, of course, what happens when maintenance needs to

19

be done on these -- on these -- these apparatuses. You

20

know, I mean -- or removal of these things when they become

21

to a point where, you know, they -- they're no longer are

22

useful or they're breaking down, you know. My concern is,

23

you know, if they're going to be metal, where do we take

24

these things when they break down. Because we're having a

25

problem with, of course, our -- our -- our waste management
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already.
So we're looking at -- a lot of things that it

3

entails. And it's, you know, scary when, you know, it's

4

like, you know, once you start doing these things, you know,

5

the problem is we have a mass of these things come in. And

6

being that it's such a big thing and how big and, you know,

7

how much room it's going to take and how does it interfere

8

or how does it -- you know, other things that it will

9

entail, which is, I think, important for us to look at.

10

So I'm -- I'm kind of afraid of what this -- the

11

magnitude of this, you know, revision or this resolution is

12

going to do. Thank you.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

14

Members, are there any questions for the testifier

15

on this item, 19? Okay. Seeing none, then Kamaunu --

16

Kaniloa, the Chair will allow you to give your testimony on

17

PC-2 as you've signed up for.

18

MR. KAMAUNU: Oh, okay. I've left some -- I have,

19

actually -- I went to print out some since we took a break.

20

If I can pass it out to the Members later, I guess. If I

21

can hand -- I made some handouts.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do you want to return, then?

23

MR. KAMAUNU: Yeah, if I can.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll put you at the

25

end of the PC-2 item then.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-1=0
129

1

2
3
4

2/9/10 PC

MR. KAMAUNU: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the next testifier

would be Johanna Kamaunu.
MS. KAMAUNU: Aloha. I'm Johanna Kamaunu from

5

Waihee. We really haven't had time to look into it, but the

6

wind energy issue is of concern to us in Waihee. And it has

7

come across the table for discussion. The concern I'm

8

seeing with this when energy is -- actually, when I read

9

the -- the letter that came with it, I was under the

10

impression, that oh, good, there's going to be some way that

11

the County is going to help us have access to this thing.

12

But it turns out to be an ordinance that allows these big

13

machines to be -- or these things, these systems to be

14

present in an area. And I'm not sure that that addresses

15

the individual homeowner independently of the community.

16

Because it sounds to me like it's kind of a big system.

17

And on that basis, I -- I have -- the concern I'm

18

looking at is that it's not as accessible to a homeowner

19

like myself in Waihee, where I might have one just for

20

myself, for my home. This really looks like something a

21

group of people might want to get involved in, or something

22

like what the Governor proposed on the Island of Lanai,

23

making a farm of these things. So that was my concern.

24

We are discussing it, so all I can say is this

25

doesn't seem to fit what we want to do right now. That's
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all I have to say.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

3

Members, any questions? Okay. Member Molina.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

5

Good afternoon, Johanna. Thank you for your

6

comments. The way the bill is structured is more for

7

individual wind systems. And now, with the newer

8

technologies, there's smaller systems that are out there

9

that are not as, I guess, obtrusive as some of the bigger

10

systems out there. And I know one of the major concerns is,

11

you know, how is this going to affect, you know, the looks

12

of the neighborhood too. So there's mechanisms in there

13

that will address that. There's proposed height

14

limitations. And if you go above the proposed height

15

limitations, then you'd have to come and get a Special Use

16

Permit where the neighbors can come and give input. It

17

would have to go before the Planning Commission.

18

So there are some mechanisms in there that would

19

offer to a -- address some of those concerns. But, you know

20

all, input is certainly appreciated. And, you know, we

21

would want to hear what's on peoples' minds with this. And

22

it's good that you shared that thought. And For today's

23

purposes, it's just going to be referred to the Planning

24

Commission's for additional comments and at that --

25

MS. KAMAUNU: Oh, great.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And when it does get to

2

that, you can come and testify. And if you'd like, we can

3

also -- I would be happy to --- submit your name to the

4

Planning Department as to when it would come up for

5

discussion at the Planning Commission level as well to offer

6

that to you.

7

MS. KAMAUNU: Thank you. Actually, the reason I

8

was here was just to put in that concern for our community

9

in the future -- in the event that, in the future, we might

10

want to have something more to say on it, which now you tell

11

us has an opportunity to do so. But I was reading something

12

in that ordinance that said there needed to be a 20-feet

13

clearance for the blades. I'm going 20 feet off the ground,

14

wow, that's pretty tall. You know, that's pretty high up

15

there. So that's -- that's what I'm saying, this might be a

16

lot larger than we were expecting it to be for our

17

community.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I guess every

19

community there's some, you know, one shoe does not fit all,

20

yeah. One size does not fit all.
MS. KAMAUNU: Yeah, but at least we can talk about

21
22

it now.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

24

Thank you, Chair.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions,
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Members?

2

Okay. Johanna, you're also signed up for PC-2. Do

3

you want to testify on that item now, or do you want to

4

be --

5

MS. KAMAUNU: Sure.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.

7

MS. KAMAUNU: Yes, the Maui Island Planned [sic].

8

It's managed to get our community association calling a

9

special meeting because there are some issues that have come

10

up in our community regarding subdivisions that were not

11

made clear to us when we embarked on this journey back in

12

May or June of this year. And it was not included in the

13

General -- how does that go? GPA -- the GPAC. It wasn't in

14

the GPAC about some of these subdivisions. And I think I

15

mentioned it the last time I was here. And we're wondering

16

how the Maui Island Plan is going to address this issue.

17

These two sudivis -- subdivisions have come up, I

18

guess, under the radar, so to speak. Because like I said,

19

it wasn't on the GPAC Plan. And we're only finding out

20

about it in the last couple months. One just last month.

21

So we're looking at a process, I believe, that doesn't

22

address our individual community needs. And the other

23

concern I had as a member of the community is that I'm

24

worried that this plan -- even though it's a plan -- is

25

going to mitigate the Community Plan. Because that's what I
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read in there. And if this plan is put into action, that's

2

almost law for us. And how does that compare to our

3

Community Plan? And you know that we are in the process of

4

developing that Community Plan. So now we're -- I hate to

5

say, double jeopardy. But it sure looks like we're in that

6

kind of a situation.

7

The only solution or remedy I can see for the Maui

8

Island Plan that might help us is that there should have

9

been a process that included the communities. I have to --

10

I'm concerned that what's happened is there's a breakdown

11

between our representatives in government and the people in

12

the community. Because our viewpoints are not being brought

13

forward, especially if there's these loopholes.

14

And after this morning's interesting event, I would

15

suspect that there's going to be a lot more of that come up

16

if this Island Plan continues. Okay.

17
18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Are you completed?
Okay.

19

Members, questions? Member Johnson.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Hi, Johanna. Thank you for

21

coming. The -- the two new subdivisions that, you know, you

22

refer to. They're over in your area?

23

MS. KAMAUNU: If I say Waihee --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Waihee.

25

MS. KAMAUNU:

ahupuaa that community. No, it's
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not in the community. But we have adopted the region. We

2

have a subgroup that comes out of the association called

3

Hoouluai, which is made up of residents and associations

4

from outlying areas of Waihee. And at this point, we go --

5

we've pretty much taken everything north of Iao Stream.

6
7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And that's where these
subdivisions are, north of --

8
9
10

MS. KAMAUNU: Yes. One is off Kahekili Highway
behind Waiehu Heights. And the other one is an Ag
subdivision that's bordering Waihee and Waiehu.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

12

MS. KAMAUNU: And there's an issue about how that

13

subdivision is even qualifying. Because if I'm not

14

mistaken, the attorney has filed a subdivision application

15

claiming that they're not a subdivision.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: But they're -- but they're on

16
17

the GPAC -- they weren't on the original GPAC Map?

18

MS. KAMAUNU: No.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Now they are?

20

MS. KAMAUNU: I don't know if they're on the GPAC

21

Plan now.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I don't know. That why I will

23

look for them. And, you know, when we get to that point, if

24

you can -- if you see them there, if you could help point

25

that out to us, I'd really appreciate it.
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MS. KAMAUNU: Okay.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, other questions?

4

Johanna, just a question to clarify. The two

5

projects that you're talking about are being moved in the

6

fast track process?

7

MS. KAMAUNU: Maybe Mr. Michaelson could address

8

that. But from what I understand, the one project is an

9

affordable housing project. So I'm not exactly sure how

10

That cleared. The other one is Living Waters, their

11

property that they're realigning the boundaries to their

12

parcels and claiming that it's not a subdivision.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So there are these

14

two projects that -- okay. Okay. Thank you. I just wanted

15

to clarify whether or not they were part of a fast track

16

process, which would be a State process of which this body

17

has no real authority over it. It would be a legislative,

18

you know, process for -- for changes or amendments if -- if

19

that were, you know, what you were seeking to do.

20
21

So -- okay. I have ro further questions. Members,
any more? Okay. Seeing none, then thank you.

22

MS. KAMAUNU: Thank you.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is John

24
25

Seebart.
MR. SEEBART: Good afternoon. I guess I'm speaking
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on both also.

2
3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So would you start
with 19, then.

4

MR. SEEBART: Sure. That's the windmills?

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.

6

MR. SEEBART: Yeah. I was really glad that the

7

windmills came up today because I wouldn't probably have

8

come in for that alone. But I did have a concern about it

9

I actually own one in another place. And -- and it's a

10

terrific thing. It's not a big thing, large in size or

11

anything. I mean, the -- the blade span is probably five or

12

six feet.

13

Now, you want it clearly above where somebody

14

couldn't walk into that. So the ordinance addresses that,

15

I'm sure, as some of the other speakers said. And there's

16

always the aesthetic values, and so forth. But I'm not

17

personally considered -- or worried about that as much. But

18

in my experience, they can be very loud. And -- and the one

19

I own is not particularly loud. However, I have seen some

20

real spiffy models that -- that are -- are just obnoxious.

21

And they're not big.

22

And they just -- I think it's a -- it's tangential

23

to another issue I have, which. is a noise ordinance on Maui.

24

So if we're going to do this, I think we ought to have a

25

noise ordinance also. Because I'm told that there isn't
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one. I mean, a policeman can decide whether someone's

2

disturbing the peace, but there's not truly a -- a rule

3

about that. But with these things, it -- it could very well

4

become a problem if it's not addressed. That's really all I

5

had to say about that.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Okay. Thank you.

7

Members, questions on the testifiers? Okay.

8
9
10

Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, Mr. Seebart, for your comments. You

11

know, I think it's helpful for all of us to know what the

12

pro and cons of this. In the ordinance, it's been set at no

13

more than 60 decibels. Personally, I don't know how loud 60

14

decibels is. But if it needs to be regulated to something

15

less than 60 decibels, then I'm sure -- I don't know what

16

the manufacturers have out there that can meet that type of

17

noise level.

18
19
20

MR. SEEBART: Right. I'm aware of what a decibel
is generally, but I wouldn't know what 60 is so -- offhand.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I saw one out in

21

Haiku. And it was sort of like a whisper mode, like with a

22

helicopter type of noise.

23

MR. SEEBART: Uh-huh.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So -- but I guess everybody

25

has different noise tolerances.
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MR. SEEBART: Well, yeah. And as the wind picks

2

up, in my experience, the one that I own -- and it's not

3

coming to Maui, so -- but the one I own, really the wind

4

itself is so loud at that point that -- that -- where it

5

starts making more and more noise. But, as I said, there

6

are some that I've -- I mean, I've been -- it's on a boat.

7

Mine's on a boat. And I've been anchored and had people --

8

gone to a friend's boa:, and we couldn't hear mine. But, I

9

mean -- I'm reluctant to say how many yards away, but quite

10

a distance. Several hundred -- a couple hundred yards away,

11

there was one on another boat -- and it's a real popular

12

model -- that just was -- I mean, it -- it was terrible.

13
14

So you really want to be careful about -- 60
decibels. I don't know.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

16

MR. SEEBART: There you go.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you.

18

Thank you, Chair.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, other questions?

20
21

Okay. Seeing none, would you proceed on PC-2, then.
MR. SEEBART: Sure. Thank you. I -- I didn't go

22

to every one of the GPAC meetings or anything like that, but

23

I did go to a few. And -- and -- because I'm interested.

24

was born here. I live on the West Side. And I've seen

25

things change. I mean, I'm nearly 62. I'll be 62 this
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month. So things have changed a little since I was a kid in
Lahaina.

3

But I -- my feeling was in all the GPAC meetings

4

that the biggest single overarching philosophical concern of

5

the people of Maui was -- is that we have -- maintain and

6

improve our quality of life. I mean, I think -- and

7

there's -- and there's a fear that because of the economic

8

interest, and so forth -- which we're blessed to have these

9

things. I mean, we're -- you take a look at that picture

10

over there under the clock, and it reminds you of what Mark

11

Twain said about the loveliest fleet of islands anchored in

12

any ocean, you know. It's beautiful.

13

We live here and we have a lot of beauty around us

14

and we're very fortunate. And I think that most of us want

15

to preserve that. And that's the biggest single thing. But

16

the fear -- the luck comes in, the bless -- the blessing

17

comes in that we are able to pay for things here,

18

infrastructure, through the tourist industry, which is

19

generated by this extreme natural beauty. I mean, we have

20

this to use. And I think the fear is, is -- it goes back to

21

that old children's tale, you know, "The Goose That Laid the

22

Golden Egg." I mean, if you kill the goose -- I mean, if

23

you strip the island, if you build it out, it -- it won't

24

have the eggs anymore. I mean, we won't have this -- this

25

blessing.
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And now, especially in a time of recession,

2

there's -- there's a tendency to want to get jobs. And one

3

of the things I've read in the paper, and so forth, is that

4

we really want to have construction jobs. And I'm not

5

against construction people, and I think everybody has a

6

right to put food on the table and so on and so forth. But

7

there's no God-given right in this country to have -- to

8

decide -- I mean, I wanted to be a writer at one time when I

9

was kid. And I thought, well, that would be great. But I

10

looked around and I thought, well, you know, this is pretty

11

tough. I can do it, but it doesn't mean I'm going to live

12

well.

13

And -- and, you know, just because a guy wants to

14

be a carpenter or contractor or cement layer -- I mean, it

15

doesn't matter. He can go and do that, but there's no right

16

to do that. And -- and I think most of us would agree on

17

that. The problem is the temptation to do something to

18

support the construction industry now to get jobs. If you

19

do that, if you support a construction industry, you'll get

20

construction. And that comes back to the goose. We're

21

going to kill the goose that laid the golden eggs.

22

We're better to go through the recession and let

23

the jobs -- the people that -- that -- that can find other

24

jobs or transition the kind of work they do -- and this is

25

not pleasant for these people. And I don't -- I don't
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have -- I mean, I have sympathy for them. But I really

2

think that if we're going to preserve the island in the

3

long-term, we have to be very, very careful what we do.

4

And I was here yesterday and I saw you all working

5

and -- diligently. And -- and I see what a difficult

6

process it is to get every word just right and to make sure

7

that we don't -- say, well, we don't want to limit growth in

8

this area. But if we take that out, well, then we'll --

9

we'll be opening up growth everywhere and we can be overrun.

10

I mean, it's a difficult -- I mean, I really have a better

11

feel for what you all are doing. And it's tough.

12

And I'll wrap it up here. My -- my only request is

13

that as you go through this --- and I know that, at least

14

most of you, have the -- the same love for the island and so

15

forth -- that we try our very best to preserve what we've

16

got and to -- to keep the resource so that into the future,

17

you know, this can be done. Now, there's one red herring.

18

And that's affordable housing. I mean, this is a -- a

19

constant issue and I -- I'm -- I'm a fairly conservative

20

guy. But -- but I think that a living wage is a real

21

interesting concept on this island.

22

I mean, we have this tourism. We need to make

23

it -- we need to do things so that people can live and have

24

jobs and afford to live here. I don't think that we can

25

make room for everybody on the planet that wants to come to
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Hawaii. You know, I -- we have to really be careful.
And --

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

4

MR. SEEBART: So I'm just begging that you guys

5

take that into consideration.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you conclude.

7

MR. SEEBART: Yes, that's it.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Okay. Thank you.

9

Members, any questions for the testifier? I -- I

10

don't have a question. But I thought it was interesting,

11

your perspective of goose and eggs. It comes from a very

12

different point of view.

13

MR. SEEBART: "The Goose That Laid the Golden Egg"?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Well, you -- you put

15

it in a different context than we're normally used to

16

hearing it used. Thank you for your testimony.

17

Okay. Is there anyone here that has not signed up

18

for Item Number 19, PC-19, that would like to testify? Then

19

please -- please come forward.

20
21

Mr. Mayer, I have you -- okay, signed up -- I'm
going to go to PC-2, if you want to add it on.

22

MR. MAYER: Okay.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Come forward, then.

24

MR. MAYER: Thank you very much. Listening to the

25

previous discussion, I feel -- I'm going to do something
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I've never done before here, and that's do a confessional.
I was on the Board of Variance and Appeals 25 years

3

ago. And a project came up on the windmill to be put up at

4

the McDonald's in Kahului. And being green -- sort of a

5

green advocate, I thought that was a wonderful idea. And we

6

discussed it in the -- in the community. They wanted a

7

variance of some kind. And the committee turned it down --

8

I think it was seven-to-one. And I was the one. I was in

9

favor of it. And it got turned down. And so there is no

10

11

windmill at McDonald's.
Shortly thereafter, it was a few months after that,

12

the windmill was put up, as you may remember, down in

13

Maalaea. And it was put up --- I think the same company or

14

whatever. And very shortly thereafter, within six months

15

after, one of the blades flew off of that windmill into the

16

ground. And I was so very thankful that I had been

17

overridden and that -- that thing was not put up at

18

McDonald's where it would have probably crashed into the

19

place there where all the kids play. So that was my

20

confessional on windmill. I just wanted to add that.

21

So when we talk about windmills, I'm very much in

22

favor of 'em. We have to be very careful when we put them

23

in urbanized areas close to people. Noise can be a problem,

24

certainly. But I don't think the safety issue is as much of

25

a problem now as it was then. Then it was poorly designed,
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and now they've remedied that particular problem. But

2

windmills are -- are something we should have. And I hope

3

you make a provision for them in the appropriate locations.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

5

Members, any questions for the testifier?

6

Okay. Is there anyone else here on Item 19? Okay.

7

Seeing none, then the Chair is going to move to Item 2.

8

Okay.

9
10
11

And I'm going to start with Andy Herrer or Herrera,
and he will be followed by John Duey.
MR. HERRERA: Yes. My name is Andy Herrera. And I

12

represent Maui Electric Company. I want to say good

13

afternoon to the Chairman and Council Members. And thank

14

you for giving me this opportunity. I'm the Transmission

15

and Distribution Manager for Maui Electric Company.

16

I would like to provide testimony in regards to

17

Chapter 2, the Heritage Resource Element of the consolidated

18

Draft Maui Island Plan. Specifically, I'd like to speak to

19

Section 2.5.2, which addresses reducing the impacts on

20

scenic resources by utility improvements. Under this

21

section in Action Item 3, which proposes the development and

22

adoption of standards and processes to ensure that the

23

location and design of utility infrastructure does not

24

degrade scenic resources.

25

Under Action 3 -- oh, that's even much better.
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Under Action 3, Subsection (b), is a line that would require

2

utilities to be placed underground whenever feasible. This

3

is the action that concerns us. While MECO is not against

4

the placing of utility lines underground, it is concerned

5

with the costs such actions would place on the public. The

6

undergrounding of electric utilities can be anywhere from

7

six to 15 times, or more, expensive than comparable overhead

8

infrastructure. Similarly, telephone and cable TV

9

infrastructure would also have to be placed underground,

10
11

which would add multiples of costs to their customers.
MECO is concerned that while Action 3 is

12

well-intended and even desirable, the additional cost

13

incurred as a result of that proposal would result in an

14

increased cost to consumers, customers or taxpayers at a

15

time when any increase in household and business expense is

16

an additional burden that the people of Maui may not be able

17

or wish to shoulder.

18

The underground and cost for utility infrastructure

19

for private developments is borne by the contractor. And

20

this cost is passed on in the purchase or rental of the

21

property by the ultimate end user. The undergrounding

22

utility infrastructure by the electric company is borne by

23

our rate payers, and its incorporated into the rate base.

24

Same for telephone and cable.

25

For example, the cost of undergrounding utilities
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to protect a view plane in Kaanapali would eventually be

2

paid for by all of our customers on Maui, Molokai and Lanai,

3

and then only if the Public Utility Commission approves the

4

undergrounding option. As a public utility providing

5

central electric service, we are mandated by the Public

6

Utilities Commission to provide dependable service at the

7

lowest cost possible to all of our customers.

8
9

The Department of the Consumer Advocate is charged
with ensuring that the best interest of the public is served

10

through the PC -- PUC process. It's through this process

11

that these entities review the feasibility of approving

12

funds to be spent on behalf of the rate payers. Section

13

2.52, requiring underground utilities, may prove to be a

14

burden to our customers which may be just too costly for

15

them to justify.

16

Maui Electric supports the preservation of our

17

natural reforce -- resources, especially our island's

18

natural beauty, which very well may be our greatest social

19

and economic asset. However, MECO asks that the Members of

20

this Committee consider further review of the total impact

21

that this may have on the Maui community, as a whole, and

22

that the citizens of Maui understand the potential financial

23

impact Action 3 will have on their utility bills.

24

That's all I have unless you have questions.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
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Members, any questions for the testifier? Begin
with Member Johnson and then Member Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. I -- I appreciate

4

because I know we went through the argument way back when

5

about, you know, the -- the uglification [sic] of the

6

corridor. You know, and a really beautiful scenic corridor

7

with those giant poles.

8
9

But anyway, I -- I wondered if you had ever heard
of the concept of Community Facilities District?

10

MR. HERRERA: No, I have not.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Perhaps you can check

12

with my office because we do have legislation that would not

13

impact -- and this would be with new subdivisions. It would

14

not impact all the rate payers.

15

MR. HERRERA: Well, the new subdivisions generally

16

in Maui do go underground. And that cost is borne by the

17

contractor. And it's passed on when they sell the property.

18

So it's not really new subdivisions that we see as a

19

problem. They tend to -- people tend to want -- I want

20

underground. So people, when they buy a house, tend to want

21

underground. It's only when you get into the rural areas,

22

where they're spread out too far, or they're not a very

23

high-income subdivision that you get into the problem of

24

trying to underground distribution lines. But what we're

25

also concerned about is transmission lines.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HERRERA: You know, as Maui continues to

3

grow -- and it is continuing to grow -- we have to service

4

it. We have to provide lines. And our concern is how those

5

are going to go in, what that cost is going to be to the

6

rate payer.

7

And again, it's something like what Gladys said

8

earlier about unintended consequences. That's -- that's

9

more what we're warning about here. Not saying we're

10

against it or we want something different. We're just

11

saying you got to understand the consequences that costs

12

will have to be borne by somebody. And those costs are

13

high -- for the greatest part, unknown because we don't know

14

what -- what lines we're talking about.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And Community

16

Facilities Districts does provide a mechanism to -- to

17

actually keep the costs substantially lower and having

18

public financing for many of these improvements in specific

19

areas where those areas benefit. So I'll give you more

20

information on that --

21

MR. HERRERA: Yeah, yeah, I would appreciate that.

22

Because ultimately, for us, the way we view it as, there's

23

either rate payers or taxpayers. And basically, they're the

24

same people. So sooner or later, the monies got to come

25

from somewhere. And it's -- it's going to be the citizens
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of Maui are going to pay for whatever it is. And if there's

2

enough societal value for it, then, you know, we support it

3

100 percent. But I think that's a decision that everybody

4

has to be cognitive of what that cost is going to be when

5

they make those emotional decisions, like everything should

6

be underground. We would love it. But we know the reality

7

is we can't afford it.

8
9
10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I know, having gone
through Hurricane Hugo, above ground utilities were also a
nightmare.

11

MR. HERRERA: Yes, they are.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, those have costs

13

too. But thank you very much.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Thank you.

16

And thank you, Andy, for being here this afternoon.

17

I know that you know a lot about this business because, you

18

know, it's what you do. Do you have some kind of a ballpark

19

figure of what underground utilities add to the cost of a

20

project? Say, for instance, how much more it costs to put

21

them underground than above generally? I understand each

22

project would be different.

23

MR. HERRERA: Well, and it's so different. It

24

depends on so many factors. Let me give you an example.

25

We recently spoke in front of the Kihei community
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because we're looking at putting a second transmission line

2

into Kihei. And that was one of their concerns. And just

3

to even get that line to the part -- to the point where we

4

can present something to the Public Utilities Commission, we

5

go through this long process of trying to find out the

6

route. And we have to deal with land-owners. We have to

7

deal with the government, clearly. And a lot of that really

8

drives what the route's going to end up looking like; which,

9

in turn, drives the price.

10

A lot of people said -- one of the points we heard

11

quite often was you already have an existing line right

12

through Kihei, what if we put it there and put it

13

underground; that would be cheaper because it's -- you're

14

already there and it's the shortest point between -- the

15

shortest distance between two points? Well, that's true.

16

But you're also running through small residential lots and

17

yards, you've got existing infrastructure, water, cable.

18

You know, there's just so many things that get disrupted;

19

sewer, you know, drainage systems, everything.

20

So it can actually end up being more expensive. So

21

it's very difficult for us to give estimates. That's why

22

when we talk about it, we -- we try to be careful because it

23

depends -- you know, if you're talking about a short

24

distance, digging through sand is one thing. The same short

25

distance in blue rock is incredibly different for the
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contractor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My understanding is there's
also a consideration for maintenance?

4

MR. HERRERA: Yeah. Well, the -- one of the things

5

that drives the cost on -- on underground, underground tends

6

to be somewhat more reliable because it's not exposed to

7

the -- well, to all those harms that can fall on overhead

8

line. But unfortunately, because they are underground,

9

replacing them or correcting them or fixing them is a much

10

more time-intensive process. So what we have to do is we

11

have to build parallel lines underground. So that's one of

12

the places the cost comes from.

13

So when we look at the cost of that, we do have

14

initially less cost in maintenance. But in the end, we will

15

have to replace all those cables. They are a fixed life

16

span. We do quite a bit of cable fault repair right now,

17

especially in some of our older subdivisions.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think what I'm hearing is

19

this is something we'd like to do. It's much prettier, it

20

doesn't, you know, spoil the view planes, and it really is

21

much better to not to have to look at poles. But we have to

22

consider the practicality of it.

23

MR. HERRERA: Well, I think we -- I think we do. I

24

think poles are kind of beautiful. But that's me. No.

25

But, you know, we know when we've put in a steel pole line
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in Kaanapali next to the railroad track, and there was quite

2

a bit of uproar about that. It was the worst thing that was

3

ever going to happen, we were going to destroy the view.

4

But when you go back now, pretty much nobody even notices it

5

hardly.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, well --

7

MR. HERRERA: We get used to what we see. And when

8

it first pops up, it's the worst eye sore, the worst idea in

9

the world. Five years, ten years later, nobody even thinks

10

about it. But I'm -- I'm not saying that that's a good

11

enough reason to do it. I'm just saying that we -- we have

12

to just be cognitive of what it's going to cost us and our

13

families and our -- and, you know, if we're going to float

14

bonds for that as a societal good, then, you know, we're

15

passing that cost on. And it's not going to ever go away

16

because we're just going to keep growing.

17

But I agree that it would -- you know, that

18

ultimately, if we can have all underground, that -- that

19

would be a fantastic outcome.

20
21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. We have
a lot to think about. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other
questions?

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I was listening to you and

2

you said how expensive it was. But when you were asked to

3

give an example, nothing was given. And yet, you said it

4

was expensive. So how am I, as a decision-maker, going to

5

make that decision with what you've left us?

6

MR. HERRERA: Well, we know approximately how much

7

it is more. And it's anywhere from five, seven times more,

8

on up. It just really depends on what you talking about.

9

You talking about an additional single-phase distribution

10

line, three-phase distribution line, a transmission line;

11

you talking, you know, through rock; you talking through

12

dirt? You talking -- I mean, I don't know. I would need --

13

if -- if I was asked -- if I was given a -- like give me the

14

distance one mile down South Kihei Road versus one mile of

15

overhead, I can give you that. And it would probably be 50

16

100 times more.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Don't -- don't be -- don't

18

be -- don't be so defensive. I -- I -- I -- my question is

19

give me an example of what's occurred on Maui County and --

20

and tell me what the rate payers had to pay extra in -- in

21

our rate?

22

MR. HERRERA: Well, I can't really give you that

23

because, overall, the Public Utility Commission for -- for

24

Maui has never gone along with putting an under --

25

transmission line underground. Like I said, the Kaanapali
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line -- anything that costs over $2 million -- and that's
come up, it was less. I believe it's two or 2.5 million.

3

Anyway, it goes to --- 2.5 million. It goes to the

4

Public Utilities Commission. And they have to approve of

5

it, whether it's distribution, transmission or whatever. So

6

they tend to not -- I mean, they've -- they've never given

7

us that option. It's -- it is so much more that when they

8

look at the rate payers, they have a hard time justifying

9

rate payers -- rate payers in Haiku and Molokai and Lanai

10

paying for an underground line in Kahului, say. It just --

11

it's a tough one. And the consumer advocate gets involved

12

in that too. So they're looking for the best value.

13
14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any further
questions? Member Johnson.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I just was curious because of

16

this issue having come up before. Have you ever -- you

17

know, because I know when you're digging and when you're

18

disrupting and -- you know, the burial issue, especially

19

in -- in low-lying areas, Special Management Area. I've

20

asked this question. I've never really gotten an answer to

21

it.

22

I've seen conduits that run -- you know, sometimes

23

on the mainland, they'll run near utility, like train tracks

24

or subway line. Whatever it is. And they'll run in like

25

a -- almost like a concrete box of sorts, that run --
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they're not above ground, but technically they are. They're

2

on the surface where you don't dig. Do you do anything of

3

that sort?

4
5
6

MR. HERRERA: Currently, that's not in our
standards to do that, no.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Well, could it be

7

something that -- particularly, where we have these

8

challenges, where people want -- you know, it might be a

9

compromise. Have you ever looked at any of these

10

applications that we could also look at here in Maui County

11

because of the importance of aesthetics?

12

MR. HERRERA: Well, I think Maui Electric would be

13

open to looking at anything, any new technology, any

14

alternative plans. We don't --- we're not married to

15

overhead lines. We're -- we're more than willing to -- to

16

look at anything. That's not a technology that we're

17

familiar with. That's not something that -- that I'm aware

18

of that has ever been done in Hawaii. That doesn't mean we

19

can't learn from our neighbors and other states and

20

countries. We are very much open to that, but it's not a

21

technology I'm -- I'm fluent an by any means.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I -- I, you know -- and

23

I'll -- I'll try to, perhaps through some of the other

24

people that have more familiarity with it, we'll try to get

25

some additional information on that too.
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MR. HERRERA: We would appreciate that.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Okay. Any further

4

questions, Members? Okay. Seeing none, thank you very

5

much.

6

John Duey, to be followed by Pam English.

7

MR. DUEY: Good afternoon, Chair, Members.

8

Excuse ffe. My name is John V. Duey. I'm a 41-year

9

resident lao Valley, land owner, taxpayer, 49-year resident

10

of Maui County. David's passing out some -- a little

11

information sheet I've put together for you. You might

12

guess what I'm here to talk about. I know I'm boring to you

13

folks. But anyway, I'm trying to get my message out. These

14

figures you see here are projection for 2030, new units.

15

These figures, I don't dream up. I do a lot of research and

16

ask questions. This is from the Draft Plan. As you see,

17

South Maui, Central Maui, the total new units to 2030 would

18

require 6,088,968 million [sic] gallons per day.

19

I was at a meeting sometime back. And Mr. Dick

20

Mayer mentioned the entitlements for this same period. And

21

I was a little bit astounded. So I called Long Use Planning

22

and talked to Mr. Dave Michaelson. And he confirmed

23

existing entitlements to 2030, South Maui 6006 at 2,000

24

gallons per day, there's 13 million gallons. And Central

25

Maui, as you can see, the amounts total 5 million gallons.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
157

1

2/9/10 PC
So the total usage for new entitlements is 18 million

2

gallons, with a grand total of additional water needed by

3

2030 is 24,586,568 million [sic] gallons per day.

4

My next statement there, this just about doubles

5

what the Central Maui system is producing now and is about

6

its capability. So my question is where is this water

7

coming from? And my other statement here, the Director,

8

Mr. Hunt, told me one day that the -- the water should not

9

control growth. I say water or the cost of water will

10

control growth. You cannot have growth without water. No

11

developer is going to build or nobody is going to build --

12

buy a house without water in it. So I think water is going

13

to control or the cost of the water. By the cost, I mean

14

desal. or some other source.

15
16

If you look on the second page of my handout, it's
just a printout I made -- made today.

17

I'm sorry, Mr. Medeiros.

18

David, could you -- Mr. Medeiros just arrived.

19

Thank you.

20

The second page of the handout is just a printout

21

that I've done today from the DWS, showing the Central Maui

22

pumpage. And you'll see there, pumpage and groundwater use

23

and tunnel, and this and that. You'll see back in July of

24

'09, it was 25 million gallon. The average last 12 months

25

are 22.9.
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So my serious question is -- and I think that you

2

folks, the County Council and Planning and everybody should

3

be thinking where in the devil is 24 million gallons going

4

to come from? How can you keep planning and try to build in

5

this when you don't have the water? I'll leave it at that.

6

I don't know what else -- I don't know what else to say. If

7

you can manufacturer water, fine. You got to have the

8

water.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

10

Members, questions for the testifier?

11

I just want to comment. Thank you for providing

12

this kind of information because it is part of the

13

seriousness of our planning process. And I think we should

14

be giving consideration to these.

15

MR. DUEY: Thank you. Again, I say without water,

16

we're not going anyplace. And we've got to have it. Thank

17

you for listening again. Aloha.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

19

Pam English, to be followed by Dick Mayer.

20

MS. ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair and Members of the

21

Committee. My name is Pam English, representing Maui Land &

22

Pineapple Company this afternoon. Today's agenda, if we

23

ever get to it, is Chapter 3 and 4 of the Maui Island Plan.

24

Natural Hazards and Economic Development are of paramount to

25

our island's future. And we should be cogniz -- cognizant
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of the important impact that these policies will make.

2

Economic Development, Chapter 4, analyzes our

3

island through the eyes of diversification, tourism,

4

agriculture, emerging -- emerging industry, and small

5

businesses. A diversified economy, looking to such things

6

as high-tech science and even film-based industries is

7

great. We also need to strengthen and support our resort

8

industry. The plan speaks to goals, such as enhancing

9

visitor experience, health and wellness tourism, educational

10
11

tourism, and eco or adventure tourism.
Kapalua Resort is a perfect example of this vision.

12

We've strived to create a destination area that includes

13

education, with events such as Whale Quest and the Jacques

14

Cousteau Center; ties to our agricultural history, with the

15

pineapple tours and our organic farming at Kapalua Farms.

16

We've just opened our new Kapalua spa, inspired by Hawaiian

17

cultural traditions and values. And adventure travel, with

18

the addition of our ziplines, started two years ago. And

19

our miles of public trails that have turned out to be

20

extremely popular with the locals and visitors alike. Lower

21

density, higher-end accommodations to attract the higher

22

spending clientele as discussed in the Plan.

23

These have always been included in our vision, and

24

we're glad to see the plan supporting these efforts. One

25

area of clarification that we request you acknowledge,
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Kapalua Resort, in its entirety, and include the newest area

2

of our resort, our long-planned expansion at Kapalua Mauka

3

in the Resort area designation. I know we talked a lot

4

about this yesterday. And today, at the end of Chapter 4,

5

you'll be seeing a map that shows the designations of these

6

Resort areas.

7

Kapalua Mauka has been planned as an expansion of

8

the resort for over 20 years. The approved Community Plan

9

states, in part, that This project district is intended to

10

provide, within the context of Kapalua Resort, a mix of

11

recreation activities, including existing golf, clubhouse,

12

pro shop, restaurants, bars and tennis, swimming pool, and

13

other related recreational amenities and commercial

14

services.

15

It's a resort.
Our entitlements include provisions for golf,

16

community-based commercial, and accommodations that go with

17

these amenities. Kapalua Mauka will provide economic via --

18

viability to the Kapalua Resort of the future. The Kapalua

19

area clearly meets the spirit and intent of the Maui Island

20

Plan Resort area mapping. And this is one of, if not the

21

destination resort areas that holds the values of the aloha

22

spirit for tourism that the Maui Island Plan vision

23

espouses.

24
25

Throughout the Draft Maui Island Plan, the policies
and objectives speak to the desire to encourage our visitor
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industry through increased visitor spending, stable

2

employment opportunities, improvement to the business

3

climate, and to map the Resort Destination areas to manage

4

visitor impacts on residential and local communities

5

facilities.

6

We request that the entire boundary of Project

7

District 2 Kapalua Mauka be included in the Resort

8

designation on the Economics Policy Map 4-1. The Kapalua

9

Resort clearly meets the definition of a large-scale resort

10

11
12

development in a Resort Destination area.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Pam, can you
conclude, please.

13

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

15

Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,

16

thank you.

17

Dick Mayer, to be followed by Ke'eaumoku Kapu.

18

MR. MAYER: Thank you, again, Council Members.

19

Some short items. First, just a brief explanation of the

20

two properties that are mentioned in Waihee for -- that

21

was -- by one of the previous testifiers. One of them is an

22

Ag subdivision. And consequently, it was not included in

23

the GPAC Urban Growth or Rural Growth Boundary areas. And

24

there are many other Ag subdivisions. So when you look at

25

unit totals, keep in mind that the unit totals you have are
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only for those in the Urban and Rural Growth areas and do

2

not include the many Ag subdivisions that could be set up

3

throughout the County. The other one is a fast track

4

housing project that will come to the Council as a fast

5

track process. And so you will have a chance to -- to make

6

a decision on that as a 201H, I believe, project.

7

Just within -- within the Economic Development

8

section that you'll be looking at today, are two items --

9

three items that you'll wonder why they're repeated twice;

10

health, education and energy issues. They are found in both

11

the Economic Development chapter element, and also within

12

the Infrastructure section.

13

So you'll be looking at it now, and you'll be

14

looking at those same three items -- and perhaps others --

15

at a later date. And there's -- there's a difference.

16

Within the Economic Development thing, we're talking about

17

health and education, for example, as -- as it a -- affects

18

the community's economic well--being. And then you'll see it

19

again repeated in the Infrastructure section. We're talking

20

about as a necessary thing to service the community. And --

21

so you'll see some differences in the wording, but it is

22

repeated twice. And so if the first time you go through it,

23

you say everything about health is not in it, you may see it

24

in that latter section.

25

Lastly, I listened yesterday to your discussion in
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the afternoon. And I was very appreciative of the way the

2

Council Committee looked at the GPAC proposals as well as

3

the Director's and made a selection each time, which is the

4

better wording, the GPAC proposal or the Director's? And

5

I'm not saying that we had the better one every single time.

6

The Director was able to look at ours and modify it in some

7

cases. But in some cases, I believe that our original

8

wording was superior. And I think in many cases, you

9

selected that -- that wording in making your recommendations

10

yesterday. And I hope you'll continue doing that. And

11

that's why I think the matrix, which has all the

12

recommendations, is going to be something that's very useful

13

to you. Thank you very much.

14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.

16

Ke'eaumoku Kapu, followed by Paul Laub.

17

MR. KAPU: Aloha mai kakou, the Council and the

18

Chair.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.

20

MR. KAPU: Ke'eaumoku Kapu from Lahaina. I'm here

21

to testify on the Heritage Resources. And I'd like to open

22

my discussion with just the front page of the book, yeah,

23

where the manao came from to implement the tapa design.

24

Because in Hawaii, we have strong beliefs when we implement

25

these kinds of things that there's -- there's a metaphor
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that we go by always when we start talking about tapa. And

2

it has a lot to do when you -- when you unveil the tapa,

3

many of these things that unfold before you is things of the

4

past that should be kept under the tapa for such a time as

5

an educational component for the future generations

6

tomorrow.

7

And it's kind of odd that for the front cover of

8

the General -- the Maui Island Plan was used the tapa. So

9

by going through the information, hoping to find some

10

clarity based upon what another county's vision is in hopes

11

the same vision that our people that have been living here

12

until time immemorial have always tried to keep and solidify

13

based upon the respect of how we're going to maintain our

14

island's resources. And I came up with a lot of

15

undisturbing [sic] kinds of things.

16

In the Maui Plan -- when I go into the Heritage

17

component, it always pops out to me on whether or not these

18

are the kinds of values that we kept secret under the

19

unveiling of the tapa. And I came up with these words on

20

every policy or recommendation. And it says, "foster,

21

encourage, ensure, require, incorporate, utilize,

22

coordinate, identify opportunities, adopt regulations,

23

promote, support, provide additional support."

24
25

When we use the -- the manao behind what the -- the
tapa tells us on the things that we -- we need to keep for
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our future generations tomorrow, it's never recommendations.

2

It's always straight to the point and factual. I hardly see

3

anything here that says shall. So when I look at these --

4

these things -- and you know what, I mahalo the General Plan

5

Action Commission for all these years that they have

6

dedicated themselves to putting this plan together. Then at

7

the same time, it goes to the next step. I don't know

8

whether or not the Commission and the County Planning

9

Department, even seeing things as complex as it was back

10

then.

11

I've been present for a lot of the meetings that

12

was held, especially when it came to these kinds of things.

13

And there was one that really stuck out to me. And it says,

14

"Ensure traditional public access, including Native Hawaiian

15

trails are maintained for public use." That's scary. We

16

got one magazine out there called Maui Reveals [sic] that

17

really going cater to these kind of things. It's very

18

arbitrary. And I don't like being in my taro patch then,

19

all of a sudden, I see this tour bus come driving by my

20

place taking pictures of my butt because I stay planting my

21

taro.

22

I -- I really hope that the County takes into high

23

consideration of the values that are within this docket.

24

That when you look at the -- the Heritage Resources, why

25

is -- why was those kinds of things are secondary to
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everything else? Population is first, everything else. If

2

you look at the Heritage Resource, it also will be

3

conflicting to every other issue in here when you talk about

4

Land Use, Directed Growth Plan, Long Range Implementation

5

Plans.

6

Take your time, please. I mean, a lot of people

7

came to you -- I felt the need to come from my home to share

8

because I didn't know whether or not I would have another

9

opportunity to even say anything to this once this thing

10

goes down the slide, whether or not I have to slap myself in

11

the head that I had other opportunities to try my best to do

12

whatever I could. I just -- you know, I congratulate those

13

that put the docket together. And I wish you the best of

14

luck. And be patient, please. Thank you.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

16

Members, questions for the testifier?

17

Ke'eaumoku, I don't -- it's not a question. But

18

just to let you know that in this process for this Maui

19

Island Plan, the Chair's plan is to move from one element to

20

the other element. And we will be noticing in an agenda,

21

those elements that would be heard. And you have an

22

opportunity to come back at any point in time to make the

23

input into this process. So it's not confined only to a one

24

time. Okay?

25

MR. KAPU: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

2

Okay. Paul Laub, followed by Kaniloa Kamaunu.

3

MR. LAUB: Aloha mai kakou (Inaudible). I want to

4

share with you some experiences that I've had as a former

5

deputy sheriff and pilot and commander of an aero-squadron.

6

And also, last year I happened to visit Hikkaduwa, Sri

7

Lanka, where the 2,000 people were killed on the train from

8

the tsunami. This is a Natural Disaster section. There

9

already exists Civil Defense and certain training programs

10

here for after-the-fact responders. But experience shows

11

that practice drills pay off. Mistakes are made, corrective

12

actions are taken. And when disaster strikes, everyone

13

knows their appropriate responses.

14

I'm asking for strengthening of these programs with

15

mandatory practice and training sessions that would include

16

a coordinated interagency response. It is my understanding

17

that the Police Department has opted out of utilizing

18

volunteer citizens for traffic control due to the obvious

19

inherent dangers. However, on. the West Side, we have daily

20

traffic jams and a limited police presence. It would be

21

excellent if we had trained traffic control people to help

22

during times of disaster. The locals may have knowledge of

23

appropriate procedures. A large part of the population

24

could be visitors who are clueless to these procedures.

25

It seems it might be a good idea if all resort
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staffs were trained in emergency procedures program. It

2

also might be a good idea for the County Civil Defense to

3

sponsor a class in the high schools so that the schools have

4

their own built-in response teams and the students can be

5

certified. It also might be a good idea to stage a major

6

disaster practices. An example might be an earthquake and

7

tsunami drill, including an actual evacuation to see how it

8

really works.

9

It also might be a good idea to -- to request the

10

State remove schools that are near the ocean, like Kam III.

11

It should be moved to mauka of the Haw -- highway, and

12

Kam III could be made into a park. It's location is not

13

suitable due to -- if it's an imminent tsunami, people are

14

going to run down there to save their children, and it's

15

going to be nothing but jammed up. So those are my

16

experiences. That was my area of kuleana. And thank you

17

very much.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

19

Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none,

20

thank you.

21

Kaniloa Kamaunu, followed by Lucienne deNaie.

22

MR. KAMAUNU: I apologize. My name's Kaniloa

23

Kamaunu. I got to apologize. I didn't have enough -- I

24

Xer

25

have enough paper. So e kala mai. Sorry about that. But

I printed everything in my car printer, but I didn't
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I'll try to get those that don't have a copy of what I had

2

put together. My whole thing, you know, I've always come to

3

talk about kuleana. And that is basically my area of

4

limited expertise at this time. I'm still learning what my

5

area is. And I'm sorry once more about being short on the

6

copies.

7

But in front of you, you have three different parts

8

of law for the Hawaiian kanawai, or the Hawaiian laws or

9

kingdom. And the first one that you see before you that is

10

highlighted is called the Compiler's Preface. It comes from

11

1846. And just the main point that I'd like to point out is

12

many cases necessary arise that can only be measured by the

13

old law. New laws or amendments of the old law cannot

14

divest rights previously acquired. And in other countries,

15

so in this, the repealed ordinances must be restored to its

16

innumerous cases occurring before the repeal or

17

modification. Means and remedies may be altered, but the

18

rights themselves, if vested, cannot be constitutionally

19

disturbed. It is one admitted doctrine of civil -- civil

20

jurisprudence.

21

So my concern about being part of this whole

22

process is already there for me. I should be represented

23

because of the vested rights that are out there. And if you

24

look at all the things that -- the topics that you have on

25

your paper, they actually become -- can become intrusive
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upon my vested rights. So being that I am a kuleana owner

2

and not a 7-1, says use, these vested rights now become a

3

concern because water comes directly from where my family

4

lives. And if you trace my history, we are actually at the

5

beginning where the water is being taken. And we -- we have

6

rights to it.

7

The next set of -- I guess the third -- the third

8

page on the backside talks about allodial titles. And this

9

is where you quote -- or the State quotes HRS 7-1. And this

10

is actually the original entirety of this law. It says,

11

"When landlords have taken allodial titles to your lands,

12

the people on each of their lands should not be deprived of

13

their right to take firewood, house timber, aho cord, thatch

14

or ti leaf from the land on which they live for their own

15

private use should they need them, but they shall not have

16

the right to take such articles to sell for profit. They

17

should also inform the landlord of this" -- "or his agent

18

and proceed with his consent."

19

Now, this is the original law. It was also revi --

20

revised in 1856. I didn't have that available for you, but

21

I can send that to you. The people should also have the

22

right to drinking water, running water and right-of-way.

23

The spring waters and the running waters and roadways shall

24

all -- shall be free to all.

25

So the thing is, you know, we have a lot of these
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people that come out to kuleana lands. They take the

2

western outlook of what they have, and they lock us out.

3

But according to this and 7

4

to do that because we have the right to practice our

5

kuleana. When people purchase our kuleana lands, they

6

should know what laws are there enacted already. Because

7

according to the Compiler's Preface, it's already demanded

8

that they -- that these rights. And a lot of them are only

9

users, meaning that they're not -- they didn't inherit their

HRS 7-1, they're not allowed

10

lands. They either bought their lands or were given their

11

lands by someone else. The (inaudible) still belongs to the

12

original land awardee.

13

And the last portion of this -- which I believe is

14

the fifth page on the very bottom, highlighted, this also is

15

a concern because we have this problem. This is the 1860

16

law, An Act for the Protection of Place of Sepulture. If

17

anyone, not having any legal right to do so, shall willfully

18

dig up, disinter, remove or convey away any human bod --

19

body from any burial place or shall knowingly aid in such

20

disinterment, removal or convey away such offender and any

21

person accessory thereto, either before or after the fact,

22

shall be punished by imprisonment or hard labor -- you can

23

read the rest yourself.

24
25

So these things have already been enacted. And if
we go back to Compiler's Preface, these things are already
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protected, and they -- they -- they need to be looked at.

2

Because when we look at the - - the Maui Island Plan, even

3

though for those who don't understand what really is playing

4

out, there is a lot of intrusion. There's a lot of things

5

that are injurious to us.

6

-

So for the sake of the kuleana, if we talk about

7

kuleana, this is where everything starts. And if we're

8

going to talk about the law, if we're going to have these

9

things, then follow or get aside so that everybody, if we're

10
11

looking for peace, can get it.
Oh, and I'd also like to mahalo the staff

12

members -- your staff members for helping me get this

13

together, and also Dick Mayer, who kind of came to me and

14

talked to me about his idea of having Ma -- Waihee put into

15

the central part of the area. But thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mahalo. Thank you.

17

Members, questions for the testifier?

18

Yeah. Not a question, but I want to thank you for

19

bringing forward this kind of information. Because I think

20

for the past processes that you've participated in and

21

raised these issues, it is worth the time of this body to be

22

careful in terms of understanding what they are. And so we

23

will like to rely on -- on some of your information and

24

resources as we proceed on that. So --

25

MR. KAMAUNU: Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mahalo.

2

MR. KAMAUNU: Mahalo.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is

4

Lucienne deNaie, followed by Darla White.

5

MS. DENAIE: Aloha. I had printing problems too,

6

so I'm off the computer screen here. I'm Lucienne deNaie.

7

And I'm going to give some input on the Cultural Resources

8

section. I'm sorry I missed the earlier meetings. But I

9

chaired the -- not chaired -- I was the spokesperson for the

10

Independent Research Committee that worked on this, so I'm

11

real familiar with the language here. And I think the staff

12

has done a real good job, but I think there's a couple of

13

overlooked things that might be important that I'd like to

14

bring to your attention.

15

One is on the Goal, when you start out the Cultural

16

Resources Goal, there's the concept in the GPAC of -- that

17

we would be rich in cultural and archeological resources.

18

think that's important. It's not just that we are going to

19

protect them, but, you know, we might just be protecting

20

three. We should be rich in resources. On Objective 1, it

21

needs to have some of the oric[inal intent, just summarizing

22

Article 12, Section 7 is really not the whole story.

23

On Policy 3 under Objective 1 -- this is

24

Ke'eaumoku's point about the trails. The key word

25

"preserved" is left out and the access emphasized. I think
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the preservation of the trails is as important as the

2

access. Because the access is a matter that needs to be

3

negotiated where it's appropriate, but the preservation is

4

often something that is lost.

5

Under Policy 4, in Objective 1, there's a statement

6

that was deleted. This was suggested by our youngest

7

member, Kaipo, where he says, "require that County memos

8

regarding development impacts." I think he's referring to

9

like staff reports and things like that which, when they're

10

done, often no one is reviewing them, no Native Hawaiian

11

associations. And so it's not like the developer's

12

preparations. These are the ones that the County does.

13

I -- I think that concept really needs to be kept in. And

14

it's not redundant with Objective -- with other objectives.

15

On Objective 3, where it says "provide

16

inventories," it's been kind of cut down to enhance the

17

island's historical, archeological, and so forth. The

18

GPAC's language is much stronger because it defines how that

19

enhancement could take place. If that should be better as

20

an Action, so be it. But I think the concept needs to be

21

there.

22

Moving on to Objective 3, Policy 6, it's deleted.

23

And it's the opportunities for stakeholders to be involved.

24

So I really think we need a chance to make sure that

25

stakeholders keep to be involved. That's part of the
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problem. And under Objective 3, the Actions, we're equating

2

a Cultural Resources Plan with a Management Plan that was

3

referred to earlier as deleted in Action 1. I think

4

Action 1 needs to remain because it includes a Management

5

Plan, not just an Inventory and Resources Plan.

6

And Action 5, there's an important word in Action 5

7

that's missing, the "incentives." It was in Action 7.

8

Action 7 was deleted. But we have a chance to just insert

9

that word in Action 5. I think we need to give land owners

10

incentives to do the right thing with our Cultural

11

Resources. That was something that we discussed very much

12

in the GPAC proceedings.

13

Action 12 and 13, very important. This was

14

deleted. We do not have a list of Native Hawaiian

15

organizations to go to. One of the most unfortunate thing

16

about our Cultural Impact Statements is the majority of them

17

says, "I contacted two or three agencies, no one said

18

anything. And therefore, there's nothing to report." And

19

whereas, a person on the street could think of a number of

20

groups they could have contacted, but there's no master list

21

for them to turn to. So I think that really needs to be

22

back in there.

23

And the Action Number 13 refers to -- actually,

24

what Kaniloa is talking about, the kuleana concerns, the

25

title questions. This was deleted. I think the intent of

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
176

1

2/9/10 PC
this Action 13 could really save us a lot of time if we

2

could deal with some of these things upfront before they

3

become impediments to the final plan of something. I'm

4

probably out of time. Yeah?

5
6
7
8
9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: You're lucky because the
timer was not put on.
MS. DENAIE: Oh, it's not on. It says three
minutes. Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: But I think you're --

10

MS. DENAIE: Yeah.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're at that point.

12

MS. DENAIE: Okay. So I can't say anything about

13

reefs or anything else?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.

15

MS. DENAIE: All right. May I just say Shoreline

16

Reefs, Objective 1, under the Actions, there's Action 2 that

17

says "implement and retire" -- "and require compliance."

18

Well, it was suggested this be deleted. And, actually, it

19

said, well, there's already a -- a redundant with Policy 5.

20

Policy 5 does not refer to any implementation. And we

21

really need the implementation part. So that -- you know,

22

that Number 2 has implementation in it. That's what's

23

needed on these things.

24
25

And on Action 4, under that same section, we're
talking about an integrated nearshore water quality program.
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It's recommended for deletion. I didn't really see that

2

completely included anyplace, and it's just so needed.

3

And then under Objective 3 --

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Lucienne.

5

MS. DENAIE: Oh, yeah. Okay, I'll conclude with

6

this.

7
8
9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm going to ask you to
conclude.
MS. DENAIE: Pollutant loads. We really need to

10

require new development to control pollutant loads. There

11

is a -- a process, a Federal process. It's rarely used.

12

And we just have all these cumulative problems. Thank you.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Chair would

14

suggest that since you have such a -- a list of things, I

15

I tried myself to keep track --

16

MS. DENAIE: I know. I need to e-mail them to you.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It would be best if you

18

submit something --

19

MS. DENAIE: Yeah.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to us in writing,

21

indicating exactly what you have presented.

22

MS. DENAIE: Okay. I will.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, questions

24
25

for the testifier? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Lucienne,
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for all that information again. No. No, really, I was

2

trying to, you know, look for the right place to put it all,

3

but then --

4
5
6
7
8
9
10

MS. DENAIE: Well, I was racing against the clock.
If I have an hour, you know, you could get it all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. By then -- by then
you're on to the next one, so -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If you paced yourself, you
could have come to several meetings and made it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But that -- that neither

11

being here -- here nor there. I've heard a lot of concern

12

by you about items that have been recommended for deletion?

13

MS. DENAIE: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you'd like to have those

15

put back in?

16

MS. DENAIE: Or -- or -- or language from them

17

captured in another policy. And -- and -- and I'm only

18

sharing that because we really hashed through these things.

19

So I'm trying to convey to you the intention of both the --

20

the subcommittee who worked on this, who, you know, was

21

Kehau Filimoeatu to Hinano Rodrigues, Wallette Pellegrino,

22

Lesley Bruce. People with far greater knowledge than

23

myself. I was merely their scribe. But this was the

24

intention -- and it was the intention of the entire group

25

too, that this was the intentional language of the policy.
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So that was my point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. You know, and what we

3

see mentioned by the -- by the edits, is that -- well, it's

4

included someplace else.

5

MS. DENAIE: Not always the case.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's really important that

7

we have this information from you so that we can put the

8

right thing in here.

9

MS. DENAIE: Thank you.

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, other

12

questions?

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Break. I need a break soon.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If we can -- okay. I

15

have one more testifier that's signed up. Okay.

16

Member Nishiki, question.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. I guess,

18

Lucienne, I was a bit concerned and -- and -- and,

19

Mr. Chair, nothing against you. But the concern that when

20

we were looking at GPAC, Commission, Director

21

Recommendation, we were pretty much accepting the Director's

22

Recommendations. And so if there was any changes that we

23

wanted to see that was coming from the GPAC, then we, as

24

Committee Members here, would have to say, well, we want to

25

see it kept and then not demanded, but ask the Planning
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Department what and why their difference in language or
deletion.

3

I guess my question

did the Planning Department

4

ever contact any of you in regards to why the changes or

5

suggest that they were going to do it?

6

MS. DENAIE: The Planning -- Planning Department

7

has been completely transparent. They've sent us drafts of

8

everything so that we could keep up with them. A few of us

9

have. And they didn't explain every reason. I think a lot

10

of times, it was to tighten up the language. I want to say

11

probably 80 percent of what is in the Planning Director's

12

version -- maybe even more -- agrees exactly with GPAC.

13

It's not like there's a big tug-of-war here. I mean, this

14

sounds like a lot. These are all details. These are a lot

15

of details here, but they're important details.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah -- yeah -- yeah --

17

Lucienne, I'm not trying to be and rub shoulders with you.

18

Okay. My question is pretty well to the point. Did they

19

come -- you said they've been transparent. So -- so you're

20

saying today that in a lot of the stuff he said, you do not

21

agree?

22

MS. DENAIE: I'm saying that I think that the

23

intent was not put forward in it and it could be better

24

served. And many -- you know, this is a huge document. I'm

25

not going to say the Director couldn't have missed a few
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things and that if I would have like contacted them and

2

said, "You know, have you thought this over? It might be

3

better this way." I didn't do that. So I didn't have the

4

back and forth on this over the last couple months.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. Okay. And -- and,

6

Mr. Chairman, this is not a question, but this is a

7

statement.

8
9
10

If you feel strong enough as a member and served in
the committee that you've dealt with the Cultural Resources
area --

11

MS. DENAIE: Yeah.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Along with a -- I can't

13

remember who the other people that you mentioned.

14

MS. DENAIE: Yeah, yeah.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I've heard the names,

16

Lesley Bruce and --

17

MS. DENAIE: Wallette and Hinano --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

19

MS. DENAIE: -- and Kehau.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I -- I -- I -- I feel more

21

comfortable in hearing from you and -- and -- and stating

22

the reasons why you'd like to see it put back. Otherwise,

23

if the decisions that we've made so far are what you don't

24

feel, you're really throwing away the opportunity that you

25

guys have spent many hours doing. And we sure would like to
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hear from you.

2

MS. DENAIE: Well, I --

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And as Gladys said, I had a

4

hard time trying to keep up.

5

MS. DENAIE: Oh, yeah. I understand.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Give us that information.

7

MS. DENAIE: I have it typed up, so I will e-mail

8

it. And then, hopefully, folks can just go down the line

9

and say, oh, this is this and this is that. And it will

10

make it a lot easier in your process.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

12

MS. DENAIE: Thank you.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other

14
15

questions?
Okay. Not a question, but also a comment. I just

16

want to clarify that I appreciate hearing you say that the

17

process in your view as a GPAC member was a very transparent

18

process. I think the difficulty here is what we have as a

19

document before us includes the matrix, as well as all of

20

the technical reports. But in that matrix, we're accepting

21

what has been presented to the Council as a culmination of

22

the Planning Commissions --

23

MS. DENAIE: Yeah.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the GPAC. And then

25

that's what we're dealing with.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki has all the

3

right to make changes to any part of that matrix that he

4

would like, okay. And that is his privilege to do so. He

5

is called upon at this time to make decisions. So I think

6

that when you're trying to defer some of that to the GPAC,

7

who has already given us information, you need to take some

8

time to look at the document to be sure that you understand

9

it. And if you need clarification further than what's in

10

the matrix, then you're free to call any one of these

11

Members to find out, as well as the Department, for

12

clarification.

13

So I want to just express the fact that this

14

process is open, it's dependent on our ability to examine

15

the documents before us to know who is making what

16

statements. It's clearly outlined. And that's what's

17

before us. We're not accepting any one plan; that these are

18

all the options. This is a recommendation given to us. So

19

I just want to thank you for that, and we'll look forward to

20

your list of recommendation.

21
22

MS. DENAIE: I appreciate all your hard work.
Thank you.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm going to move on, Member

25

Nishiki. Okay. We have one more testifier, and I want to
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complete this. Okay.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIK1: Okay.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Darla White.

4

MS. WHITE: Aloha, Council Members. And thank you

5

very much again for this opportunity. I did make copies of

6

my testimony this time. It does include -- it's referring

7

back to my last testimony, the Environmental Policy. It's

8

short and sweet, but I have it here for your reference.

9

So just to revisit the comments on population from

10

last time, I'd like to say -- well, first, my name is Darla

11

White. I work for the DLNR Division of Aquatic Resources.

12

am a marine researcher. And I am here on my own behalf.

13

Within the framework of the Maui Island Plan and

14

for the future of Maui's Natural Resources, the issue of

15

population growth with -- needs to be addressed and

16

considered for the -- for the sustainability of our

17

communities. Population growth is known to be the greatest

18

threat to natural resources on the planet. We all depend on

19

what our land and waters provide.

20

It is within the law to set population limits in

21

Hawaii as highlighted below in Hawaii's Environmental Policy

22

in the document I just sent around. It would be valuable to

23

calculate what a sustainable population for Maui island

24

actually is, taking into consideration potable water

25

resources, the ability to treat and safely reuse wastewater,
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and the health of the land and the water which provides

2

sustenance, especially in the face of climate change and sea

3

level rise. American Samoa is a good example of the pacific

4

island community taking measures toward this exact end. And

5

there's a link here with their documents.

6

Additionally, almost reflecting what Ke'eaumoku

7

Kapu said, I have some additions. Smart growth should be

8

just that. And the Maui Island Plan is how Maui is going to

9

grow. I ask that you keep in mind throughout this process,

10

do the goals of the Heritage Resources Element align with

11

the proposed growth boundaries? With current technologies,

12

we have the ability to calculate the carrying capacity of

13

the land, to model the flow of pollutants, to predict

14

impacts to our natural environment, to mitigate hazards, and

15

to ensure that our special and unique ecosystems can

16

flourish in harmony -- harmony with our communities. But

17

that has to be ensured through bold policies, tough

18

language, and a system of checks and balances. Business as

19

usual and leaps of faith are not enough to save our

20

resources. And the decline of our nearshore reefs shows us

21

that.

22

These ecosystems evolved over hundreds and

23

thousands of years. And to see our reefs declining so

24

significantly in a single decade means we need to change the

25

way we do things. There are many impacts to these
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resources, and one of the ones we can control is land use.

2

It has to be the responsibility of those users; the

3

developers, agriculture, and other users to demonstrate

4

using models, numbers, what their quantitative impacts will

5

be and how they will address them quantitatively.

6

Additionally, I'd like to request change in the

7

language in the Heritage Resources Section 2.2, Policy

8

2.2.1-a. It says, "Encourage a management system that

9

protects and temporarily rests the reef ecosystems

10

identified in the map from overuse." I'd like to encourage

11

you to remove "temporarily rests" from this language. It's

12

ambiguous and contradicts the section goal. I suggest

13

substituting "removes point and nonpoint source stressers

14

from." Thank you for your consideration.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

16

Members, any questions for the testifier?

17

Okay. I just want to say thank you very much,

18

Darla, for your participation and in providing us with this

19

kind of resource information. Okay.

20

MS. WHITE: Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's helpful, yeah. Okay.

22

Members, I -- I notice that Mr. Caires has come

23

back. So he's the only other testifier now that's returned.

24

If we can just take him, he'd be the last person signed.

25

Okay.
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And this would be for Item Number 19.
MR. CAIRNS: Yes. Thank you, Chair, for calling on

3

me to come. I had to go somewhere, and I made it back in

4

time. Good afternoon, Members. My name is Leo Caires. I'm

5

testifying on behalf of myself and as a business owner, a

6

small business owner here in Maui in the renewable energy

7

services industry.

8
9

First off, I just would really like to thank -give a lot of thanks to Vice-Chair Molina for introducing

10

this draft here today in front of us. And it -- it opens up

11

the discussion for a -- a very important aspect of our

12

economy and of our environment. I myself, I started my

13

business over five years ago in this industry. I'm

14

certified by Southwest Wind Power, who is one of the largest

15

small wind manufacturers in the world that has basically

16

sold over 190,000 small units in over 90 countries.

17

I've been involved in a lot of the educational

18

aspects when I started this because, you know, grid

19

connected wind energy systems wasn't really a topic of

20

discussion quite some time back, and now it is for a couple

21

of reasons. I also was involved in teaching at the VITEC

22

program at Maui Community College and involved in nonprofit

23

organizations, trying to educate the public about the

24

benefits of wind Indust -- energy.

25

Hawaii has experienced essentially two things, in
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my opinion, that has really propelled the need to look at

2

these alternative energy technologies. One is the ener --

3

as the economy had thrived, the energy costs, as we've seen,

4

went up. And also, one of the first adoptions of a small

5

wind energy system, Federal Tax -- Income Tax credit has

6

been adopted in -- over a very long period of time. So to

7

me, this is a breath of fresh air to be a part of this

8

discussion and -- and looking forward to discussing further

9

with the Members. And thank you for that.

10

You know, this type of technology at this time

11

helps our local economy, helps bring Federal funds to our

12

economy. And what we're doing is creating environment to

13

help entre -- entrepreneurs, such as myself, further develop

14

their businesses in this industry. Basically, what I'm

15

going to talk about is a couple of things. I've circulated

16

this document with some of my colleagues in the industry

17

that we work with. One of them was the co-founder of

18

Southwest Wind Power. And they got a lot of good feedback

19

from this draft here. There was just a -- a couple of

20

comments I wanted to share.

21

The -- the first item was on development standards

22

on the setbacks. It talks about the height of the small

23

wind system shall equal to the setback requirement on the

24

structure itself. We wanted to put forward -- or I wanted

25

to put forward a topic for discussion where if the tower and
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the foundation is a wet-stamped engineered structure, if it

2

could be set back at the normal setbacks versus the

3

equivalent of the height of the tower. This would allow

4

individuals -- like on Makani Road, what have you, where I

5

get calls that they would be able to pursue a project like

6

this. I ran out of time already.

7

The other area was under permitted uses -- I'll

8

just wrap up here. Section C, talking about the excess

9

energy that goes back into the grid. This -- this would be

10

an opportunity to look at the other vehicles that the

11

utility offers independent owners verse -- whether it be net

12

metering. Schedule Q also allows you to own your own system

13

and sell power back to the utility. And the feed-in

14

Tariff that has not been completely adopted, but is actually

15

under way right now that would provide small wind owners an

16

opportunity to sell energy at their home.

17

So that's -- that's all I have. I have a couple

18

more things I'll probably end up submitting it as written

19

testimony.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much.

21

Members, questions for the testifier? Member

22
23

Molina, followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Just one

24

question. Good afternoon, Mr. Caires. And thank you for

25

your testimony. Earlier we heard testimony regarding the
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noise concerns. These newer systems that have come out now,

2

can you comment on in terms of like decibel levels and what,

3

you know, I guess most residents can tolerate?

4

MR. CAIRES: Sure. That's a real good question.

5

And that is something really important when you start

6

developing a project, you really want to be sensitive to

7

those issues because they are a good reason to -- to pay

8

attention to. And what we found is some of the blade

9

designs actually have made the technology reduce the decibel

10

emission. So I'd like to see the 60 decibels that is well

11

received, that was a good threshold to have. These --

12

these -- these units are relatively quiet. Usually,

13

typically, the sound of the blade, so to speak, blend into

14

the ambient noises around. And usually, the surrounding

15

noises drown out the -- the turbine blades itself. And it's

16

usually a misconception that people think it's going to be

17

really loud, but these systems aren't really loud at all.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

19

Thank you, Chair.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

22

Mr. Caires, thank you for being here and for the

23

information you provided. I want to ask you, what is your

24

understanding or description of what small wind energy

25

systems are? Is there some criteria or --
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MR. CAIRES: Yeah, that's a really good question.

2

Actually, I have a good definition for you right here in

3

front of me. A small wind system is classified as a -- what

4

I would recommend as a unit that is aligned with what the

5

net metering law here in Hawaii is. And that is up to 100

6

KW. And I thought it would be appropriate if you classify a

7

small wind system as 100 KW rated capacity unit or less.

8

That would allow -- as this --- as this draft recog -- gives

9

the opportunity for all zones to pursue wind energy.

10

So commercial applications, you don't really

11

typically see -- want to put a residential turbine on a

12

commercial-zoned area. You want a commercial-scale turbine

13

to help offset energy costs on the commercial side. So

14

that's something I suggested. And if you give me a second

15

here, I'll give you guys the definition of that. Where is

16

it here?

17

"A small wind energy system consists of a wind

18

turbine of 100 KW output or less. Its tower and ancillary

19

electrical equipment for inter" -- "interconnecting to the

20

utility system or grid." A small wind energy conversion

21

system is also defined by the American Wind Energy

22

Association as, "a machine that converts kinetic energy in

23

the wind into a useable form, such as mechanical, thermal or

24

electrical."

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And small wind
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energy systems would be installed and utilized by whom?

2

MR. CAIRES: Well, the -- the objective here is to

3

really empower the individual, the land owner, the

4

commercial business owner to offset or control the utility

5

cost that they pay. We all know that the effect on oil

6

really fluc -- has a tendency to fluctuate as the economies

7

fluctuate. And so the -- the owner of the facility could be

8

the residential owner. But also, I notice in the draft

9

here, it -- it didn't include third-party ownership.

10

Because some of these facilities would be third-party

11

financed.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

13

MR. CAIRES: And so that was -- so it could be

14

owned by that individual or a third-party, to help bring the

15

energy to the customer who needs it.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,
Mr. Caires.

18

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

20

questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, thank you

21

very much.

22

MR. CAIRES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is there anyone here

24

who would like to testify that has not signed? Okay. Then

25

at this time, if there's no objections, the Chair will close
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public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

3
4

...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, the Chair has a

5

recommendation for Item 19. If you wouldn't mind, I would

6

like to present it to you for your consideration.

7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Recommendation.
ITEM NO. 19

SMALL WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS (C.C. No. 10-11)

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just so we are all on the

10

same page, the PC-l9 is a proposal from Councilmember

11

Vice-Chair Molina, to establish a small wind energy system

12

as permitted uses in all zoning districts, subject to

13

various standards and limitations. We have before us a bill

14

that would establish a new chapter in the comprehensive

15

zoning ordinance. If enacted, the bill would be a land use

16

ordinance.

17

Under the Charter, land use ordinances must be

18

reviewed by the Planning Commissions before enactment by the

19

Council. And so our Action Item today is a draft resolution

20

to formally transmit the bill to the Lanai, Maui and the

21

Molokai Planning Commissions.

22

So at this time, then, it is the Chair's

23

recommendation that we pass out the resolutions so that we

24

may forward the documents to the Planning Commissions.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So moved, Mr. Chair.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

3

Molina to adopt the resolution on PC-19, seconded by Member

4

Baisa. Discussion on the motion? Member Molina.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And,

6

first of all, thank you for putting this on your docket. As

7

we all know, your -- your plate is quite full with a lot of

8

important items. So I certainly appreciate you bringing

9

this matter to the Committee's attention. And I'd just like

10

to just condense my comments into why the purpose of

11

consideration of small wind energy systems for this --

12

zoning areas other than Rural and Agriculture.

13

You know, we -- we're -- nationwide, there's -- the

14

green movement is happening. And especially here in the

15

pacific, we're so very vulnerable and maybe overly dependent

16

on petroleum. And this is one way to give the public --

17

members of the public the option to look for other energy

18

types of sources. Because one of the biggest complaints you

19

hear is the cost of electricity, along with the issue of

20

preserving our environment. So this is one option for

21

people who would like to save on electricity, but also

22

protect the environment by less reliance on oil. And, of

23

course, we all know what oil can do to the environment.

24
25

It empowers our residents to seek these types of
alternative energy sources. And -- and this is a -- a great
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clean option to consider. It sort of meets the goals of

2

what the President has stated, to increase the percentage of

3

electricity coming from renewable sources. In a strange

4

sort of way, it's also looked at as an economic stimulus as

5

well, to help fuel the green economy, providing green jobs.

6

As we look towards the future, it's -- it's the direction

7

that -- you know, well, in my opinion and in many others, we

8

have to look for other viable ways to stimulate our economy

9

and to go in a different direction to protect our

10
11

environment and rely less on petroleum.
So, you know, I certainly appreciate all the

12

comments that was given to us today. I think that those are

13

of valid comments and concerns. And I had some of the same

14

questions as well. But, you know, I'm sure at the Planning

15

Commission level, they're going to go ahead and give us

16

their comments. And hopefully, it can come back to this

17

Council. At least, hopefully, while I'm still serving on

18

this Council, we can have it heard. But if not, then the

19

next Council, I'm sure, will get to hear this concern and

20

consider this matter as a new legislation for our County and

21

our people to consider. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Member Molina.

23

Any other discussion? Member Medeiros.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I

25

would like to request if -- whatever the procedure may be,
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if it's possible for it to also be considered by the Hana
Advisory Committee as far as being sent to the commissions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Planning Department, you
have a comment on it?
MR. HUNT: We'll forward that recommendation to the

6

Maui Planning Commission. And it's really their decision,

7

but they usually abide by your recommendation.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director.

9

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Member Johnson.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Yes one of the

12

questions -- and, of course, because a lot of the newer

13

technology that's come out, the way I'm reading this -- and

14

perhaps Member Molina can enlighten me. One of the things

15

that I've seen, they don't have turbans -- turbines at all.

16

They're a round device, and they actually spin. It's brand

17

new technology where the wind actually -- it's a round shape

18

cylindrical --

19
20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're talking about the
vertical --

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: The vertical, yes.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- wind generation.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I just was curious because

24

that is the latest, what I call -- you know, it's not very

25

obtrusive.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I know they're using that.

3

Is -- is this bill designed to address that particular type

4

of technology because it talks about turbines?

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If I may, Mr. Chair?

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Molina.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You know, I believe it

9

would. And I think it looks less obtrusive than say a

10

propeller, an open propeller. And I think as Mr. Caires

11

alluded to some of the newer technologies, that may be

12

something that would be incorporated under -- under the bill

13

as well. But although, I think you're referring to the one

14

we see in front of Maui Electric. I believe that's what --

15

what -- what -- that's the type of system you're referring

16

to, Member Johnson?

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: These are systems I've seen on

18

the mainland too. And they're just a tall cylindrical type

19

of device and they just spin.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's just the two systems.

21

It's either horizontal as propellers, or as vertical which

22

is what you're talking about.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think the resolution going

25

forward puts it into the Commission's hands so that they can
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have this discussion. And I think this is when all of these

2

ideas can be flushed out so that by the time it ccmes back

3

from the Commissions, we will have the benefit of seeing

4

what is being recommended. Arid if not, then hopefully we'll

5

be able to make those adjustments.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah, I don't have a

7

problem sending this on. Because I -- you know, I think

8

that what's happening is there's all these -- even maybe by

9

the time it comes back, there will be a new technology. Who

10

knows. But I -- I really do support energy independence.

11

I -- I share some of the concerns, I guess, raised by some

12

of the Members because MECO doesn't always accept, you know,

13

what electricity. And I guess being on the grid, I think

14

sometimes it's better to be independent. But I just will

15

wait until that comes back --

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- and let the Planning

18
19

Commission and the community raise those issues. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then if there's no

20

further discussion, all those in favor of the motion,

21

signify by saying aye.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

24

Then the motion is carried.

25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

9

ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And if there's no

11

objections, then the Chair would like to defer PC-19.

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: MV)

13

ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much.

15

Members, Chair is going to call for a ten-minute

16

recess. Before we take the recess, it is my intention to

17

try and continue on until 4:30 this afternoon. Okay. So

18

recess. ...(gavel)...

19

RECESS:

20

RECONVENE: 3:27 p.m.

21

3:17 p.m.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)...0kay. We're

22

going to reconvene our Planning Committee meeting. At this

23

time, Members, we're going to go to Item PC-2, that's Maui

24

Island Plan. And we're going to continue where we left off

25

last night.
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ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE. (C.C. No. 07-54)

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I kind of want to

5

have a discussion today on this -- this process that we're

6

going through. And -- and -- and maybe Gladys can chime in

7

just because I know that I attended one or two GPAC

8

meetings, and she attended like zillions. And -- and --

9

and -- and -- and I wanna --

-- I -- I wanna not give

10

credit, but kind of like try to understand, Mr. Chairman,

11

why my feeling is this way. And -- and if I don't have any

12

support, fine.

13

But today we heard from Lucienne. And she said she

14

was kind of like the chairperson in charge of the cultural

15

area, and with three other people, Lesley Bruce -- and I

16

can't remember the -- the different people. And I know

17

there were 25 members on the GPAC. And I know that they

18

went through a lot of pain and a lot of heated discussions

19

on -- and -- and created this recommendations for us.

20

Now, at your -- with your leadership we're going

21

through and looking at the three different recommendations,

22

and I've looked at it and -- and -- and -- and -- and looked

23

at language and -- and -- and every time there was a concern

24

of mine I -- I looked at which language was stronger, and it

25

always seems to be the GPAC that had more teeth and had an
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explanation given.
And where, I guess, my concern now is is the

3

Planning Director has looked at, Planning Commission and

4

GPAC's Recommendations, and now he's coming out with these

5

recommendations without any justification. So now it is up

6

to we, as Council Members, to ask him his justification.

7

My personal feeling is this. Lucienne or Members

8

of the GPAC, they have really no chance at this point in

9

time now to defend why, perhaps, their language is much

10

better than what is being represented by the Planning

11

Director, except in public testimony today, three minutes

12

only. I -- I -- I just feel -- and, you know, I looked at

13

other Council Members for their advice or input, that my

14

ideal would be -- my ideal would be to use the GPAC

15

Recommendations. And then if any of us have any changes

16

that we want to make and use -- either the Planning

17

Director's changes or Planning Commission's one, then so be

18

it. But for me personally, I just felt like they spent so

19

much more time. Here we have people from different parts of

20

the community. When I look at the -- the breakdown of the

21

people that were serving on that committee -- I mean, you've

22

had, I think, three or four Native Hawaiians, you've got

23

environmentalists, you've got people that used to work for

24

big land-owners --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- construction -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- you need to condense your
presentation.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And -- and -- and so

5

this is the reason why I would favor actually using the GPAC

6

Recommendations, looking at Commission and Director's

7

Recommendation, if there are any changes that we, as Council

8

Members want to see, and adopt their -- the Director's or

9

the Commission, then so be it. But I -- I -- I -- I guess I

10
11

would like that.
If that cannot be accommodated -- and I don't see

12

why not -- then perhaps have at least a member of GPAC here.

13

Or I just want to hear from other members just because --

14

you know, the last time I -- I was on the Council and I -- I

15

sat on it and we made like sweeping changes to the Community

16

Plan, despite of community participation, I really thought

17

that was kind of a slap in the face where we made something

18

like 28 changes just in the Kihei Community Plan -- Kihei

19

Wailea Community Plan, despite that members of the

20

community, you know, had given it a thought.

21

Similarly, I think this is happening and I -- I --

22

I just want to hear from other members. And that's all I --

23

I want to say, that we follow GPAC's Recommendations, if

24

possible. And then if we want to adopt Planning Commission,

25

the Planning Director, then at least we've got him right
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here to defend and -- and say why he thinks the language

2

should be different. But we've got somebody here. The

3

other way, we don't have GPAC and it's members to -- try to

4

defend.

5
6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I think we got the
gist of your presentation.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's it.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.

10

And I have some comments on the situation. I myself, and

11

I'm sure my colleagues are feeling the same way that, you

12

know, this is a tremendous amount of paper and a tremendous

13

task that's before us. And we're giving it a yeoman's try,

14

you know, to get through it. And, of course, you're also

15

under a very serious deadline. And so we're trying to forge

16

ahead here. And I already received one e-mail this

17

afternoon from a constituent who was watching us on

18

television and observed that he thought we weren't spending

19

enough time and just kind of moving things along. And I

20

think the people that are following us are just as confused

21

sometimes as we are.

22

I would -- I'm perfectly okay with the Director's

23

Recommendations. Because what he's done is distill the

24

GPAC, the Planning Commission and the Department's

25

Recommendations to try and, you know, make this a little
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more concise and not as voluminous. But when there is a big

2

change between what the GPAC is suggesting and what the

3

Director is suggesting, I don't think that there's any

4

problem -- and it's been suggested to me also that maybe it

5

would be helpful to have the chairperson of that area.

6

Like say, for instance, in population, I don't know

7

which GPAC member was in charge of that Investigative Review

8

Committee. But if they were available also as a resource so

9

we could kind of get a quick explanation. And then maybe it

10

would cut down on our debate and our uncertainty and help us

11

make a decision faster, maybe expedite this process. Thank

12

you.

13
14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate your -your comments.

15

Member Molina.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. For

17

myself, I'm all right with whatever direction you want to

18

set in terms of procedurally. I certainly appreciate all

19

the work the GPAC put in. On contentious issues, though, my

20

question would be if we have a GPAC representative, who

21

decides to come and represent? Because, for example, what

22

if you had something that was, you know, heavily contested

23

or an issue. Do we have the person to come and talk to us

24

that was from the prevailing side or the losing side? You

25

know what I mean? I want to make sure we have equal
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representation there as well, you know, to give different

2

perspectives to share. So that way, we -- we -- we -- we

3

get to hear from both sides on a particular issue that's

4

contentious amongst GPAC's

5

GPAC members.

And in terms of the --- the -- from Corporation

6

Counsel, because the GPAC is considered advisory. Now, if

7

they come and participate in a discussion now with the

8

Council Committee, would that be -- is there any issues with

9

that because they are advisory? Obviously, anyone from the

10

public can give testimony. But now that their work is done

11

and now if we, as a Council, decide to invite them to come

12

on and it may be perceived as influence from the GPAC to now

13

the Council Committee. I just want to make sure we don't

14

have any -- any kind of issues that could arise --

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- with regards to legal

17
18

issues.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. If I can

19

respond. One is the Chair has taken all of those

20

considerations under advisement. I understand where the

21

plan has been. I understand who's been reviewing them. And

22

I understand a need for them to want to advocate for

23

their -- their recommendations. I understand that what we

24

have before us is a recommendation that comes from the

25

Planning Department. It is, as Member Baisa said, a
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culmination of all of those recommendations from the GPAC as
well as from the Planning Commission.
You are right. If we were to make allowances at

4

this point in time, we would be in a very difficult

5

situation where we're going to try and now resolve, perhaps,

6

issues that have never been by consensus in terms of

7

recommendations by those bodies.

8
9

So the Chair has been very concerned about that and
sensitive to that as well. And that's why I often allow

10

those members who are here to participate in the public

11

testimony part of it to give us some of the -- their

12

thoughts on where we are moving, what we have done. And

13

that's why the document is still left open, although we're

14

going to move from one element to the other. Chair has

15

indicated that we will be revisiting the entire document

16

once we've gone through it again. I appreciate Member

17

Nishiki's comments, but we have started a process in re --

18

review. Okay.

19

Let me say, we have always known that this was

20

going to be a very, very difficult process for us. I mean,

21

just given the fact that it's come from those other

22

reviewing bodies. What is important, though, is that you

23

take the responsibility for making these decisions as

24

Council Members. And in order for you to do that, it's

25

incumbent on each of us to make sure that we understand the
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documents that we're going to be reviewing at the date and

2

the time and the place that it's scheduled. And if we don't

3

spend any time reviewing these documents, we will come to

4

this body and we will be looking for other ways of trying to

5

accommodate changes, perhaps that we're not quite familiar

6

with.

7

So that has been my --- my observation. And I say

8

that because if we're not prepared before coming to these

9

meetings and we don't know what the text is about for each

10

element and we don't know what the corresponding matrixes

11

are for that, then we will have a difficult time and we're

12

going to appear as though we're passing this out in mass,

13

okay. That's not the Chair's intent. What's the Chair's

14

intent is to allow you to have the fullest discussion, okay.

15

I'm facilitating a process that is monumental. So I want to

16

make sure that I give you ample opportunities to respond.

17

But it is our decision now. It is this body's

18

decision. It is not the GPAC's decision. They made their

19

recommendation. It is not the Planning Department or the

20

Planning Commission's decision. They made their

21

recommendation. It is for us to discern. And if we need

22

help and support, then I'm saying you're free to call any

23

one of those review bodies or members to get clarification,

24

but not at the point where now we would be relegating to

25

those participants to be part of the decision-making
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process. It is our responsibility.

2

So I carry that as a very serious weight for us as

3

a Council. And my task is to try and facilitate this in the

4

fairest way possible, given the broadest kinds of

5

expressions of recommendations. But ultimately, it's going

6

to come down to you making those final decisions as a

7

Council.

8
9

So this is our first pass. We're going to take it
in the -- in the order that I've recommended. We're going

10

to give you ample opportunity to make those changes that you

11

see necessary. The Department is here as resource and as

12

testifiers have participated in their capacity are also your

13

resource. You still have an opportunity to touch bases with

14

them on a one-to-one if you'd like. But I just wanted to

15

impress upon you that the Chair has been pushing to make

16

sure that we get through this document in a timely manner.

17

And I want to make sure that we understand that this is no

18

different than our participation in our budget process. We

19

scrutinize everything, and we have a limited time table in

20

which to do so. This general planning process is no

21

different.

22

So I am calling upon each of you to help me. And

23

by calling upon each of you, I'm expecting that you spend

24

time looking at every part of the document that we are

25

scheduled to meet and hear on. So that when you come here,
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it would be much easier if you're coming prepared to make
those recommendations for those items that we're going to be
reviewing, then trying to pick and choose as we're going

4

through it and then finally trying to backtrack.

5

So I'm just observing. That would be much easier

6

for us all together. But in terms of deferring to a review

7

body at this point, the Chair would be reluctant in terms of

8

trying to do that, yeah.

9

Okay. Member Johnson, and then Member Nishiki.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And -- and I -- I

11

totally concur with the statements you made. Because part

12

of what we're here now is we're also considering other

13

testimony. It -- it is ultimately up to us, whether we

14

agree with the Director, whether we agree with GPAC. I

15

think the process is fair and open at every juncture. And

16

even if we miss something, there are all these eyes that

17

have been on the process as well as the content for a long

18

while.

19

So I trust in the process. It's complicated. But

20

I agree with you that we have to move forward. And

21

ultimately, it is our decision. I welcome recommendations

22

from the public if there's something that we miss or some

23

language to be changed. I -- I think, though, that we are

24

familiar enough with the challenges that we have throughout

25

Maui County in all the other things that we do.
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I've sat here on this Council nine and a half

2

years. If I can't make a decision and I need to relegate

3

that to the Planning Director or some other department or

4

some other person, I'm sorry, I shouldn't be sitting here.

5

So it's up to me now. And I believe that my constituents

6

trust that my judgment ultimately will prevail, at least if

7

I'm going to argue a point on something, that I have to use

8

all of the knowledge that I have at my disposal and use the

9

other people as resources.

10

So, Mr. Chair, I just prefer to go on, plow through

11

it, at least get through most of this. And then if there

12

are things that we miss, pick that up on the second pass.

13

But the -- the -- the clock is ticking. All this

14

engineering. And I totally respect Member Nishiki's thing.

15

But in some cases, I think that the language is much more

16

comprehensive. And in some cases, it consolidates some of

17

the thoughts. Because this is a huge document. And I think

18

that the Department has made, in many cases, some really

19

good consolidation of statements and suggestions.

20
21

So I just support the direction you're going,
Mr. Chair. Thank you.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

23

Member Nishiki.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll allow Mr. Medeiros to

25

go forward.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And

3

mahalo, Mr. Nishiki. This is my perspective. And I think

4

everybody expresses, you know, very good ideas. I think

5

Mr. Nishiki, you know, looks at GPAC as having 25 members.

6

Quite a few. That's 25 perspectives, and so forth. This

7

is, you know, my feelings is that -- and -- and because of

8

your leadership, Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the matrix

9

with the four columns. But in my matrix, I have five

10

columns. So GPAC, the Planning Commission, Director's

11

Recommendation, Council Planning Committee Recommendation.

12

And the fifth column for me is the public, through their

13

testimony.

14

And for me, when we decide on any language, it

15

seems that we're taking some stuff from GPAC, some stuff

16

from the Director or the Planning Commission, and

17

incorporating some of the stuff we hear in the testimony.

18

So I -- I think our job is to review all of this and to make

19

a decision. As Member Johnson said, this is our

20

responsibility to -- for this document.

21

And as we look at GPAC Recommendations, certainly,

22

at more times than not, it's more in depth. It's just

23

because they had more time and more members to do that. And

24

that's -- and we -- and, you know, I appreciate their work.

25

When I look at the Director's Recommendation -- and
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certainly, they were involved from day one to the completion

2

by having their representatives there at those meetings.

3

That the Director's Recommendation is more concise. So it's

4

something more brief, but still with a lot of contents.

5

And -- so I think, for me, the five columns works

6

well in coming to a final decision on how we word or amend

7

or vote on things. So I -- I will -- you know, I'll follow

8

your direction, Mr. Chairman. Mahalo.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then we'll give the

12
13

Department some time to respond.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. As -- as -- as we've

14

heard earlier in people giving their thoughts to have,

15

perhaps, somebody from GPAC here to ask questions was my

16

last concern. The biggest concern was was that GPAC seems

17

to have more bite in their text. GPAC seems to have more

18

bite and also explanations in their recommendations.

19

Now, if he we wanted to ask a question of GPAC,

20

like many of you have said, it could be on the winning side

21

or the losing side. So that was kind of like the last

22

thought for me. Why I thought GPAC would be the basis for

23

our decision-making is because, exactly, the Planning

24

Director is here at every meeting. He is the person that

25

can explain why his recommendations. So therefore, if we
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were to use GPAC's as the basis and make changes from the

2

Planning Director, it would seem that it would run so much

3

more smoothly. And that is the reason why I say that.

4

Anyway, I'm -- I'm ready to move on, but I thought

5

that that would have been a more workable situation in lieu

6

that, again, the Planning Director has these recommendations

7

from the Commission and the GPAC. And therefore, he was

8

here at every meeting so we could easily ask him the reason

9

why he wanted those changes. If we don't agree with him,

10

then we go back to GPAC. If all -- all of us are still

11

satisfied with GPAC's and cannot accept the Planning

12

Director's, then we would use GPAC's.

13

Personally myself, as I said, I favor the citizens

14

group over a Director's Recommendation. And that's the

15

basis I wanted to use. I'll move on.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

17

Director, comments.

18

MR. HUNT: I just thought I'd help you understand

19

why the Direct -- or the Department, actually, made a number

20

of recommendations for deletions.

21

At one point, when the GPAC Recommendations came

22

out and we took them to the Planning Commission, the

23

document numbered 900, Goals, Objectives, Policies and

24

Actions. That's just the Maui Island Plan. The Countywide

25

Policy Plan on top of that, we estimate 300 to 400. And
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then we throw in a Community Plan. So it's -- it's one

2

thing to be expansive and extensive in your recommendation.

3

And we -- we recognize the efforts that the GPAC made. But

4

there's another side to this. And how do we administer this

5

General Plan with those three layers and all the policies we

6

just listed to you?

7

And so the direction we got from the Planning

8

Commission -- we discussed this with them. And there was

9

concerns expressed to the Planning Commission that the

10

document was too big, it had too many policies. And they

11

said go ahead and reduce it, condense it. And they gave us

12

direction to do it further. And so that's -- that's what

13

we're trying to do. We're not trying to gut it. We're not

14

trying to take away the GPAC's substance.

15

In a number of times -- a number of policies, what

16

we've tried to do is just combine them where the GPAC

17

recommends support for something, and then they had another

18

policy that they would adopt a program to support that and

19

they would provide funding and they would add staffing and

20

they would enhance coordination. We just simply

21

consolidated all of that into supporting whatever that

22

policy's directed at. So I hope that explains our motives

23

behind it all.

24
25

And again, we are here to help you guys. We'll
assist you in any revisions to those policies, and also to
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help you understand the evolution of those policies.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. That took

3

a -- almost an hour. So I just want to indicate to you that

4

time is ticking. And the Chair appreciates these comments,

5

but I would like to continue to move forward and expect that

6

you'll have fair opportunity to make the amendments that you

7

think are necessary. Okay.

8
9
10

So, Members, at last night's meeting, if you're
looking at your matrix document here, we are on page 23 of
this -- excuse me. Let me backtrack here.

11

We are on page 22. And we're under the Watershed

12

Streams and Wetlands Element. We are beginning with

13

Objective 3, which is Item Number 151. And the Chair would

14

entertain a motion to adopt the Objective Number 3, Item 151

15

to the Policies and Actions, ending at Item Number 160 on

16

page 23.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved, Mr. Chair.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second the motion,

19
20

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

21

Johnson, seconded by Member Molina to adopt the Objectives

22

3, Items Numbers 151 to Item Number 160.

23

Okay. Members, discussion on the motion?

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 154.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I would want to put in the

4

GPAC Recommendations, saying, "Require developers to provide

5

a wetland protection buffer around and between development

6

and wetland resources." I think that --

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Make a motion.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The --

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Make a motion.

10
11

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- concern here has to
be -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki, would you
make a motion, then, to that effect.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Make a motion.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Move to change

16

Policy 154 to adopt GPAC's Recommendation.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Second.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

19

Nishiki, and seconded by Member Johnson that we amend this

20

to adopt the GPAC Recommendation on Item 154.

21

Discussion on the motion? Member Baisa.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. I'd like to ask the

23

Department why their -- why their language?

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

25

MR. HUNT: We felt that it could be interpreted,
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the GPAC language could be interpreted as a regulation in

2

and of itself. And we felt it would be better to actually

3

go through the ordinance process. And so therefore, we

4

reworded it to say support regulations. And those

5

regulations would provide the details and the mechanics of

6

how we would implement the policy.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BA1SA: Thank you.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion?

9
10

Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just a general question.

11

And maybe the Department can answer this. When we're

12

talking about wetlands, we're talking about something

13

normally regulated and monitored by the Federal Government.

14

So, Department, how do we incorporate that? Wetlands

15

usually come under the Federal Government. And we're, you

16

know, making general statements about what we'd like to see.

17

But what -- what concerns me is that, you know,

18

some of it says no net loss of wetlands. So how do we know

19

how much wetlands we currently have? How do we say, okay,

20

we have a loss or we have a gain? And this all goes with

21

the streams that feed the wetlands. Like down in Kihei, we

22

notice it's all dried up at Kealia Pond. And that's fed by

23

streams. So I mean, this normally comes under Federal

24

Government. So what -- what would be your response to that?

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.
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MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Your observation is correct, Council Member.

3

Locally regulated wetlands essentially combines a Federal

4

definition wetlands --

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

6

MR. MICHAELSON: -- with local control. So the

7

wetlands themselves would be defined by the Clean Water Act.

8

And -- and I think you've -- you've seen projects that have

9

come before you that have defined Federally regulated

10

wetlands. What this is suggesting is that you do have some

11

local control over wetlands, particularly as you review

12

projects, all right, when they propose mitigation. As long

13

as you're not superseding the Clean Water Act, you can adopt

14

regulations that -- that -- that would, in fact, include

15

this net loss. And net loss doesn't just mean that you

16

can't lose wetlands, but it means that it has to be, under

17

this language, a one-to-one replacement. And that can be

18

either taking existing wetlands and upgrading them. It can

19

be buying into a wetlands bank, fcr example.

20

So your observation is correct. There's a Federal

21

component, which is really the definition, and a 404 Permit

22

from the Corpse of Engineers and your ability as a local

23

jurisdiction to be careful with your wetlands.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. But again, I want

25

to ask the question again. Do we have a current inventory
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of wetlands?

2

MR. MICHAELSON: We have what's called the National

3

Wetlands Inventory, which is relatively broad, usually a

4

county-level scope of wetlands. That does not mean that we

5

have a record, per se, of every single wetland on the island

6

of Maui.

7
8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,
Department.

9

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any further

11

discussion on the amendment? Okay. Hearing none, then all

12

those in favor of the amendment, signify by saying aye.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

15

Okay. The amendment is carried.

16

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

17

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson and Chair

18

Kaho'ohalahala.

19

NOES: None.

20

ABSTAIN: None.

21

ABSENT: None.

22
23
24
25

EXCUSED: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're back to the
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main motion.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Move to, again, adopt

5

Action 159, recommended by the GPAC.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there a second?

8

Okay. Member Nishiki moves to amend the -- by

9
10

inserting GPAC's Recommendation 159 into the document,
seconded by Member Baisa.

11

Discussion on the motion? Okay. Member Johnson.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: The -- the only reason why I

13

just think we should leave the one as it is because it is

14

really a policy and it is just stated, you know, to provide

15

the additional staffing. Because without that, you know --

16

to say enforce. Right now, that's our biggest challenge is

17

not having the staffing to enforce it. So I -- I don't

18

know. My thought is just leave it at what the

19

recommendation is because you can't do enforcement if you

20

don't have the people there to carry it out. So that's why

21

I -- I favor what's there right now. Thank you.

22
23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Discussion? Member
Baisa, followed by Member Medeiros.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The concern I have about the

25

Department's, you know, statement is not a bad thing. It's
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just, I'm getting really concerned as I go through this Plan

2

about all of the additional administrative requirements

3

and -- and staff and things that have to be done. And I

4

don't know how, we're going to have to have a humongous

5

Planning Department to take care of all this stuff we're

6

asking them to do.

7

So I'm kind of concerned when I see, "Provide

8

additional staff to enforce wetland regulations and improve

9

restoration plans."

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros,

12
13

(Inaudible.)

followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, I just wanted to

14

reiterate that, you know, in -- in the GPAC's Recommendation

15

is enforce no net loss of wetlands. Again, where's are

16

we -- where's our base data for that? How do we know

17

there's a net loss or not? So I -- I'm, you know -- it's a

18

concern that how can we do that? How can we enforce that?

19

But I just wanted to reiterate that. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I

22

just wanted to echo the concerns that my colleague Member

23

Baisa had too about the additional staff part. I mean, when

24

we say provide additional staff, you're going to be bounding

25

future Councils to fund additional staff positions. I mean,
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maybe we can hear from the Department. I mean, if it's

2

what -- I mean, as far as wetlands, I mean, is that totally

3

all a County responsibility, or would that be Dep --

4

Department of Land and Natural Resources? I need some

5

clarification.

6

You know, because the way it's written, it's like

7

it's going to be all put on the County taxpayers to provide

8

the additional staff. What about, you know, is it --

9

shouldn't it be maybe Federal or State. I mean, I just need

10

some understanding. If the Department could comment.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, comments.

12

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It's really

13

a -- a combination of Federal, State and County

14

responsibility. A lot of our effort occurs at the front-end

15

of the process in terms of making sure that areas aren't

16

entitled with these very sensitive resources. Once we

17

designate on a community plan or a zoning map an area for

18

development and if we have a sensitive wetland resources

19

included in that, then we're in a reactive mode. And that's

20

where it becomes Army Corps involvement, County involvement

21

in terms of the review of the development application.

22

So it's a coordinated effort with all three

23

jurisdictions. The best investment is in prevention. And

24

that would occur through our planning processes. And then

25

mitigation, which would occur through agency comments and
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departmental staff review.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Molina.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. And

4

again, for me the concern is then -- but it then, the way

5

this is written, then -- I don't know. The way I interpret

6

it then, who bears the responsibility of paying for staff?

7

Is it us? I guess the way I interpret this language then,

8

you know, we got to foot the bill. So it's just my

9

comments, Chair. Thank you.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman. I

12

don't know if any of you were sitting on the Council when

13

Azeka's came in for that wetland, or there was another

14

project in Kihei where wetland was involved. And we

15

contacted, along with the Planning Department, to bring in

16

people from the Federal agency. Also, we were provided with

17

wetland maps to look at the wetland. And there's one thing

18

that I learned and that Mr. Summers talked about, the

19

replacement of the existing wetland with another parcel

20

where they're going to improve the wetland.

21

We were taught early on by the -- the agency that

22

wetlands serve a real vital purpose. They're like the sieve

23

before the water reaches the ocean. It's like the strainer.

24

So that was why it was so important that we had this

25

knowledge as we made this decision. I don't think that they
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need additional staff. We were able to get that information

2

and, thereby, the Council was able to make a good decision

3

on a particular zoning parcel. So to say that they need

4

additional staff, I don't think is where I want to see this

5

go. Thank you.

6
7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussions,
Members?

8
9
10

Okay. So the amendment on the floor right now is
to adopt Item Number 159 into the document. So all those in
favor of the motion, signify by saying aye.

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

13

Okay. Motion is carried.

14

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

15

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

16

Kaho'ohalahala.

17

NOES: None.

18

ABSTAIN: None.

19

ABSENT: None.

20
21
22
23
24
25

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further
discussion on the main motion?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are we discussing
Objective 4 now also?

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'll wait.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any further

8
9
10

discussion?
Planning Department.
MR. HUNT: We just wanted to bring to your

11

attention that Policy 156 was kind of tied to Action 159.

12

The idea of providing additional staff did originate with

13

the Planning Commission. But if you're going to remove the

14

action, you should consider at least removing the policy or

15

modifying the policy.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I make a motion,

18

then, to remove Policy Number 156.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

21

Johnson and seconded by Member Nishiki to remove Policy Item

22

Number 156. Discussion?

23
24
25

Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor,
signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

2
3

Okay. This item is deleted, 156.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

4

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

5

Kaho'ohalahala.

6

NOES: None.

7

ABSTAIN: None.

8

ABSENT: None.

9
10
11

12
13
14

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, we're back
to the main motion as amended. Any further discussion?
Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the

15

Objective 3, listed as Number 151, with the policies and

16

actions to Number 160, signify by saying aye

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

19

Okay those -- that section is adopted as amended.

20
21
22
23
24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahaia.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8
9

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We are now at

11

Objective 4, beginning with Item Number 161. They are

12

attached policies and action items to Number 165. The Chair

13

would entertain a motion.

14
15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward
Objective 4, with policies and actions running through 165.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

18

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to adopt Objective 4, 161

19

to Action Items 165.

20
21
22

Okay. Members, discussion on the motion? Member
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I -- I -- I need the

23

explanation on Objective 4, why the language that basically

24

gives the Planning Department reasons why the greater

25

preservation of biodiversity and which includes involvement
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in partnerships and programs to protect native species, why
that -- it was left out?

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

4

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The

5

language in the back half of that objective is really a

6

policy statement. Its -- it specifies how the objective is

7

to be achieved, which, essentially, makes it a policy. And

8

it's redundant with some of the policies below it. So that

9

was the reason the Department shortened that objective.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. No -- no -- no

12
13
14
15

questions. It's okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other
discussion on this motion?
Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of

16

adopting Objective 4, Item 161 through the Action Items 165,

17

signify by saying aye.

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

20

Okay. This section is adopted.

21
22
23
24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho l ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

9

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair would entertain a

11

motion for Objective 5, Item Number 166, with the attached

12

Policies and -- let's see -- and the Action Items to Number

13

173.

14
15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward your
recommendation.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there a second?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

19

Johnson, seconded by Member Medeiros to adopt the

20

Objective 5 from Number 166 to Item Number 173.

21

Discussion on the motion?

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

25

166, Limited Development in Critical Watershed Areas, do we
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have an inventory of what's considered critical watershed
areas for the Department?

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department. Go ahead.

4

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We do have

5

a -- an inventory of watersheds on the island. And we've

6

also attempted to correlate critical watersheds with

7

critical marine environments. And that's on one of your

8

maps.

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So that's what you're -you're referring to in this column?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct. If we have a

12

critical watershed, we should be very cognizant of that and

13

careful in terms of how that area is developed if it's

14

developed at all.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that
information.

17

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other

19
20
21

discussion on the motion?
Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the
motion to adopt Objective 6 --

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 5.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: 5

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Sorry. Objective 5, Numbers

25

166 to action items ending at 173, signify by saying aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

3

Okay. That section is adopted.

4

VOTE:

AYES: Counciimembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

5

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

6

Kaho'ohalahala.

7

NOES: None.

8

ABSTAIN: None.

9

ABSENT: None.

10
11

12
13

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're at Objective Number 6,

14

beginning with Item Number 174, with the attached policies

15

and action items that would take us to --

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 183.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Item Number 183.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward

19

Objective 6 from 174 through the Action Item Number 183.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Moved by Member Johnson,

22

seconded by Member Baisa to adopt the Objective 6, from

23

Items 174 through 183. Discussion on the motion?

24

Sorry. Member Nishiki.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Policy 177, when the Hawaii
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State constitution is mentioned -- Article 12, Section 7,

2

HRS -- is that something that in your recommendation you are

3

now saying that this doesn't pertain to in your statement

4

here, Jeff? What is Article 12, Section 7 HRS 7, 1 -- 7-1?

5

MR. HUNT: I don't have that memorized. Generally

6

speaking, we try not to site another code, particularly if

7

it's already -- we have to comply with it. It's assumed, I

8

think by everyone, that we're going to comply with the

9

Hawaii State Constitution. So we don't need to create a

10

policy that says we should do that. So I think what staff

11

tried to do is instead of refer to a code, that we took that

12

information and created a policy.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: All right. Okay.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Further questions?

15

Discussion? Member Johnson.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I agree with Mr. Hunt. And

17

many times, when we refer to other ordinances. We can be

18

more restrictive on many issues. And if anything were to be

19

gutted at a higher level, I would want those protections to

20

be in place at the local level.

21
22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion on
the motion?

23

Okay. If not, then all those in favor of Objective

24

6 from Item 174, the attached policies and the action items,

25

ending at 183, signify by saying aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

3

Okay. That section is carried.

4

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Medeiros, Molina,

5

Nishiki, Vice- Chair Johnson, and Chair

6

Kaho'ohalahala.

-

7

NOES: None.

8

ABSTAIN: None.

9

ABSENT: None.

10
11
12

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, we'll go

14

back now to the -- back to your document. And the text

15

under Wildlife and Natural Areas.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Give us the page.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: On page 2-33, and ending at

18

page 2-38.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward that

20

we adopt the language contained in Section 2-33 through

21

2-38. And it doesn't go all the way to the bottom of the

22

page, but just ending just prior to goals, objectives and

23

policies.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right. Okay. Moved by
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Member Johnson and seconded by Member Baisa to adopt the

2

Wildlife and Natural Areas Element section on pages 2-33 to

3

page 2-38. Discussion on the motion?

4
5

Okay. Members, seeing none, then all those in
favor, signify by saying aye.

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

8

Okay. This narrative section is now adopted.

9

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

10

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

11

Kaho'ohalahala.

12

NOES: None.

13

ABSTAIN: None.

14

ABSENT: None.

15
16
17
18

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then if we could move you

19

back now to the objectives on the matrix. Okay. We will be

20

beginning with the goal listed as Number 184 and Objective

21

1, listed below, and the attached policies and the action

22

items that end at 196.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I so move.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member
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Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to accept the goal under

2

Item Number 184, and the Objective 1 and attached policies

3

and action items that will end at 196.

4

So discussion on the motion?

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I just had a question of

8

planning. On Number 186, the second section where it's

9

inventory flora and fauna, and then identify the location

10

and extent of invasive species. Where did you move that to?

11

Or is that -- oh, I see. You just codified that.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's listed in there.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah, I see where you

14
15

did it. I just wasn't reading the whole thing.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department. The Chair has a

16

question as to whether or not in the discussions concerning

17

these identification and inventories of highly threatened or

18

endangered species, whether or not there was any concern for

19

revealing that kind of information and -- and location

20

through inventories by either of the review bodies?

21

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don't

22

recall concerns expressed during the review process in terms

23

of the inventory. It -- it was an issue under Cultural

24

Resources, but I don't recall it being an issue under

25

Environmental.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So it is identified

2

in Cultural Resources as a concern, but its not reflected

3

here as a concern?

4

MR. SUMMERS: Right. There were specific concerns

5

expressed about making public the inventory of cultural

6

resources. That same concern was not expressed as it

7

relates to environmental resources.

8
9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: But essentially, these are
cultural resources, though?

10

MR. SUMMERS: Certainly.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I had a question. On

13

Number 194, which is, "Establish and fund an Environmental

14

Resources Planning Division," I notice that was both GPAC

15

and Director's Recommendation, but the Maui Planning

16

Commission had recommended deleting it. So can you address

17

that?

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

19

MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The

20

Planning Commission had a very keen eye for any additional

21

fiscal outlays, particularly at a staff level. I -- I

22

will -- I will chime in and say that in most places that

23

I've worked with that have the environmental sensitivity

24

resources that Maui island has, this is not an unusual

25

department. Often times, what they will do as well is as

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-REPO
237

1

2/9/10 PC
another staff position becomes available, they'll hire

2

someone that not only comes from an urban design background,

3

but comes from an environmental science background as well.

4

So I think you could accomplish this without additional

5

county outlies [sic], and still get the expertise that this

6

is driving at.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, I guess, if I understand

8

what you're saying, it doesn't necessarily mean that it

9

would be a division of the County government, but just a

10
11
12
13

resource division?
MR. MICHAELSON: Or augment existing expertise to
accomplish the same thing.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Mr. Chair, I think the

14

wording is important. But I think that for me, I -- I would

15

just simply look at -- you know, a little bit different

16

wording. And I'd say, you know, basically, consider

17

establishment and -- of an Environmental Resources Planning

18

Division or -- or consider establishment of an Environmental

19

Resources entity. Because we don't know whether it's going

20

to be part of County or whatever. I just want to know other

21

people's thoughts on that because that -- that is one thing

22

that kind of --

23
24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson, do
you want to make a motion?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I'll make a motion,
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then, that Number 194 be changed to be worded as, "consider
establishment of an Environmental Resources entity."

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second for discussion.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

5

Johnson and seconded by Member Molina to amend Item Number

6

194 to read as is being posted up there on the screen.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: "Consider establish" --

9

discussion on the motion? Member Baisa.

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I'd

11

like to hear -- Mr. Michaelson said something that I thought

12

sounded really good.

13
14
15
16

Could we hear you say that again, Dave, something
about augmenting?
MR. MICHAELSON: Well, I'm really looking at it
from a historical perspective.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

18

MR. MICHAELSON: When I was here in 2005, we had

19

a -- a planner in Current Planning who had significant

20

environmental protection background. In environmental

21

science, quite frankly. So my point was that you don't

22

necessarily need to create a division. All right. I mean,

23

you guys make that decision every time you do the budget.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

25

MR. MICHAELSON: You don't have to necessarily
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create another position within a department. You may just

2

be thinking about how your hiring practices affects the

3

implementation of some of these policies and to get

4

expertise in there that would help that happen. I think

5

this is really an excellent example. This whole sub-element

6

is really getting at expertise that we may not have in both

7

Current and Long Range.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Dave. How can we
say that without -- without what we have there? Help us.

10

MR. MICHAELSON: I would actually even make it more

11

broad, just con -- consider increasing interagency

12

experience in environmental management.

13
14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I withdraw my
motion.

15
16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or just accept that as a
friendly amendment?

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, or just accept that as a

18

friendly amendment. I amend my wording to reflect what's

19

there.

20
21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, that's the
amendment before us.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Molina.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-REPO
240

1

2/9/10 PC

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, Mr. Chair, if I

2

may ask. As worded now, consider increasing interagency

3

experience then, because it's broad, then the Department

4

would look at, I guess, additional more training for the

5

personnel and not necessarily hiring an additional position?

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just so I get that

8

understanding.

9

MR. MICHAELSON: That's correct.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just more training. Okay.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion,

12

Members?

13
14

Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the
amendment, signify by saying aye.

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

17

Okay. The amendment is carried.

18

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

19

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

20

Kaho'ohalahala.

21

NOES: None.

22

ABSTAIN: None.

23

ABSENT: None.

24
25

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I move to amend Number 196 to

5

substitute the GPAC's Recommendation, which states, "a

6

decrease in invasive species through programs and

7

partnerships that eradicate undesirable species and protect

8

native habitat."

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

11

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to amend the document by

12

including Item 196 of GPAC. Okay. Discussion?

13
14

Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the
amendment, signify by saying aye.

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed?

17

Okay. That item is amended into the document.

18

VOTE: AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

19

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

20

Kaho'ohalahala.

21

NOES: None.

22

ABSTAIN: None.

23

ABSENT: None.

24
25

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA : Any further discussion?

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not on that.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Member Medeiros.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. For

6

the Department, on Policy 188 -- Department, your wording is

7

very similar to the GPAC's, except you have deleted of key

8

recommendations from. So what -- what was your thinking

9

behind this was that if you support the implementation of

10

Hawaii Comprehensive Wildlife Conservation Strategy, then

11

you pretty much implement all of it. Is that correct?

:

12

MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.

14

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further

16

discussion?

17

Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor of the

18

motion to adopt goal at Number 184 and the attached policies

19

and action items ending at 196 as amended, signify by saying

20

aye.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

23

Okay. Motion is carried as amended.

24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8
9
10

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, we're at

11

Objective Number 2, beginning at 197, and the attached

12

policies and action items ending at Item Number 204.

13
14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward
Objective 2 as you noted.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Moved by Member Johnson,

17

seconded by Member Baisa to accept the objectives beginning

18

at 197 and ending at action items on 204.

19

Discussion on the motion? Member Baisa.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Why the recommended deletion

21

of 197? It seems like the meat of the whole issue.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It might be covered somewhere

24
25

else and I'm not aware.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It was just covered in the
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last one we did.

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Does it seem to be covered by
196, so we can delete that objective?

4
5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, we'll let them get
their notes.

6

Okay. Go ahead, Department.

7

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 196 does

8

address it. And I just want to clarify for the record that

9

196 is actually the objective for the policies that follow.

10

We have a -- a typo there on the matrix.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, thank you very much. Now
it follows.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then --

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We need to correct.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We will correct the previous

16

motion.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: To reflect the section

19
20

ending at 195.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move to revisit

21

the previous action that we just took to -- for

22

reconsideration.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Move for

25

reconsideration. All those in favor, signify by saying aye.

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
245

1

2/9/10 PC
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

2
3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

4

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

5

Kaho'ohalahala.

6

NOES: None.

7

ABSTAIN: None.

8

ABSENT: None.

9
10
11
12

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion for
reconsideration.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I move

15

forward that the items that we just took action on, I move

16

forward that the final action that we took was -- would be

17

to amend under Goal 184 -- I guess it would go through Goal

18

184, ending at 195 as opposed to -- continuing on to 196, as

19

we've amended those things within that.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

23

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to adopt the goals,

24

objectives, policies and action items beginning at 184 and

25

ending at Number 195. Okay. Discussion on the motion?
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Hearing none, then all those in favor, signify by
saying aye.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

5

Okay. That section is adopted as amended.

6

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

7

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

8

Kaho'ohalahala.

9

NOES: None.

10

ABSTAIN: None.

11

ABSENT: None.

12
13

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

14

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We are now looking at

16

the new Objective 2, beginning at 196, and then ending at

17

204.

18
19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward the
Objective 196, with the policies and actions, ending at 204.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BA1SA: Second.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

23

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa, to adopt Objective 2,

24

beginning at Item Number 196 and ending at Item 204. Okay.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, technical question.
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Because I already moved to adopt the language contained in

2

196, would that still stand, because I had recommended

3

adoption of the GPAC's language? So I just want to know

4

whether I need to restate that motion?

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I think it's clear.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yeah.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And that the Chair will

8
9
10
11

accept -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- your previous motion as
still standing for this item.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then we are on discussion on

14

this motion?

15

MR. HUNT: Mr. Chairman.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Director.

17

MR. HUNT: 204 is actually Objective 3. We have

18

another typo.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, my gosh. Wow.

20

MR. HUNT: Car -- carry the bold through, and that

21
22
23

will indicate the objective.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, would you like me
to just restate my motion, then, for the record?

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. Go ahead.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Mr. Chair, I move
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forward Objective 196 with the policies and actions running
through Item 203.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second?

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

6

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to adopt the Objective 2,

7

beginning at item 196, and ending at action items at 203.

8

Okay. Discussion on the motion?

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I would move to

10

delete -- oh, that is part of the recommendation. Okay.

11

That's fine.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So --

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, Mr. Chair, where we

15

concur with the Director's Recommendation and there's a

16

deletion, it will just be automatically deleted and it will

17

be renumbered?

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So don't be caught up with

21

the numbers, the staff will take care of that. Just follow

22

your matrix.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, if there are

25

no further discussion, then all those in favor of the motion
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as amended, signify by saying aye.

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

4

Okay. That section from Items 196 on to Number

5

3 -- 203 is adopted as amended.

6

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

7

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

8

Kaho'ohalahala.

9

NOES: None.

10

ABSTAIN: None.

11

ABSENT: None.

12
13

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

14

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Chair is now on

16

Objective 3, beginning at Item Number 204 and ending at --

17

ending at Number 219.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I just want to make sure --

19

yeah, Mr. Chair, I move forward the Objective Number 204,

20

and with the policy beginning at 205, and with the action

21

items continuing on until -- did you say 219?

22

219.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.

24

Okay. Do I hear a second?

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

219.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

2

Johnson to adopt Objective 3, beginning at Numbers 204, the

3

attached policies and action items ending at Item Number

4

219.

5

Okay. Members, discussion on this motion?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: On, I guess, Action 219 from

9

the Department, which reads "Increase funding for the

10

acquisition, protection and restoration of natural areas and

11

open space through grants," and so forth. Just for my

12

information, is -- currently, we have a one percent set

13

aside on real property taxes for open space, for example.

14

I'm just kind of wondering if this is something to

15

be discussed more as a potential charter amendment rather

16

than implementing this into our General Plan, leave

17

something to the electorate to decide on increasing funding?

18

You know --

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And we also have the two

21

percent set aside for the -- for the affordable housing

22

fund. So I'm kind of wondering because this is a money

23

issue, if this -- if -- if this would be more appropriately

24

proposed as a charter amendment in the future? Could I get

25

comment from the Department?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

2

MR. HUNT: You could soften it into a policy and

3

just say support for it so it's just conceptual, and then we

4

could implement it however the appropriate mechanism --

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Maybe consider.

6

Yeah. Okay, Mr. Chairman, then I'll propose an

7

amendment to, I guess maybe just add a word to the

8

Department's Recommendation on Action 219, "consider

9

increasing funding," and so forth.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do I hear a second -- okay.

13

Moved by Member Molina to amend Item 219, as reflected on

14

the overhead, and seconded by Member Baisa.

15

Members, discussion on the motion to amend?

16

Okay. Seeing none, then all those in favor,

17

signify by saying aye.

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

20

Okay. That section is amended. Adopted as

21

amended.

22
23
24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8
9
10
11

12

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion on
the motion?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward that

13

we adopt the GPAC Recommendation, the wording there that's

14

contained in Number 207.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

17

Johnson, seconded by Member Nishiki to adopt the GPAC

18

language in Item 207.

19

Discussion on the motion?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, it's just I think

21

there was a specific purpose as to why they wanted to focus

22

on the preservation and restoration of the interconnection

23

of habitat corridors and open space. So I thought that was

24

important.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion,
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Members?

2
3

Seeing none, then all those in favor of the
amendment, signify by saying aye.

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

6

Okay. Item 207 is amended into the document.

7

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

8

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

9

Kaho'ohalahala.

10

NOES: None.

11

ABSTAIN: None.

12

ABSENT: None.

13
14
15

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion?

17

Okay. Hearing none, then, Members, on this motion,

18

all those in favor of Objective 3, beginning at Item 204 and

19

the attached policies and action items ending at Number 219,

20

as amended, signify by saying aye.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

23

Motion is carried as amended.

24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

9

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, we are on the last

11

Objective Number 4, beginning at Item Number 220, with the

12

policy and actions ending at Number 226.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward

14

Objective 4, beginning at 220 through the Action Item Number

15

226.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

18

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa to adopt Objective 4, Item

19

Number 220, ending at action items at Number 226.

20

Discussion on the motion?

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, this is a whole

22

section where they're deleting Objective 4. So if we take

23

their recommendation, this is to delete this whole section.

24

So do I even need to make a motion?

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, we do need to take a
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motion.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- because you're --

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Accepting theirs. All right.

5

I'll just wait, then, and we'll hear from other Members.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, you

7

understand what the motion is? If you look at Objective

8

4 --

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Baisa.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a very brief explanation

12

as to why they're deleting the objective and all the rest of

13

it. I think I know, but I think it's important.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

15

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We do have

16

an item that touches on education in Number 200. I think

17

the overall goal was to accomplish some streamlining in the

18

document.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further

21
22
23

discussion?
Okay. Hearing none, then, all those in favor of
the motion, signify by saying aye.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?
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Okay. That section is adopted as amended and does

2

reflect the deletion. Okay.

3

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

4

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

5

Kaho'ohalahala.

6

NOES: None.

7

ABSTAIN: None.

8

ABSENT: None.

9
10
11
12

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, we are going

13

to go back to the narrative part of the document, beginning

14

at page 2-41 and ending at halfway -- or most of the way

15

down, page 2-44. And this is the section on Scenic

16

Resources.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward that

18

we adopt the narrative under Scenic Resources, running from

19

page 2-41 through mid-page on page 2-44.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

23

Johnson, seconded by Member Molina to accept the Scenic

24

Resources narrative on page 2-41 to page 2-44. Okay.

25

Members, discussion on the motion?
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Okay. Hearing none, then all those in favor,
signify by saying aye.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

5

Okay. The narrative section on Scenic Resources,

6

page 2-41 to 2-44, is adopted..

7

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

8

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

9

Kaho'ohalahala.

10

NOES: None.

11

ABSTAIN: None.

12

ABSENT: None.

13
14
15
16

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If we go back to our

17

matrix item, the Chair would entertain a motion to adopt the

18

goal listed as Number 226 and Objective 1, the attached

19

policies and action item, ending at Number 235.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved, Mr. Chair.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second, Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

23

Johnson, seconded by Member Molina to adopt the goals in

24

225 -- 226, I'm sorry.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 227.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Objective 1, 227, and ending
at the action item at 235.

3

Okay. Discussion on the motion?

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward

5

under Goal 226 --- which you really can't see on our copies.

6

But I move forward the GPAC language recommendation as

7

opposed to the Planning Commission Recommendation for that

8

one.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

11

Johnson, and seconded by Member Nishiki to adopt the

12

language in Item 226 by GPAC. Discussion?

13

You guys can read it?

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just checking.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: With some effort.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's right there. Gladys,

18
19
20

it's right there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know. I'm trying to
compare the two.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion?

22

Hearing none, then all those in favor of the

23

amendment, signify by saying aye.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
8D8-244-DEPO
259

1

2/9/10 PC
Okay. That Item 226 is amended into the document,

2

GPAC version.

3

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Medeiros, Molina,

4

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

5

Kaho'ohalahala.

6

NOES: None.

7

ABSTAIN: None.

8

ABSENT: None.

9
10
11
12
13
14

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion on
the main motion?
Okay. Hearing none, then all those in favor of the

15

motion as amended, signify by saying aye.

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

18

Okay. That section with the goal, beginning at

19

Number 226, the Objective 1, policies and action items

20

ending at 235 is adopted as amended.

21
22
23
24
25
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Nishiki, Vice--Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.

9

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.

10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The last, is it -no.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Objective 2.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next Objective is

14

Objective 2, beginning at Item Number 236, with the attached

15

policies and action items ending at Number 248.

16
17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward
Objective 2, beginning at 236, running through the --

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 248.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 248.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a second?

22

Okay. Moved by Member Johnson, second by Member

23

Molina to adopt Objective 2 at Numbers 3 -- 236, ending at

24

Number 248. Discussion?

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

2
3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I move forward to adopt the
language that's the GPAC Recommendation on Number 236.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

6

Johnson, second by Member Nishiki to adopt the GPAC language

7

in Item 236. Discussion?

8
9

Okay. Hearing none, then all those in favor
signify, by saying aye.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

12

Okay. That language is amended into the document

13

reflecting the GPAC's Recommendation, Item 236.

14

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

15

Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

16

Kaho'ohalahala.

17

NOES: None.

18

ABSTAIN: None.

19

ABSENT: None.

20
21
22
23
24
25

EXC.: Councilmember Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion on
the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Could I get comment from the

3

Department on, I guess, it's Action 248? Because we had

4

testimony today related to the undergrounding of utilities.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

6

MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. One

7

thing I do want to -- to reference is in your technical

8

studies, which was the first of the three binders that you

9

received, there was a scenic corridor assessment analysis

10

for the whole island. It used a very comprehensive

11

methodology of a photo inventory, and things like that. And

12

I certainly sympathize with MECO's concern about extending

13

utilities in rural areas, particularly from the distance

14

perspective. But I think the tone of this is really getting

15

at two levels that were identified in that study,

16

exceptionally important scenic corridors and high scenic

17

corridors. Most of those are like the Hana Highway, for

18

example, Haleakala Highway.

19

So I -- I think we might want to massage this

20

language a little bit. But the intent was never to capture

21

the utility lines that it sounds like he was most concerned

22

about. So I don't know if you want staff to take a look at

23

that. I guess one suggestion I would make is under C, where

24

it references UDBR

25

language that talks about important scenic corridors, or we

UDRB review, that maybe we add
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can specifically reference the exceptional and high that
came out of that assessment.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

4

Yeah. Mr. Chair, I mean, I'm open to having some

5

kind of additional language in there that could address some

6

of the concerns expressed, whatever -- you know, open to see

7

what the Department can offer --

8

MR. HUNT: Mr. Chair.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- in that action

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

11

MR. HUNT: Also, we need to realize at the top, it

12

says, "Develop and adopt standards and processes." So this

13

is just giving us guidelines or direction that in the

14

future, we'll come up with a process. It's not a regulation

15

in and of itself at this time. So that public process, we

16

could get the details and iron out the wrinkles.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Molina.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I guess -- I don't

19

know -- to tell you the truth, where I'm at on this. But,

20

you know, maybe it's too late in the day, I don't know. But

21

yeah, I guess if it's just simply something that's a broad

22

statement or a general then. Okay. I guess for the time

23

being, I can live with it. But I just wanted to bring it up

24

because of the representative from MECO that, I guess,

25

shared the concern with regards to the feasibility and cost
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and impacts. Thank you.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Member Baisa.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.

4

No, I looked at it too, like Member Molina. But I'm

5

comfortable because it's not really a mandate. It says

6

wherever -- whenever feasible, which looks at cost and, you

7

know, can we put it there or can we get the easement, or

8

whatever it is. So I'm okay.

9
10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Further discussion, then, on
the motion?
Okay. Hearing none, then, Members, all those in

12

favor of the motion before us as -- as amended, signify by

13

saying aye.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

16

Then the Objective 1, 2 -- Objective 2. Is that

17

where we're at?

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Objective 2 from Number 236

20

to the Action Item Number 248 is adopted as amended.

21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
265

1

2/9/10 PC
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

2

Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

3

Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.

7
8

MOTION CARRIED.

9

ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We are now on the

11

last Objective Number 3, I believe -- yes. And this is

12

beginning on Item Number 249, the attached policies and

13

action items ending on Item Number 255.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward

15

Objective 3, beginning at 249, and continuing with the

16

action items on 255.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, second the motion.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Moved by Member Johnson,

20

seconded by Member Molina to adopt Objective 3 at Item 249

21

and the attached policies and action items ending at Item

22

255.

23

Discussion, Members? Member Johnson.

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward to

25

substitute the GPAC language on 249, Objective 3.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Do I hear a second?

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second for discussion.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

4

Johnson, seconded by Member Medeiros to adopt the GPAC

5

language in Item 249 to be inserted into the document.

6

Discussion?

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, Mr. Chair, the only

8

reason I'm doing this is because I think the intent appears

9

to be a little bit different than the -- than what's coming

10

out by the Director's Recommendation. Because it -- it's

11

looking at acquisition of additional scenic vistas, you

12

know. And I -- I just think it's -- it's, you know, a

13

little bit more comprehensive.

14
15
16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Further discussion, Members?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17

I'm on the fence with this one. I guess the word "acquire,"

18

again, you know, it's -- it's a cost issue. Maybe if we had

19

added language in there, maybe "consider acquiring,"

20

something along those line, I, for one, would feel a little

21

more comfortable.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and sometimes

24

you do it through easements, so it doesn't necessarily have

25

to cost us money. But just like Honolua through negotiated
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settlements or whatever, if we can get this in the public

2

domain it will also give us access. But it does not

3

necessarily mean -- I would agree with you, Member Molina,

4

if it said purchase. But acquisition, through our -- you

5

know, through the process where we have, you know, swaps or

6

negotiated Kinds of -- even dedications, that's where I look

7

at. So acquisition is always going to be -- not always a

8

monetary issue. Thank you.

9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I request that the

11

Planning Department explain why they took out that piece

12

about acquiring.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

14

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There were

15

a couple of issues involved with revision of that Objective.

16

The first was to differentiate it from a policy. When we

17

start statements with words like "protect," that's drafted

18

in policy type of language. So we -- to make it more

19

measurable, we use the term "greater." In terms of the

20

acquisition, as Councilmember Johnson noted, there are many

21

revenue neutral tools that can be used to acquire these

22

types of resources, so we didn't feel it was necessary to

23

put it in the objective.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion?

25

Okay. Hearing none, then all those in favor of the
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motion to amend, signify by saying aye.

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

4

Okay. The motion is carried. This will be

5

inserted into the document, Item Number 249, GPAC version.

6

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

7

Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

8

Kaho'ohalahala.

9

NOES: None.

10

ABSTAIN: None.

11

ABSENT: None.

12
13
14
15
16

EXC.: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further
discussion on the motion?

17

Okay. Hearing none, then --

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair. Chair.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On Objective Number 254, this

21

is a very interesting thing. It says, "Revise land

22

regulations to require access to scenic vistas and resources

23

at appropriate locations, limit the height of walls, and

24

require appropriate setbacks and site design along scenic

25

corridors as identified on Cultural Scenic Resource Policy
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Map."
I don't have a problem with this, other than this

3

is pretty much a man -- a direction to let's pass some laws

4

if we don't have them.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Talk about setting policy.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Molina.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you,

9

Mr. Chairman. In relation to 254, Mr. Kapu brought up

10

something interesting about access. I don't know if there's

11

a word to include in this to imply some type of cultural

12

sensitivity. Because I -- I think you brought up a good

13

point. I mean, do we want access -- tell everyone where you

14

have access to kalo fields and see -- see our locals

15

working, you know. And I can certainly understand the

16

cultural sensitivity behind has remarks. So I -- I would be

17

open to looking at some kind of language to, at least

18

emphasize, you know, cultural sensitivity, along with

19

peoples' right to privacy.

20
21
22
23
24
25

Maybe say -- for example, like kuleana lands, do we
want to open up access to kuleana lands to everyone?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, do you have any
comments. And then I'll get back to you, Members.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think
the -- the term "appropriate," we were intending to
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encompass that in that language, whether it's too broad and
we want to be more specific to cultural issues.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I move to amend that in 254

6

added to the Number 1, "Require access to scenic vistas and

7

resources at appropriate locations," comma, "provided such

8

access is culturally acceptable."

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

11

Johnson, seconded by Member Molina to amend Item Number 254

12

to include the language that's being placed up on the

13

overhead.

14

Discussion on the motion? Member Baisa.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much,

16

Chair. I remember this discussion in the GPAC very well.

17

The cultural folks that were present had serious concerns

18

about what has happened to, you know, sites that we used to

19

think were ours, and that now the world knows about thanks

20

that to little book that got published that has caused so

21

much grief. And they're concerned about, you know,

22

everybody having to know everything about Maui and then

23

coming here and wanting to see it and destroying it. So I

24

am very much in support of Member Johnson's amendment.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just making sure
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that it's up there -- locations, provided such language is

2

culturally accepted. Is that correct?

3

Further discussion?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I'd just like to ask

7

the Department that throughout this document when we refer

8

to the word "culture," and so forth, we're assuming it's the

9

Hawaiian culture? Because there are other sensitive other

10

cultural places, such as temples that belong to the Chinese

11

in Kula. So I'm just wondering, if we say cultural, we mean

12

Hawaiian only?

13

MR. HUNT: I don't believe so.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

15

MR. HUNT: I think it's all inclusive. It would

16

include Hawaiian culture.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay.

18

MR. HUNT: We don't want to exclude any.

19

And, Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.

21

MR. HUNT: I believe David -- someone said language

22

as David was typing, so the word up there should be "access"

23

as opposed to "language."

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Such access.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're all on the same

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-DEPO
272

1

2/9/10 PC
page?

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then, Members, if

4

there's no further discussions on the motion, then all those

5

in favor, signify by saying aye.

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

8

Okay. The language is accepted -- approved as

9
10

amended.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

11

Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

12

Kaho'ohalahala.

13

NOES: None.

14

ABSTAIN: None.

15

ABSENT: None.

16
17
18
19
20
21

EXC.: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further discussion on
this motion?
Okay. If not, then all those in favor of the last

22

motion to adopt Objective 3 from Items Number 249, ending at

23

the action items on 255 as amended, signify by saying aye.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?
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VOTE:

The motion is carried as amended.
AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

3

Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

4

Kaho'ohalahala.

5

NOES: None.

6

ABSTAIN: None.

7

ABSENT: None.

8
9
10
11

EXC.: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, I know it's

12

5, and the Chair had said that we'd go on until 4:30. And I

13

appreciate the fact that you're hanging in here. But this

14

element has only one more section. And if you go back to

15

the text, there are four attached maps that are part of this

16

element section. And they are maps Numbered 2-1 to Map 2-4.

17

Okay. They are listed as the Natural Environment Existing

18

Conditions Map; the Cultural Resources Overlay and Scenic

19

Corridor Protection Map; the Marine Resources Special

20

Manage -- Special Area Management Zone Map; and the

21

Sensitive Lands Map.

22

So what is the pleasure of the Committee?

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I can stay for another

24
25

15 minutes, and then I have to leave.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then the Chair would
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entertain a motion to accept this last portion in this
element for --

3
4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Does Mr. Raatz have something
to add?

5

MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just briefly,

6

for the Committee's consideration. When maps are brought

7

up, perhaps the Planning Department can be asked to

8

distinguish between maps that are just background maps that

9

describe existing conditions compared to policy maps, which

10

describe future desirable conditions, which would be more of

11

a policy decision for the -- the Committee to endorse or to

12

revise.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

14

MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And,

15
16

Councilmember Baisa, I'll try to do this in five minutes.
The first map that David references, the Nat --

17

Natural Environmental Existing Conditions Map, that is

18

exactly what it says it is. It's existing conditions. It

19

ties back to the policies. A lot of those were identified

20

in the very early public process of what was most important

21

to the community. The data sources are on there. Again,

22

that map is really a general direction map. It's at an

23

island scale. It's not meant to prevent someone from

24

developing a single-family house on a parcel. It just says

25

we know these things are out there, and you should be aware
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of it.

2

The second map is a Cultural Resources Overlay and

3

Scenic Corridor Protection Map. You'll notice several times

4

in the policies, it talked about developing ordinance that

5

would implement a Scenic Corridor Program, as well as a

6

Cultural Protection Program. The Cultural Protection

7

Boundaries that are on here are what came out of the initial

8

technical studies and was approved by the Planning

9

Commission.

10

The GPAC Recommendation was to include the entire

11

island within a Cultural Heritage -- Cultural Protection

12

Zone. And we went back to the technical studies, augmented

13

this map slightly based on the work of the TRCs, which

14

Lucienne referenced. Again, policies would -- would have to

15

be developed to implement that, and we haven't gone that far

16

now.

17

The third map is entitled a Marine Resource Special

18

Area Management Zone Map. This grew out of discussions with

19

GPAC, it was supported by the Planning Commission. And it

20

was essentially dealing with the issues of all the data we

21

received over the last year about the -- the -- where our

22

coral reefs are and what is the interface between human land

23

form changes and how it affects those reefs. Again, we

24

haven't written that policy. But this map identifies the

25

reefs that are still in relatively good condition that

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-REPO
276

1

2/9/10 PC
hopefully we can keep it that way in the life of the Plan.

2

It was done with a lot of help from folks that you've

3

heard -- NOAA, Dar, aquatic biologists. Folks like that.

4

And finally, there's a Sensitive Lands Map. It's

5

composed of a composite of four data sets. The first is

6

slope over 20 percent. Second is -- and the slope was

7

used -- we used USGS Digital Elevation Model Data. So it's

8

at an island-wide scale, it's accurate. It includes the

9

100-year flood plain based on FEMA mapping, on Federal

10

Emergency Management Administration. It includes Threatened

11

and Endangered Species Habitat, which is developed by the

12

Nature Conservancy -- I'm sorry -- U.S. Fish and Wildlife.

13

And finally, Critical Habitat that was defined by the Nature

14

Conservancy.

15

Again, that map is information in terms of how we

16

developed the Directed Growth Strategy Map, but there's also

17

reference in the policies to develop a heightened review

18

process for areas that are in -- within those four

19

categories of Sensitive Lands.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members.

21

VICE - CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward that

22

we adopt the four maps that we have before us: The

23

Designated Critical Habitat; the Heritage Area Map; the

24

Marine Resource Special Manage -- Special Area Management

25

Zone; and the Sensitive Lands Map.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I think you -- you

missed the first --

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, the Natural --

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No, I said the Natural. Oh, I

6

said Designated Critical Habitat. But anyway, it's the

7

Natural and Environmental Existing Conditions Map.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do I hear a second?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

12

Johnson and seconded by Member Medeiros to adopt the

13

attached maps, Numbered 2-1 to 2-4 in this Element section.

14

Discussion on the motion?

15

Okay. Corporation Counsel.

16

MR. HOPPER: Just understand for the Committee,

17

it's my understanding that these maps -- or at least some of

18

them will have an affect on the areas so designated as far

19

as whether or not these properties can be developed. I'm

20

not -- I'm not sure to what extent designating something as

21

a Sensitive Land may or may not have that effect, or if the

22

definition in -- I believe there's another section of --

23

there's other sections that have certain definitions of what

24

these land areas are, such as Sensitive Lands are intended

25

to apply to these maps as well.
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You know, so I just want Council to be aware of

2

that and to have an understanding of the result of adopting

3

these maps would have, if any, on -- on how the lands -- you

4

know, they're -- they're not just necessarily inventory

5

maps, although some of them are. Some of them are

6

designated lands in a certain manner that could have a legal

7

effect on that designation -- you know, that designation

8

could have a legal effect on somebody's land. So I think

9

that's important -- unless I'm misunderstanding what the

10

maps say, I think that's important for Council to understand

11

and, you know, to be very clear how this is affecting --

12

this is going to affect those lands.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department.

14

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. These --

15

these maps would be effectuated through future ordinances.

16

None of these maps in and of themselves would prevent

17

somebody from developing their property. There are

18

designations on the Directed Growth Maps -- for instance,

19

there's a Regional Park designation and there's a

20

Preservation Area designation. And those designations in

21

the Directed Growth Maps would have the kind of effect that

22

Corporation Counsel has alluded to.

23
24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, is that
clear?
Corporation Counsel.
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MR. HOPPER: It's my understanding that there are

2

some maps with certain designations that would have that

3

effect. These maps, I guess, happen to -- the Department is

4

saying it does not happen to have any maps that would have

5

that immediate effect because Sensitive Lands are intended

6

to be implemented with future ordinances and other

7

designations. Such as greenways, for example, are not

8

present on these particular maps here.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is that clarified,

12

Member Medeiros?

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Thank you,

15

Mr. Chairman. Until ordinances are adopted, then the

16

designations will not affect currently those maps -- those

17

areas identified as Sensitive Lands. Is that correct?

18

MR. HOPPER: To me, the key issue would be if

19

someone applies for an SMA Permit or subdivision of those

20

lands --

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

22

MR. HOPPER: -- would this document say this is now

23

a Sensitive Land, you're not consistent with this, so you

24

need to get an amendment to the Maui Island Plan before you

25

could get an SMA Permit? And what I'm hearing from the

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS MAUI
808-244-REPO
280

1

2/9/10 PC
Department is that, though they've been designated as

2

Sensitive Lands, because no ordinance had been adopted, they

3

would -- the Department would read that as -- you would

4

still be allowed to get your SMA Permit. I'm not sure if

5

That's a correct reading, but I think that's what the

6

Department is saying.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

8

MR. SUMMERS: That's correct. Our -- our intent is

9

to move forward upon the adoption of this Plan and develop,

10

for instance, a Site Plan Review Approval procedure for

11

Sensitive Lands to dea_ with impacts to those types of

12

resources. So it would require a separate legislative act.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, questions?

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I -- I just want to

15

bring up, I think -- now I think back, and Hana Ranch had

16

some concerns about designating some lands in Hana as

17

Sensitive Lands. They felt it would restrict their use of

18

those lands. So I want to be absolutely sure that the

19

Planning Department is telling us that there's no changes

20

until new ordinances are adopted. Is that correct?

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.

23

MR. SUMMERS: That's the intent, yes.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The intent, or

25

that's what will happen?
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MR. SUMMERS: That's what will happen. If you read

2

the policies and read the actions that follow, it speaks to

3

specific actions to implement these provisions.

4

MR. HOPPER: With respect to these particular maps.

5

There may be other maps. And as you read on in the Directed

6

Growth Plan specifically, that will have a more immediate

7

effect and would affect somebody getting an SMA permit. You

8

could elect to designate those lands. You could elect to

9

not designate those lands.

10

I think the Department is saying in this particular

11

case where they designate something, I think, as Park, I

12

think is one of the -- I think that's one of the

13

designations -- and as Sensitive Lands I guess are saying

14

that Park or Reserve or Sensitive Lands, that this

15

particular map, that they would instruct, I guess, their --

16

the Zoning Enforcement Division and the Planning Commission

17

that they can process SMA permits in these lands, even

18

though they say Park or Reserve or Sensitive Lands because

19

these particular maps are not the Directed Growth Maps.

20

That's what I'm hearing from -- from the

21

Department. I mean, that should definitely be clear as to

22

the intent of these maps as being in the Cultural Resources

23

section as opposed to the Directed Growth Land Use section.

24

And I think that is very important.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And, Members, as we get to
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each of those elements, there will be a section at the end

2

of the -- the element that are going to be dealing with

3

these maps. And we'll get the clarification on those maps

4

as we are dealing with them.

5
6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.

7
8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So at this point, then, any
further discussion on the motion?

9

Okay. Hearing none, then all those in favor of

10

adopting the four attached maps Numbered 2-1 to 2-4 in this

11

element, signify by saying aye.

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no?

14

Then the maps are adopted.

15

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

16

Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair

17

Kaho'ohalaha1a.

18

NOES: None.

19

ABSTAIN: None.

20

ABSENT: None.

21
22
23
24
25

EXC.: Councilmembers Nishiki and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, I want to
thank you for being here. The Chair was considering
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because -- let's see. We have one more element that I

2

wanted to try and get through and have considered looking at

3

a Friday meeting. Is that available, a Friday afternoon?

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 1:30 to 4 would be the time.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, okay. Just

7

'til 4. Just 'til 4.

remember, some people are coming back from Lanai that day.

8
9

'Til

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: They're coming in the
morning.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the Chair is looking at

12

starting our meeting at 1:30 on Friday, and to end at 4.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, so this would be

15

a recess. Right? We're recessing?

16
17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: This would be a recess, and
we will continue our meeting on Friday at 1:30 p.m.

18
19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. That's -- that's all
right.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay? So then, with that,

21

then, I want to thank you for being here and for enduring

22

this -- this time. We will recess this meeting until Friday

23

at 1:30 p.m. This would be February 12th, okay. The

24

meeting is now in recess.

25

RECESS:

...(gavel)...

5:10 p.m.
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